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-. Re. Petition of Southwestern Bell Communications Services, Inc. For A Waiver of The Florida 
Public Service Commission's Rule Requiring An Interexchange Company to File a Bond 
Coverings Its Current Deposits and Advance Payments For More Than One Month's 
Service 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Pursuant to Section 120.542 of the Florida Statutes and Section 25-24.490(2) of the Rules of the 
Florida Public Service Commission, Southwestern Bell Communications Services, Inc. d/b/a 
Southwestern Bell Long Distance d/b/a Nevada Bell Long Distance d/b/a Pacific Bell Long 
Distance d/b/a SBC Long Distance ("SBCS, Inc." or "Petitioner") petitions the Florida Public 
Service Commission ("Commission") for a waiver of the portion of Section 25-24.490(2) of the 
Rules of the Florida Public Service Commission which requires an interexchange company to 
maintain on file with the Commission a bond covering its current balance of deposits and advance 
payments (for more than one month's service). 

In support of this petition, the Petitioner provides the following information: 

1. The name, principal address, and telephone number of the Petitioner are Southwestern Bell 
Communications Services, Inc. d/b/a Southwestern Bell Long Distance d/b/a WadSBefi.  
Long Distance W a  Pacific Bell Long Distance d/b/a SBC Long Distance, 5@ $. L * -  
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2. The name, title, address, and telephone number of the person to whom correspondence or 
communications in regard to this petition are to be addressed are Barbara Lowe, Vice 
President, Visiology, Inc., 16061 Carmel Bay Drive, Northport, Alabama 35475, (205) 
330-1702, (205) 330-1705 Fax. 

3. The Petitioner is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBC Communications, Inc. ("SBC"), a 
holding company of one of the Bell operating companies, which is located at 175 E. 
Houston, P. 0. Box 2933, San Antonio, Texas 78299-2933. SBC's telephone number is 
(210) 821-4015. SBC has a corporate debt rating of AA- according to Standard & Poor's 
and Aa3 according to Moody's. Enclosed is a copy of SBC's SEC FORM 10K dated 
March 10, 2000. 

4. The Petitioner believes that the purpose of the rule was to protect Florida consumers and 
businesses from poorly financed interexchange companies that might collect deposits and 
subsequently go out of business unable to return the collected deposits. Because of the 
financial strength of SBC, the Petitioner submits that customer deposits would not be at 
risk. 

5.  Pursuant to discussion with staff, we've enclosed a copy of the tariff pages of the 
Petitioner's switched services tariff, Florida Tariff No. 2, that are being revised to include 
the rules and regulations for collecting deposits. Enclosed are 2nd Revised Sheet 2, 1st 
Revised Sheet 6, and 1st Revised Sheet 68. The purpose of the tariff revisions is to add 
language regarding deposits, change the title of the issuing officer, and make one 
miscellaneous text change. The tariff pages have an issue date of June 13, 2000 and a 
requested effective date of June 23, 2000. 

6. The Petitioner also plans to file its initial data services tariff, Florida Tariff No. 3. This 
tariff will also include tariff language to cover the rules and regulations for collecting 
deposits. 

7. The Petitioner plans to begin its marketing effort for business services in the middle of 
July. In the interim until the Petitioner receives an order from the Commission granting 
or denying this petition, the Petitioner may collect deposits from business accounts. If the 
Commission denies this petition, the Petitioner will file the appropriate bond to cover the 
deposits collected and will maintain a bond covering its current balance of deposits. 

16061 Carmel Bay Drive 0 Northport. Alabama 35475 
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Therefore, the Petitioner requests that the Commission issue an order granting a waiver of Section 
25-24.490(2) of the Rules of the Florida Public Service Commission. 

For Commission use, we’ve enclosed an original and three (3) copies of this petition. So that 
our records will be complete, please date stamp the extra copy of this petition and return in the 
envelope provided. 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 

Yours truly. 

Barbara L. Lowe 
Consultant To Southwestern Bell Communications Services, Inc. 

Enclosures 

16061 Carmel Bay Drive 0 Northport, Alabama 35475 



Southwestern Bell Communications Services, Inc. 
d/b/a Southwestern Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a Nevada Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a Pacific Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a SBC Long Distance 

Florida Tariff No. 2 
2nd Revised Sheet 2 

Cancels 1st Revised Sheet 2 

CHECK SHEET 

Sheets 1 through 188 of this Tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the 
sheet. Original and revised sheets as named below comprise: all changes from the original 
Tariff. 

T 

SHEET REVISION 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 

Original Sheet 
2nd Revised Sheet * 
1st Revised Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
2nd Revised Sheet * 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 

* New or revised current Tariff filing. 

Issued: June 13, 2000 Effective: June 23, 2000 

Bruce Ramsey, Vice President - General Counsel and Secretary 
5850 W. Las Positas Blvd., Pleasanton, California 94588 

(TI 



Southwestern Bell Communications Services, Inc. 
d/b/a Southwestem Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a Nevada Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a Pacific Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a SBC Long Distance 

Florida Tariff No. 2 
1st Revised Sheet 6 

Cancels Original Sheet 6 

CHECK SHEET (continued) 

SHEET REVISION 

68 
69 
70 
71 
72 
73 
74 
75 
76 
77 
78 
79 
80 
81 
82 
83 
84 

1st Revised Sheet * 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 
Original Sheet 

* New or revised current Tariff filing. 

Issued: June 13, 2000 Effective: June 23, 2000 

Bruce Ramsey, Vice President - General Counsel and Secretary 
5850 W. Las Positas Blvd., Pleasanton, California 94588 

(T) 



Southwestem Bell Communications Services, Inc. 
d/b/a Southwestern Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a Nevada Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a Pacific Bell Long Distance 
d/b/a SBC Long Distance 

Florida Tariff No. 2 
1st Revised Sheet 68 

Cancels Original Sheet 68 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

2.8 Customer Deposits / Advance Payments 

2.8.1 Customer Deposits 

The Company will collect deposits pursuant to Section 25-4.109 of the Rules of 
the Florida Public Service Commission. 

T 
T 

Issued: June 13, 2000 Effective: June 23, 2000 

Bruce Ramsey, Vice President - General Counsel and Secretary (TI 
5850 W. Las Positas Blvd., Pleasanton, California 94588 
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For fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 

OR 

- TRANSIT Oh REPORT PURS-AhT TO SECT ON 13 OR 15(d) 
OF THE SEC-RIT ES EXCrlANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 
..~ ____ 

Commission File Number: 1-8610 

SBC COMMUNICATIONS INC. 

Incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware 
I.R.S. Employer Identification Number 43-1301883 

175 E. Houston. San Antonio, Texas 78205-2233 
Telephone Number 210-821-4105 

SecurRies registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: (See attached 
Schedule A) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None. 

Indicate by check markwhether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required 
to be filed by Section 13 or lS(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during 
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was 
required to file such reports). and (2) has been subject to such filing 
requirements for the past 90 days. 
Yes X No- 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 
of Regulation S-K is not wntained herein, and will not be contained, to the 
best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements 
incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-Kor any amendment to this 
Form 10-K. ( ) 

Based on composite closing sales price of $43.375 per share on March 6.2000. 
the aggregate market value of all voting and lwkvoting stcck held by 
non-affiliates was $1 47,398,900,000. 

As of March 6, 2000. 3,399,389.663 shares of Common Stock were outstanding. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

(1) Portions of SBC Communications Inc.'s Annual Report to Sharwwners for the 

(2) Portions of SBC Communications 1nc.k Notice of 2000 Annual Meeting and 

fiscal year ended December 31,1999 (Parts I and 11). 

Proxy Statement dated March 10.2WO (Parts 111 and Iv). 
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Securities Registered Pursuant To Section 12(b) Of The Act: 

Name of each exchange 
Title of each class on which registered 

Common Shares (Par Value $1 .OO Per 
Share) Pacific Stock Exchanges 

New York, Chicago and 

7.75% Exchangeable Notes, 
Due March 15. 2001 

New York Stock Exchange 
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

GENERAL 

SBC Communications Inc. (SBC) is a holding company incorporated under the laws 
of the State of Delaware in 1983 and has its principal executive oAces at 175 
E. Houston, San Antonio, Texas 78205-2233 (telephone number 210-821-4105), SBC 
maintains an Internet site at http:llwww.sk.com 

History 

SBC was formed as one of several regional holding companies (RHCs) created to 
hold AT&T Corp.'s (AT&T) local telephone companies. On January 1,1984. SBC was 
spun-off from AT&T pursuant to an anti-trust consent decree, becoming an 
independent publicly traded telecommunications Services provider. At formation, 
SBC primarily operated in 5 southwestern states. SBC subsidiaries merged with 
Ameriiech Corporation (Ameritech) in 1999, Southern New England 
Telecommunications Corporation (SNET) in 1998 and Pacific Teiesis Group (PAC) in 
1997. thereby expanding SBC's wireline operations into a total of 13 states. 
Since SBC was formed, it has implemented plans to develop and expand into 
innovative new Service and product offerings and to deliver those offerings, 
along with many other new services, to new national and global markets. its 
strategy to enter new markets has been through mergers and acquisitions of 
complementary businesses, strategic partnerships, and the development of its 
global communications network. The services and products of SBC are marketed 
under several established brands including Ameriiech, CellularOne, Nevada Bell. 
Pacific Bell, SBC Telecom, SNET, and Southwestern Bell. 

Scope 

SBC ranks among the largest providers of telecommunications services in the 
United States and the world. Through hs subsidiaries, SBC provides a 
comprehensive offering of communications services and products in the United 
States and has investments in 23 other wuntries around the world. SBC offers 
its services and products to businesses and consumers, as well as other 
providers of telecommunications services. 

The services and products that SBC offers vary by market, and include: local 
exchange services, wireless communications, long distance services. Internet 
services. cable and wireless television services. security monhoring, 
telecommunications equipment, messaging, paging, and directory advertising and 
publishing. SBC groups its operating subsidiaries as follows: 

0 wireline subsidiaries provide primarily land and wire based services, 
0 wireless subsidiaries provide primarily radio wave based services. 
0 information and entertainment subsidiaries provide services primarily 

related to directory advertising and publishing, cable television, and 
security monitoring services, and 

0 international subsidiaries hold investments in foreign entities outside 
of the United States. 

SBC's principal wireline subsidiaries provide telecommunications services in 
California, Texas, Illinois, Michigan, Ohio, Missouri. Connecticut, Indiana, 
Wisconsin, Oklahoma, Kansas, Arkansas, and Nevada (13-state area). Certain 
Wireline local exchange services offered in the 13-state area are provided 
through regulated subsidiaries which operate whhin authorized regions 
(in-region) subject to regulation by each state in which they operate and by the 
Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Additional information relating to 
Regulation is contained under the heading "Government Regulation" below and in 
the 1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners under the heading "Operating 
Environment and Trends of the Business", and is incorporated herein by reference 
pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 

<PAGE> 

National-Local 

n 1999, SBC began 10 implement a "ha1 ona -Local" strategy in conjdnction wnn 
RS acquis tion of Ameritech bnoer tne National-Local strategy, SBC w II seek 
10 become a competnive oca1 exchange carrler (CLEC) and offer oca exchange 
services in 30 new markets across tne coLnIry in combinar on mth m e r  major 
national an0 nlernational operations SBC expects to introduce service in n ne 
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new markets in 2oM). and another 21 during the following two years. This 
"National-Local" strategy is part of SBCs overall strategy to expand from a 
regional company to a company that provides communications Services and products 
nationally and globally. 

Business Combinations 

Ameritech Corporation 

On October 8, 1999, SBC and Ameritech completed the merger of an SBC Subsidiary 
wiih Ameritech, in a transaction in which each share of Ameritech common stock 
was exchanged for 1.31 6 shares of SBC common stock (equivalent to appromately 
1,446 million shares). Ameritech became a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBC 
effective with the merger, and the transaction has been accounted for as a 
pooling of interests and a tax-free reorganization. 

The FCC approved the merger in October 1999, subject to certain contiiions, 
including accelerated entry into new markets, so that SBC will offer wireline 
Services in 30 new markets within 30 months afler the merger closing date. In 
addition, SEC established a separate subsidiary to provide advanced services 
such as Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) and agreed not to charge residential 
customers minimum monthly long distance fees for at least three years after 
entering the long distance business in that market. SBC will also offer a 
low-income Lifeline universal service pian to lw- inwme residential customers 
in each state in its 13-state area. The FCC conditions require specific 
performance and reporting provisions and contain enforcement provisions. 

As a condition of the merger, Ameritech sold on October 8, 1999, 20 Midwestern 
cellular properties including the competing cellular licenses in Chicago, 
Illinois and St. Louis, Missouri. 

Additional information on the Ameritech merger is contained in the 1999 SBC 
Annual Report to Shareowners, and is incorporated herein by reference pursuant 
to General Instruction G(2). 

Southern New England Telecommunications Corporation 

In October 1998. SBC and SNET completed the merger of an SEC subsidiarywith 
SNET, in a transaction in which each share of SNET common stockwas exchanged 
for 1.7568 shares of SBC common stock (equivalent to approximately 120 million 
shares). SNET became a wholpowned subsidiary of SBC effective with the merger 
and the transaction has been accounted for as a pwling of interests and a 
tax-free reorganization. Additional information on this matter is contained in 
Note 2 of the 1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners. and is inwrwrated herein 
by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 

Pacific Telesis Group 

In April 1997, SEC and PAC completed the merger of an SBC subsidiary with PAC, 
in a transaction in which each outstanding share of PAC wmmon stock was 
exchanged for 1.4629 shares of SBC common stock (equivalent to approximately 626 
million shares). With the merger, PAC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBC. 
The transaction has been accounted for as a pooling of interests and a tax-free 
reorganization. Addiiional information on this matter is contained in Note 2 of 
the 1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners, and is incorporated herein by 
reference pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 

<PAGE> 

Post-merger initiatives 

Several strategic decisions resulted from the Ameritech, SNET, and PAC merger 
integration pmesses. The decisions resulted from extensive reviews of 
operations throughout each of the merged companies and included significant 
integration of operations and consolidation of some administrative and support 
functions. SBC recognized charges during 1999.1998 and 1997 in wnnection with 
the Ameritech, SNET and PAC merger initiatives. Charges arising out of the 
mergers relating to relocation, retraining and other effects of consolidating 
certain operations are being recognized in the periods those charges are 
incurred. 

Additional information on this matter is contained in Note 2 of the 1999 SEC 
Annual Report to Shareowners. and is incowrated herein by reference pursuant 
to General Instruction G(2). 
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Reorganization 

SBC is centralizing several key functions that will support the wireline 
operations including network planning, strategic marketing and procurement. It 
is also consolidating a number of corporate-wide support activities, including 
research and development, information technology, financial transaction 
processing and real estate management. These inliatiies continue to result in 
the creation of some jobs and the elimination and realignment of others, with 
many of the affected employees changing job responsibilities. and in some cases 
assuming postions in other locations. 

Additional information on these matters is contained in Note 2 of the 1999 SBC 
Annual Report to Shareowners, and is incorporated herein by reference pursuant 
to General Instruction G(2). 

<PAGE> 

BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

Operating Segments 

As a result of the merger with Ameritech and to better reflect the broadened 
scope of its operations, SBC adjusted its segment reporting structure. SBC now 
has four reportable segments that reflect the current management of its 
business: Wireline, Wireless, Information and Entertainment, and International. 
The Information and Entertainment segment expands on what was previously the 
Directory segment. and includes ail directory operations and Ameritech's 
electronic security and cable television operations. All international 
investment operations have been removed from the Other segment and are shown 
separately in the International segment. The miscellaneous items that formerly 
were included in the Other segment are immaterial and have been moved to 
Corporate. Adjustments, and Eliminations. SBC evaluates performance based on 
income before income taxes adjusted for normallzed (i.e. one-time) items. 

Financial information about reportable segments is included in Note 7 of the 
1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners. and are incorporated herein by reference 
pursuant to General instruction G(2) 

Wireline 

Wireline is SBC's largest operating segment, providing approximately 77 percent 
of SBC's normalized operating revenues in 1999. The Wireline segment provides 
landline telecommunications services. including local. network access and long 
distance services, messaging, Internet SeNiCeS and sells customer premises and 
private branch exchange (PBX) equipment, and markets satellite television 
services. The Wireline segment provides its Services to residential and business 
customers through SBC's wireline telecommunications subsidiaries. The wireline 
telecommunications subsidiaries provide services to approximately 37.2 million 
residential and 22.7 million business access lines in the 13-state area. During 
1999 total access lines grew by 3.1 percent, of which 33 percent of the increase 
was due to growth in California, 19 percent in Texas and 9 percent in Illinois. 
Access lines in California. Texas and Illinois account for approximately 60 
percent of SBC's access lines 

Services and Products 

Local exchange services - Local exchange services include traditional dial tone 
primarily used to make or receive voice, fax, or analog modem calls from a 
residence or business. The local exchange process transports the caller's signal 
from the caller's telephone over an SBC transport facility and through an SBC 
central office switching facility to another local telephone service location or 
a long distance carrier selected by the caller. SBC also offers this service on 
a wholesale basis to CLECs. At December 31,1999, SBC provided wholesale 
Services to approximately 1.6 million access lines. Other local services include 
certain extended area Service, directory assistance, and operator services. 

Vertical services include custom calling services provided by SBC's central 
Office facilities. such as Caller ID. Cali Waiting, voice mail and other 
enhanced services. These features allow the telephone users to manage their 
local services with enhanced features such as displaying the number andlor name 
of callers, signaling to the telephone user that additional calls are incoming, 

6 of 144 6/12/004:15PM 



Edgar Filing hnp:Nwww.shareholder.comNisitorri/edgar OOdOOOl8&CompanyID=SBC&header=A&faater=A 

v 
and to send and receive voice messages 

Data services - Revenues from data services may be classified in local, network 
access or long distance revenues and include high-speed data communication 
Services used for transporting digital traffic from one computer system to 
another. Data services include digital products categorized into three basic 
categories: 

0 Switched Transpart services such as Integrated Services Digital Network 
(ISDN). Frame Relay, and DSL; 

<PAGE> 

0 Ded caled Transport Services sLch as D.gita Services and SynchronoJs 
Optical hewor6 (SONET) and 

o Application and Data Communications services which include Internet access 
and network integration. 

iSDN transmits voice, video, and data over a single line in support of a wide 
range of applications. including Internet access. Frame Relay is a fast packet 
switching technology. Packet switching allows data to travel in individual 
packets. or pieces, of information. DSL is a new digital modem technology that 
converts existing twisted-pair telephone lines into access paths for multimedia 
and high-speed data communications to the internet or private networks. DSL 
allows customers to simultaneously make a phone call and access information via 
the Internet or an office local area network. Digital Services are high-speed 
dedicated digital circuits offered with various speeds of transport. SONET 
provides access to SBC's backbone network at very high speeds. Network 
integration services include installation of business data systems, local area 
networking, and other data networking solutions. 

Network access services - Network access Services connect a customets telephone 
or other equipment to the transmission facilities of other camiers that provide 
long distance and other communications services. 

Wireline long distance - Wireline long distance services primarily result from 
the transport of intraLATA (Local Access Transport Area) telecommunications 
traffic that is outside of a local calling area. SBC has been restricted from 
providing interLATA long distance services within most of the in-region areas 
due to historical regulatory restrictions. SBC provides wireline interLATA long 
distance to its in-region customers in Connecticut. but is prohibited from 
originating interLATA long distance calls from SBC's other in-region states. 
Long distance services also include other services such as Wide Area 
Telecommunications Service (WATS or 800 services) and other special services. In 
addition, since 1996, SBC has offered wireline interLATA long distance services 
to customers in selected areas outside the wireline subsidiaries' authorized 
regions (out-region). 

Customer premises equipment (CPE) - CPE and other equipment sales range from 
single-line and cordless telephones to sophisticated digital PBX systems. all of 
which can be offered with the wireline subsidiaries' central office based 
services and products. PBX is a private telephone switching system, usually 
located on a customets premises. which provides intra-premise telephone 
Services as well as access to the public switched network. 

Cable Television - SBC ais0 operates a cable television system under the SNEl 
brand in Connecticut that is currently included in the Wireline segment. SNET 
m a n  offering cable television service in the first quarter of 1997. As of 
December 31, 1999, SNET provided cable television services to approximately 
31,000 households in Connecticut. 

Internet Services - SBC offers a range of Internet services and products for 
residences and businesses, varying by market, from basic dial-up access to 
high-bandwidth connections. Internet services offered include basic dial-up 
access service, dedicated access, web hosting. e-mail. and high-speed access 
services. 

Broadband Initiative 

In October 1999, as the first past-Ameritech merger initiative. SBC announced 
plans to offer broadband services to approximately 80 percent of SEC's United 
States wireline customers over the next three years (Project Pronto). SBC will 
invest an estimated 56 billion in fiber, electronics and other technology for 
this broadband initiative. The build-out will include moving many customers from 

W 
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the existing copper network to a new fiber network. Over the deployment period. 
marketing costs will be incurred depending on the rate of customer sign-ups and 
installations. An ongoing assessment of the carrying value and economic useful 
life of the existing network facilities will continue. Additional information on 
this matter is contained in Note 5 of the 1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners. 
and are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 
<PAGE> 

Prodigy Agreement 

In November 1999, SBC and Prodigy Communications Corporation (Prodigy) announced 
an agreement to form a partnership that will join their consumer and small 
business Internet operations. Under the terms of the agreement, which is 
expected to close in the second quarter of 2000, SBC will make Prodigy its 
exclusive retail consumer and small business Internet access service for 
customers in SBC's service area. Prodigywill assume management of approximately 
650,000 SBC subscribers of dial-up, iSDN and basic DSL Internet access services. 
increasing Prodigy's total managed subscriber base to more than 2 million. 
Subject to specific exceptions, SBC will exclusively market Prodigy SeNiCe 
through its extensive marKeting channels with a commitment to deliver a minimum 
of 1.2 million new customers over the next three years to the Prodigy member 
base, The agreement provides SBC with a 43 percent ownership stake in the 
partnership and a similar voting interest in Prodigy. Under certain 
circumstances, this may translate into a direct ownership interest in Prodigy. 
Required approvals for the transaction have been received from certain Federal 
regulatory agencies that had jurisdiction to consider the transaction. The 
agreement is subject to approval at a meeting of the shareholders of Prodigy, 
which is anticipated in early 20W. 

Sterling Commerce 

in February 20W. SBC entered a definitive agreement to acquire Sterling 
Commerce, inc. (Sterling), a provider of electronic business integration 
solutions, in an all cash tender offer valued at approximately $3.9 billion in 
which Sterling would merge with an SBC subsidiary. Sterling specializes in 
creating, powering and managing secure "+Marketplace communities" where 
multiple buyers and sellers can conduct real-time transactions, exchange gwds 
and services, faciliate business-to-business opportunities. and share 
information faster and at lower costs. The transaction is expected to be 
completed by the end of the second quarter of 2000. 

DIRECTV Agreement 

In July 1999. SBC entered into a strategic marketing and distribution agreement 
with DIRECN, Inc. that will make high-quali digital satellite television 
service available to certain SBC wireline residential customers. SBC, through 
DIRECTV. inc., will offer customers a digital video entertainment service. 

Williams Communications 

In October 1999, SBC acquired approximately 4 percent of Williams Communications 
Group, Inc. (Williams Communications), a subsidiary of Williams Cos., Inc. for 
an investment of approximately $439 million. Williams Communications provides a 
national network of fiber optic cable for telecommunications traffc transport. 
SBC and Williams Communications have entered into various service agreements for 
utilization of their modern, high-speed telecommunications network. 

Wireless 

The Wireless segment provides domestic wireless telecommunications services, 
including local, long distance and roaming services. Wireless services and 
products offered ais0 include certain enhanced services. paging services and 
wireless equipment The Wireless operating segment provided approximately 14 
percent of SBC's operating revenues in 1999. Services and products are provided 
to consumer and business customers through SBCs domestic wireless subsidiaries. 
As of December 31, 1999, SBC provides wireiess services to approximately 11 .2 
million customers domestically. 
<PAGE> 

SBC offers wireless services in many markets across the nation using both 
traditional cellular and new personal communication services (PCS) networks 
SBC's network facilty-based wireless service areas cover approximately 11 7 
miliion persons and its markets include 23 of the largest 35 metropolitan areas 
across the nation. 
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Wireless local serv ces invo ve the transport of wire ess .oca area traffic 
between wlreless te.ephones or equipment and otner telephones or equipment. 
Wire ess long distance sewces provide sLbscriwrs the abilly to call 
aestinat ons oulsiae of tne SubSCrtwfS home area. Roaming services a low 
SLbscriwrs 10 use their w re ess te,ephone eqLipment wnenever lney travel 
OLtSlde of the r home area SBC nas nLmerous roaming agreements wlth otner 
wlreless carriers allowing SBC sLbscriwrs 10 Lse the r wireless telepnone 
equpment tnroughoul the d i t e d  Stales ana Canada where SBC does not operate 
networks or hold wireless licenses 

Wareless subscribers' home service areas vary from market to marl(e1 ana from 
pro" oer lo provider bdt genera ly are DaSed dwn metropo .tan area boundar.es 
and travel patterns, I.censes. and ava. able n e b *  faci ities nome servlce 
areas for wireless Services may not eqdate to wlrelme .oca1 service areas, 
wnich are estaol shW by different government regular on SBC also prov oes 
w reless services to non-SBC wlreless telephone dsers roaming on SBC's w'reless 
networks Wnh tne increased popdlarty and rap 0 growth of wireless Serv,ces 
and the ndmDer of providers, ncluoing PCS. across the nailon SEC nas 
exper encw increased ul dization of its wireless networks from non-SEC wire ess 
customers and conesponoing growth n wire ess roaming revenues 

Since certain regulatory restrct ons were removw in 1996 SBC began offering 
wireless long d stance serv ces to ns trao tional CellLiar customers. A1 
Decemwr 31,1999 SBC haa oeen seleclea as the long d stance can er by 
approx mately 86 percent of ns Ira0 tional celldlar cuslomers SEC provides 
ong a stance sew ces to a I of 1s PCS w reless customers 

SEC offers d gnal w reless Sew ce. hclddlng ennanceo featLres. n most of lne 
metropolnan areas where fi is licensed to provlde Wireless service SBC first 
oegan proviaing commercial a gita service in Chicago in ~ u l y  1993 Dignal 
service mproves soma qdalily prov des a greater degree of pnvacy on 
inanvidua ca is, increases cal -hand1 ng capacity of the nefworks a l l m  
additcona Service offerings. extends wlreless bephone battery I ves and 
increases secLrny against coning 

SBC cdrrently provides loca. ana nationwide pagmg serv.ces to approximateay 1 5 
mil ion customers. most n tne Midwesl SBC pag ng Offers featbres such as fax 
nor ficalion, voice mail, and nbmer c and alpha pag ng 

Comcast Acquis t on 

In .LIY 1999. SBC comp eted the acquisition of Comcast Ce Llar Corporation 
(Comcast) the w re.ess Subs d ary of Comcasl Corporation Comcast offers analog 
and oigltal wireless services to subscr oers in Pennsytvan a De aware, New 
Jersey and 11 inois W i n  the acquslion SBC addeo approximate y 862,000 
suoscriwrs 

Pderto Rico AcqL sn on 

DJring 1999, SBC and Terefonos de Mexico. S A de C V (Telmex) comp etea the 
acqdisi1;on of Cel u ar CommLnications of Puerto Rico (Cei Llar Communications) 
adaing approx mately 375 OOO subscrioers in PLerto Rico and the Unned Stales 
Vlrg n Islands SEC owns a 50 percent equily stade in CellJlar CommLnications 
Cell!. ar Communicat ons offers w reless Services under the Cellular One brand 
name. The company also offers pag ng and long dlslance Sew ce in Puerto Rico 
and is planning to offer wire1 ne pnone seN.ce in San &an as a CLEC 
<PAGE> 

Radiofone Acquisition 

In March 2000. SBC completed the acquisition of Radiofone, Inc. (Radiofone). 
Radiofone serves more than 200.000 wireless customers in Louisiana and Michiaan. 
and approximately 300,000 paging customers in 11 stales 

Licenses 

The FCC authorizes the licensing of multiple wireless carriers in each 
geographic market. SBC's domestic cellular. paging and PCS services are provided 
under various licenses granted by the FCC in each geographic market SBC serves. 
Cellular and paging licenses are issued for a standard duration of ten years. 
PCS licenses are issued for five years. Licenses are renewed upon demonstration 
of compliance with the FCC's regulations and continued service to the public. 
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Information and Entertainment 

The nformation and Entertainment segment includes aafertising. ye ow and white 
pages directories electron c pbb ish ng, security monnoring services ana cable 
le ev.sion services exclLd ng cable lelevis on services by ShET The 
mformat on ana Entertainment operating segment prov.oed approximately 10 
percent of SBC's operating reienLes n 1999 

D rectory and Electron c Aoven s ng Services 

SBC s pnncipa aaven.sing directory ye1 ow ano while pages nbsidiaries 
operate pnmar y n the t3-slare region SBC. rnrough 11s Informal<on ana 
Enterta nment SJbSid ar es pdblishes more than 122 m lion books representlng 
approximately 882 d rectories 

The SoLthwestern Be I ana Amer tech oranded directories are pnnted by R R 
Donndley 8 Sons Pac Rc Bel ana SNET branaed diredories ale printed by 
Quebecor Worlo (USA) nc 

In add t on to traa tionai printed airectories. SBC Inleractive offers 
SMARTpages on the Internet located at nnp llwww smartpages com provid ng 
clrslomers wnn national business is1 ngs. searcnable oy indiv ddal company name 
ana by topic category The Amernech nternet Ye ow Pages, ocated at 
hnp iIwww yellowpages net provides coverage of over 10 m llton ..nited States 
bLslneSseS and mc.udes Iheme-orientw spectally gLldeS 

Security Mon tor ng Services 

SecdrityLin6 offers a full array of electronic security products and sernces 
for nomes and bLsinesses lnclLd ng mon lor= burglar ana fire alarm systems. 
persona emergency response service. closed circdn lelevis on ana electronic 
access control 

Cao e Te evision Servces 

SBC offers enhanced cable televisjon serv ces in the Chicago Cleve and 
Columbus ana Defrot metropolitan areas As of December 31 15-29, SBC provides 
cable serv.ceS to approximately 281,000 CLslomerS In apprommately 1W 
M.awestern commbn t es SBC has sca ed back its expansion pans for new cable 
franchises and is evaldat ng now the cable TV bus ness fts stratep cab  wan 
the rest d the bLSlneSS 
<PAGE> 

Cable Television -1censes 

SBC's cable le evision systems are subject to Federal slate ana local 
regu ation. .nclLaing regL ation by the FCC and oca1 francnising authorities. 
concerning rates, sew ce and prcgramm ng access SBC nas enterea into 
approximaely 11 5 cab e le  evis.on franchise agreements wnh local government 
anhorn es Genera1.y. these franchise agreements are in effect for a penod 01 
15 years. and are transferable witn regblatory approval 

International 

The International segment includes all of SBCs international investments. SBC 
has direct or indirect interests in businesses located in 23 countries outside 
the United States, and as of December 31,1999. has investments of approximately 
$10.3 billion in international affiliates. SBc's international investments are 
key to its global strategy. Businesses include local and long distance telephone 
services, wireless communications, voice messaging, data services, videa 
services, Internet access, telecommunications equipment, and directory 
publishing 

Europe 

Through its various subsidiaries. SBC is the largest non-European 
telecommunications investor in Europe and is positioned to access this large 
telecommunications market. 

SBC holds a 41.6 percent stake in Tele Danmark N S  (Tele Danmark), Denmark's 
primary full-service communications operator. Tele Danmark serves apprommately 
3.5 million access lines, 1.1 million cellular customers and 825,000 cable 
televhion customers. Tele Danmah has a 16.5 percent investment in Beigacom 
S.A. (Belgacom) as well as investments in wireless Services in Poland, the 
Ukraine. Lithuania. Austria, Germany and Nomy.  It has investments in 
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competitive communications providers in Sweden, Germany, Switzerland, and the 
Czech Republic. Tele Danmark ais0 has investments in local telephone operations 
in Hungary and an international digital transmission link through Russia, and 
Korea and Japan. in addition, since 1998, Belgacom and Tele Danmark. through a 
Joint venture, have offered ceiluiar service throughout the Netherlands. 

n Beg Lm. SBC nolos a 17 5 percent stake in Belgacom. the coJntrys primary 
fu .-setvice telecommunications operaror and effenively contro s 24 4 percent 
of Eelgacom when comoined vnth .Is slake in Tele Danmark W In approximate y 5 1 
mi lion access lines and more than I 9 mi lion ce lular CLslomerr, Belgacom 
prov des .mal long aistance, cel u ar ana other cammLn.cations Setvices and 
offers director*es and security Services. Be gacom a so has telecommunlcat ons 
investments in France, me hetner anos, and RLssia. 

SBC ho as a 15 percent equty interest in Cegete S.A. (Cegetel). a holding 
company through a io nt ventLre witn France's Vivenai. a Frencn d versified 
public company Cegete owns 80 percent 01 Sa: ele Franca se oe Raaidelephone. 
a nationwide cel Alar company wnh over 6 4 m Il;on cJstomers 

n Germany SBC. 1nroLgn ns investment n Tele Danmark indirectly Owns 41.6 
percent of Talkline GroLp a ce iLlar serv ce prov der and reset er SEC also 
Owns Wer Liefert Was (WLW) a lead ng German-oased PLD isher of 
ousiness-to-bJs,ness d rector es for Germany. ALstria. Sw Izerland, Be gum. 
LJxemoourg, tne hernerlands Croatia. Sloven a S ovakia. and the Czech 
RepLbdc 

in HJngary, tnrobgn a.oint ventLre wan Deutsche Telekom (DT) SBC and DT eacn 
hod a 29.8 percent slake in MATAV the coLnrrys primary 1 ~ 1  -S~NIC~ 
le ecommLnications operaror MATAV provides local long d stance and 
internal ona telephone sew ce and is tne contro ling shareowner n certain 
cel Ular ventures MATAV has appr0ximate.y 2 9 million access I nes in a country 
of IO 5 mil ion pwpte ana serves ouer 867.000 cei Liar sLoscrioers 
<PAGE> 

In Norway, SBC has a direct 19.6 percent stake and effectively controls 27.9 
percent in NetCom GSM (NetCom), through SBC's investment in Tele Danmark. NetCom 
is one of the countws leading wireless telecommunications providers. With 
approximately 720,000 customers, NetCom has a mobile infrastructure network 
covering over 4.4 million perrons. 

SBC owns a 40 percent interest in diAx A.G (diAx). a consortium formed wiih 
Switzerlands 6 largest electric util%ies and other businesses, which offers 
long distance, Internet and wireless services. Long distance services were 
launched in May 1998 and wireless services in December 1998. and at year end 
1999, diAx provided long distance services to 559,000 access lines (via equal 
access) and 413.000 wireless subscribers. 

Asia 

Data traffic between Asia and North America is growing rapidly, driven in large 
part by the increased popularity of the Internet. SBC has a 5.7 percent 
investment in a consortium with China Telecom and twelve dher 
telecommunications companies that have laid high-speed undema cable between 
mainland China and the United States. SEC also has an approximate 5 percent 
equity stake in a project to lay an undersea cable between Japan and the United 
States. These cable networks are expected to meet trans-Pacific data and voice 
traffic needs well into the future. The China cable project was made ready for 
service in January 2000. The Japan cable project is scheduled to be wmpleted in 
2000. 

SEC owns a 19.4 percent stake in TransAsia Telecommunications Inc. (TransAsia), 
a consortium formed to provide cellular services in Taiwan's southern region, 
headquartered in Kaohsiung. TransAsia serves over 470,000 cellular customers. 

North America 

Beyond its large United States presence, SBC is well positioned throughout North 
America. The company has a 20 percent stake in Bell Canada, Canada's premier 
telecommunications provider. Beii Canada offers a full range of services to more 
than 11.2 million residential and business customers, including local, long 
distance and wireless communications, Internet access, high-speed data services 
and directories. 

SBC also owns nearly a 9 percent equity share in Mexico's largest national 
telecommunications provider of wireline and wireless services, Teimex, which 
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operates some 10.5 million access lines and serves more than 4.1 million 
wireless customers Through this relationship, SBC has worked with Teimex to 
develop an advanced network, and has helped Teimex achieve its goal of enhanced 
telephone service throughout Mexico. 

South America 

in January Mw, SBC and Telmex acquired a stake in Brazilian wireless provider 
ATL - Aigar Teiecom Leste S.A. (ATL), which serves customers in Bmills Rio de 
Janeiro and Espirito Santo states. As part of the transaction. Williams 
Communications will reduce its stake to a 50 percent economic interest in ATL. 
SBC and Teimex will have the opporlunay to subsequently increase their 
investment to a 50 percent stake in ATL. but cannd do so until Mo4: until 
then, Aigar retains an investment in ATL as well as voting and board control of 
ATL in accordance with Brazilian regulations. 

in June 1999, SBC sold its remaining investment interests in Chile. 
<PAGE> 

AfricalMiddie East 

In 1997, SBC made a significant investment on the African continent when it 
acquired an 18 percent ownership stake in Teikom, S.A. Limited (Telkom), South 
Africa's state-owned local exchange, long distance, and cellular company. 
Currently, Telkom serves 5.2 million access lines in South Africa, and also is 
developing a second national wireless network. serving more than 2.1 million 
wireless customers through Teikom's wireless subsidiary, Vodacom. 

in Israel, SBC Owns a 50 percent equity stake in the AUREC Group, a cable 
television and publishing company. SBC also owns a 21.5 percent stake in Amdocs 
Limited (Amdocs). a major supplier of billing and customer Service software used 
by telecommunications companies worldwide, and a 22 percent stake in a 
consortium offering long distance service in israel. 

Financial information abobt foreign and domestic operations are included n Note 
7 of the 1999 SBC Annda Report to Shareowners and are incorporated herem by 
reference pLrsLan110 General Instrxtion G(2) 

MA-OR CLASSES OF SERVICE 

The follow ng table sets t o m  the percentage of conso idaiec total opera1 ng 
revendes by any class 01 service that accounted for t o  percent or more of SBC's 
consol dated tota operating revewes n any of me last three fiscal years 

- 
Percentage of Consolidated Total 

Operating Revenues 

1999 1998 1997 

Landiine local service 38% 37% 37% 
Wireless subscriber 12% 11% 11% 
Network access 20% 21% 22% - 
Landline iocai service and network access revenues are included in the Wireiine 
segment's resuits of operations and each also exceeds 10 percent of Wireiine's 
total operating revenues. Wireless subscriber revenues are included in the 
Wireless segment's results of operations and also exceeds 10 percent of 
Wireless' total operating revenues. 

GOVERNMENT REGULATiON 

in the in-region states, certain wireiine subsidiaries are subject to regulation 
by state commissions which have the power to regulate, in varying degrees, 
intrastate rates and services, including local. long distance and network access 
services. Certain wireiine subsidiaries are also subject to the jurisdiction of 
the FCC with respect to interstate and international rates and services, 
including interstate access charges. Access charges are designed to compensate 
the wireiine Subsidiaries for the use of their facilities for the origination or 
termination of long distance and access Services by other carriers Cable 
television operations are also subject to certain FCC and state or iocai 
jurisdiction with respect to service requirements. 
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Additional information relating to Federal and state regulation of the wireline 
subsidiaries is contained in the 1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners underthe 
heading "Regulatory Environmenr beginning on page 12, and is incorporated 
herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 
<PAGE> 

IMPORTANCE, DURATION AND EFFECT OF LICENSES 

Certain SBC subsidiaries own or have licenses to various patents, copyrights. 
trademarks and other intellectual property necessary to conduct business. SBC 
also licenses other companies to use this intellectual property. SBC does not 
believe that the expiration of any of its intellectual property rights. or the 
nonrenewal of those rights, would have a material adverse affect on its results 

MAJOR CUSTOMER 

No customer accounted for more than 10 percent of SBC's consolidated revenues in 
1999,1998 or 1997. 

COMPETlTiON 

Wireline and Wireless 

Informal on relating to w re ine and fflreless competition is contalneo In the 
1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners under the nead ng "Competnion" beg nning 
on page 16 and is mcorporated herein by reference pursbant to General 
nstrLc1 on G(2) 

nformat on ana Enterta nmem 

nformalion relar ng to directory and electronic advertising and publishing and 
caole te evision compel.1 on IS contained in the 1999 SBC Annua Repon to 
Snareowners under the heaaing "Competition" beg nning on page 16. and is 
lncorporatw herein by reference pdrsuant to General InstrJction G(2) 

International 

Information relating lo internat onal compeln on is contained in the 1999 SBC 
AnnLal Report to Shareowners mder the heaaing "Competn on" beginning on page 
16. and is ncorporated herein by reference pursLant to General Instruction 
G(21 

Customer Premises Equipment, Wireless Equipment and Other Equipment Sales 

SBC faces significant competition from numerous companies in marketing its 
telecommunications equipment. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

The majority of the research and development activities are related to the 
Wireline and Wireless segments of SBC. Applied research is wnducted at SBC 
Technology Resources, Inc. (TRI). a subsidiary of SBC. TRI provides research, 
technology planning and evaluation services to SBC and its subsidiaries. 

Certain company-sponsored basic and applied research was also conducted at 
Telcordia Technologies (Telcordia), formerly Bell Communications Research, Inc. 
(Bellcore). SBC had owned a three-seventh interest in Bellcore. with the 
remainder being owned by other RHCs. In November 1997, the RHCs sold Bellcore to 
a third party but continue to have a research agreement with Telcordia. The RHCs 
have retained the activities of Telcordia that coordinate the Federal 
Governments telecommunications requirements for national security and emergency 
preparedness. 
<PAGE> 

EMPLOYEES 

As of December 31, 1999, SBC employed 204,530 persons. Approximately two-thirds 
of the employees are represented by the Communications Workers of America (CWA) 
and the international Brotherhwd of Electrical Workers (IBEW). Colledve 
bargaining agreements between the CWA or the IBEW and SBC's subsidiaries are in 
effect whh varying dates of expiration in the years 2001 and 2002. Among other 
items, the agreements specify an average 11 percent increase in wages over the 
life of the contracts. 

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 
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In-Region Long Distance 

On December 16,1999. the Texas Public Utility Commission voted unanimouslyto 
endorse SBC's application to enter the Texas interLATA long distance market. SBC 
must also receive FCC approval and has filed its long distance application to 
provide interLATA long distance with the FCC on January 10, 2000. The FCC has 90 
days afler filing to act on the application 

CAUTIONARY LANGUAGE CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Information set forth in this form contains forward-lwking statements that are 
subject to risks and uncertainties. SBC claims the protection of the safe harbor 
for forward-looking statements provided by the Private Securities Lnigation 
Reform Act of 1995. 

The following factors could cause SBC's future results to differ materially from 
those expressed in the forward-looking statements: 

0 Adverse economic changes in the markets served by SBC. or countries in 
which SBC has significant investments. 

o Changes in available technology. 

o The final outcome of FCC rulemakings and judicial review, if any, of 
such rulemakings, including issues relating to jurisdiction. 

o The final outcome of state regulatory proceedings in SBC's 13-state 
area, and judicial review, if any, of such proceedings. including 
proceedings relating to interconnection terms, access charges, 
universal service, unbundled network elements and remle rates, and 
reciprocal compensation. 

Enactment of additional state, Federal andlor foreign regulatory laws 
and regulations pertaining to SBC's subsidiaries and foreign 
investments. 

0 The timing of entry and the extent of competition in the local and 
intraLATA toll markets in SBc's Isstate area and SBC's entry into the 
in-region long distance market. 

0 The impact of the Ameritech transaction, including performance with 
respect to regulatory requirements and merger integration efforts. 

o The timing and cost of deployment of SBC's broadband initiative also 
known as Project Pronto, its effect on the cav ing value of the 
existing wireline network and the level of consumer demand for offered 
services. 

0 

Readers are cautioned that other factors discussed in this report. although not 
enumerated here, ais0 could materially impact SBC's future earnings. 

<PAGE> 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

The properties of SBC do not lend themselves to description by character and 
location of principal units. At December 31, 1999, 92 percent of the property. 
plant and equipment of SBC was owned by the Wireline subsidiaries. Outside plant 
faciliies. including telephone poles, cabling, wiring and conduits represented 
41 percent of the Wireline subsidiaries' investment in telephone plant; central 
oftice equipment represented 40 percent; land and buildings represented 9 
percent; other equipment, comprised principally of furniture and offlce 
equipment, vehicles and other work equipment, represented E percent: and other 
miscellaneous property represented 2 percent. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

SBC is a party to various legal and regulatory proceedings arising in the 
ordinary course of business. While there can be no assurance as to the uitimate 
outcome of any pending proceedings, as of the date of this report, SBC does not 
believe that any pending legal proceedings to which SBC or its subsidiaries are 
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subject are required to be disclosed as material iegai proceedings pursuant to 
this item. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

No maner was submitted to a vote of shareowners in the fourth quarter of the 
fiscal year covered by this report. 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

Name Age Position Held Since 
.... ... 

CS> CCZ <C> 

Edward E. Whitacre Jr. 58 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 111990 

Royce S. Caldwell 61 Vice Chairman and President - SBC Operations 1111999 

James W. Callaway 53 Group President - SBC Services 1111999 

Cassandra C. Carr 55 Senior Executive Vice President - External Affairs 1 0 1 1 ~  

James D. Ellis 56 Senior Executive Vice President and General Counsel 3/1989 

Charles E. Foster 63 Group President - SBC 711 995 

Karen E. Jennings 49 Senior Executive Vice President - Human Resources lor1998 

James S. Kahan 52 Senior Executive Vice President - Corporate 
Development 

Donald E. Kiernan 59 Senior Executive Vice President. Chief Financial 
Officer and Treasurer 

Edward A. Mueller 52 President - SBC International Operations 

Stanley T. Sigman 52 Group President - SBC National Operations 

711 993 

711 993 

1111999 

111199% 

<FNr 
All of the above executive officers have held high-level managerial positions 
with SBC or its subsidiaries for more than the past five years, except for Ms. 
Jennings. who has heid high-level managerial positions since 1995. Prior to 
that, Ms. Jennings held responsible managerial positions with SBC. Executive 
officers are not appointed to a fixed term of office. 
cIFNz 
<lTABLE> 

<PAGE> 

PART iI 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHO!LDER MATTERS 

The number of shareowners of record as of December 31,1999 and 1998 were 
1,038.807 and 1,005,621. During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company sold 
shares of common stock lo non-employee directors pursuant to the Company's 
Non-Employee Director Stock and Deferral Plan. Under the plan, a director may 
make an annual election to receive all or part of his annual retainer or fees in 
the form of SBC shares or deferred stock units (DSUs) that are convertible into 
SBC shares. During this period. an aggregate of 3,270 SBC shares and DSUs were 
purchased by non-employee directors at prices ranging from $47.50 to $52.00. in 
each case the fair market value of the shares on the date of purchase. The 
issuance of shares and DSUs were exempt from registration pursuant to Section 
4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. Other information required by this Item is 
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included in the 1999 SBC Annual Report to Shareowners under the headings 
'"Quarterly Financial Information" on page 40, '"Selected Financial and Operating 
Data" on page 4, and "Stock Trading Information" on the back cover, which are 
incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATiNG DATA 

Information required by this Item is included in the 1999 SBC Annual Report to 
Shareowners under the heading "Selected Financial and Operating Data" on page 4 
which is incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATION 

Information requirea ny this Item s inc udeo In tne 1999 SBC Annual Report to 
Shareowners on page 5 lnrough page 20. whicn s incorporated herein by reference 
pursLant l o  General Inslrrlclion G(2) 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DiSCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

information required by this Item is included in the 1999 SBC Annual Report to 
Shareowners under the heading "Market RisK on page 19 through page 20, which is 
incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General instruction G(2). 

ITEM 6. FiNANCiAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

Information required by this Item is included in the 1999 SBC Annual Report to 
Shareowners on page 21 through page 40. which is incorporated herein by 
reference pursuant to General Instruction G(2). 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING 
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

No changes in or disagreements with accountants have occurred on any accounting 
or financial disclosure malters during the period covered by this report. 

PART 111 

iTEM IO. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFiCERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

Information regarding executive officers required by Item 401 of Regulation S-K 
is furnished in a separate disclosure at the end of Part I of this report since 
the registrant did not furnish such information in its definitive proxy 
statement prepared in accordance with Schedule 14A. Other information required 
by this Item 10 is included in the registrant's definitive proxy statement, 
dated March 10, 2000, under the heading '"Board of Directorr" beginning on page 4 
and '"Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" beginning on page 
32 which is incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction 
G(3). 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Information required by this Item is included in the registrants defintive 
proxy statement, dated March 10, 2C€Q under the headings"Compensation of 
Directors" from page 14 through page 15, and "Compensation Committee Interlocks 
and Insider Participation", "Executive Compensation". "Pension Plans". and 
"Contracts with Management" from page 20 through page 31, which are incorporated 
herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(3). 

ITEM 12. SECURIN OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT 

Information requirea Dy th s Item IS .nclJded n the registrant's deflnit ve 
proxy statement, oated March I O ,  2000 Jnder the heading "Common Stock OwnershlD 
of D rectors and Officers on page 16 flhich is ncorporated herein by reference 
pLrsLant to General nstrdction G(3) 

ITEM 13 CERTAlh RELAT.ONSh PSAhD RELATED TRANSACTlOhS 
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information required by this item is included in the registrant's definitive 
proxy statement, dated March 10, 2000, under the heading "Compensation of 
Directors" from page 14 through page 15 and "Contracts with Managemenr from 
page 30 through 31, which are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to 
General instruction G(3).  

<PAGE> 

PART iV 

iTEM 14. EXHIBITS, FiNANCiAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON 
FORM 8-K 

(a) Documents filed as a part of the report: 
Page 
_._ 

(1) Report of Independent Audtors ...................................... * 
Financial Statements covered by Report of independent Audtors: 
Consolidated Statements of income .................................. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets ........................................ * 
Consolidated Statements of Cash F l o w  .............................. * 
Consolidated Statements of Sharwwners' Equity ..................... 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ......................... * 

* 

* 

*incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate portions of the 
registranrs annual report to shareowners for the fiscal year ended 
December31, 1999. (See Part Ii.) 

Page 
... 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules: 
ii -Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ............................. 25 

Financial statement schedules other than those listed above have been 
omitted because the required information is contained in the financial 
statements and notes thereto, or because such schedules are not required 
or applicable. 

(3) Exhibits: 

Exhibits identified in parentheses below. on file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC), are incorporated herein by reference as 
exhibits hereto. Unless othewise indicated. ail exhibits so incorwrated 
are from File No. 1-8610 

Exhibit 
Number 

3-a Restated Certificate of incorporation, filed with the Secretary of 
State of Delaware on April 28, 1998. (Exhibit 3-a to Form 104 dated 
March 31, 1998.) 

3-b Certificate of Designation, filed with the Secretary of State of 

5 c  Bylaws dated June 26 1998. (Exhibit 3-c to Form 1CKfor 1998.) 

4-a Pursuant to Regulation S-K, item 601 (b)(4)(iii)(A), no instrument 
which defines the rights of holders of long-term debt of the 
registrant or any of its consolidated subsidiaries is flied herewith. 
Pursuant to this regulation. the registrant hereby agrees to furnish 
a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request. 

Delaware on March 31, 1997.(Exhibit 3-b to Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

4-b Support Agreement dated November 10, 1986, between SBC and SBC 
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Communications Capital Corporation. (Exhibn 4-b to Registration 
Statement No. 33-1 1669.) 

<PAGE> 

4 c  Rewlutions guaranteeing certain obligations of Pacific Telesis 

4-d Guaranty of certain obligations of Pacific Bell Telephone Company and 

4-e Guaranty of certain obligations of Ameritsch Capital Funding 

Group. (Exhibit 4-9 to Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

Southwestern Bell Telephone Company. 

Corporation. Illinois Bell Telephone Company, Indiana Bell Telephone 
Company, Inc., Michigan Bell Telephone Company, The Ohio Bell 
Telephone Company, Pacific Bell Telephone Company, Southem New 
England Telecommunications Corporation, The Southern New England 
Telephone Company, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, Wisconsin 
Bell, Inc. 

IO-a Short Term Incentive Plan. (Exhibit 10-a to Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10-b Senior Management Long Term Incentive Plan. (Exhiblt 10-bto Form 

10-c Supplemental Life Insurance Plan. (Exhibn 10-c to Form 10-Kfor 

10-d Supplemental Retirement Income Plan. (Exhibit 1Od to Form 10-K 

IO-e Senior Management Deferred Compensation Plan (effective for Units of 

1 0-K for 1992.) 

1997.) 

for 1997.) 

Participation Having a Unit Start Date Priorto January 1, 1988), 
revised July 30. 1993. (Exhibit 10.5to Registration Statement No. 
3364795.) 

104 Senior Management Deferred Compensation Plan of 1988 (effective for 
Units of Participation Having a Unit Start Date of January 1, 1988 or 
later). revised July 30, 1993. (Exhibit lO.6to Registration 
Statement No. 33-54795.) 

10-g Senior Management Long Term Disability Plan. (Exhibit 1 5 1  to Form 
IO-K for 1986.) 

10-h Salary and Incentive Award Deferral Plan 

10-i Financial Counseling Program. (Exhibit 10-i to Form IO-Kfor 
1997.) 

IO-j Supplemental Health Plan. (Exhibit IO-j to Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10-k Retirement Plan for Non-Employee Directors. (Exhibit 10-k to Form 
10-K for 1997.) 

10-1 Form of indemnity Agreement, effective July 1. 1986. between SBC 
and its directors and officers. (Appendix 1 to Definitive Proxy 
Statement dated March 18, 1987.) 

and certain officers of SBC's subsidiaries (Exhibit 10-p to Form 10-K 
for 1988.) 

and certain officers of SBC's subsidiaries (Approved November 21, 
1997). (Exhibit 10-n to Form IO-Kfor 1997.) 

IO-m Forms of Change of Control Severance Agreements for officers of SBC 

10-n Forms of Change of Control Severance Agreements for officers of SBC 

10-0 Stock Savings Plan. 

10-p 1992 Stock Option Plan. 

10-q Officer Retirement Savings Plan. (Exhibit 1Oq to Form IO-Kfor 

10-r 1996 Stock and Incentive Plan. 

1997.) 

10-s Non-Employee Director Stock and Deferral Plan. (Exhibit 10-s to 
Form 10-K for 1997.) 
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104 Pacific Telesis Grouu Deferred Comoensation Plan for Nonemulovee ~~ ~ ~~~ ~ 

Directors (Exhibi 16$g to Form IO-Kfor 1996 of Pacific Telesis ' 
Group (Reg. 1-8609).) 

10-t(i)Resolutions amending the Plan, effective November 21, 
1997. (Exhibit lo-v(i) to Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10-u Pacific Telesis Group Outside Directors' Deferred Stock Unit Plan. 
(Exhibit lo00 to Form 10-K for 1995 of Pacific Telesis Group (Reg. 
1 -8609).) 

10-v Pacific Telesis Group 1996 Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan 
(Exhibit lOqq to Form 10-K for 1996 of Pacific Telesis Group (Reg. 
1 -sSO9).) 

IO-v(i)Resolutii amending the Plan, effective November 21,1997. 
(Exhibit IO-v(i) to Form IO-Kfor 1997.) 

IO-w Pacific Telesis Group 1994 Stock Incentive Plan. (Attachment A to 
Pacific Telesis Group's 1994 Proxy Statement filed March 11, 
1994, and amended March 14 and March 25.1994.) 

IO-w(i)Resolutions amending the Plan, effective January 1, 1995. 
(Attachment A to Pacific Telesis Group's 1995 Proxy 
Statement, filed March 13, 1995.) 

IO-x Pacific Telesis Group Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan 
(Exhibe A to Pacific Teiesis Group's 1990 Proxy Statement filed 
February 26.1990.) 

10-x(i)Resolutions amending the Plan, effective April 1, 1%. 
(Exhibn 1 b ( i )  to Form 10-K for 1994 of Pacific Telesis 
Group (Reg. 1-8609).) 

10-y Agreemenl Regarding Change in Control. dated as of January 19. 1994, 
between Ameritech and Richard C. Notebaert. tooether with a schedule ~~~ ~~ 

identifying another agreement in the same form (Exhibit 10mm to Form 
IO-Kfor 1993, File No. 1-8612). 

12 

13 

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 

Portions of SBCs Annual Report to shareowners for the fiscal year 
ended December 31,1999. Only the information incorporated by 
reference into this Form 10-K is included in the exhibit. 

21 Subsidiaries of SBC. 

23-a Consent of Ernst 8 Young LLP. 

23-b Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP. 

24 Powers of Attorney. 

27-a Financial Data Schedule - December 31, 1599. 

27-b Restated Financial Data Schedule - September 30, 1999. 

27-c Restated Financial Data Schedule - June 30, 1999. 

2 7 d  Restated Financial Data Schedule - March 31,1999. 

27-e Restated Financial Data Schedule - December 31, 1998. 

27-f Restated Financial Data Schedule - September 30, 1998. 

2 7 4  Restated Financial Data Schedule - June 30, 1998. 
<PAGE> 

27-h Restated Financial Data Schedule - March 31, 1998. 

274 Restated Financial Data Schedule - December 31, 1997. 

99-a Report Of Independent Accountants Arthur Andersen LLP 
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9 4 b  Annual Report on Form 1 I -K  for the SBC Savings Plan for the year 1999 

99-c Annual Report on Form 11 -K for the SBC Savings and Security Plan for 
the year 1999 to be tiled under Form IOWA. 

99-d Annual report on Form 1 I -K  for the Ameritech Savings Plan for 
Salaried Employees for the year 1999 to be tiled under Form IO-WA 

99-e Annual report on Form 11 -K for the Ameritech Savings and Security 
Plan for Non-Salaried Employees for the year 1999 to be filed under 
Form IO-WA. 

to be riled under Form 10-WA. 

SEC WII furnsn to snareowners Jpan reqdest and without cnarge, a copy of the 
anndal report to shareowners and the proxy statement, portions of whlch are 
ncorporatea Dy reference in tne Form 10 X SBC ml fLrnlsh any other em b t  
at cost 

(0) Reports on Form 8-4 

On OctoDer 12 1999 SBC A ed a Form 8-K reporting on Item 2 
Acqu Smon or Disposn on of Assets In the report SBC announced the 
c ose of the merger w In Amernecn Corporation on October 8, 1999 

On October 19. 1999. SBC fled a Form 8-X report ng on Item 5 Otner 
Events and Item 7 F nanc al Statements ana Exhibits In the report SBC 
0 sclosed a press release annodnc ng the auncn of a S6 billion broadband 
initiative 

On October 29,1999 SEC A ed a Form E K  reporting on Item 5 Other 
Events ana Item 7 Financial Statements and ExhiD 1s n the report. SBC 
disc osea a press release annoLncing thlrd quarter earnings ana containing 
unaddned pro forma comb ne0 financial statements reflect ng the merger of 
a subs d ary of SEC and Amerirech Corporation 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

SBC COMMUNICATIONS INC. Schedule II -Sheet 1 
SCHEDULE II -VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

Allowance for Uncollectibles 
Dollars in Millions 

. 
COL. A COL. E COL. c C0L.D C0L .E  

. 
Additions 

(1) (2) 
Charged 

Balance at Charged to Other Balance 
Beginning of to Costs and Accounts Deductions at End of 

Description Period Expenses-Note -Note (b) -Nde (c) Period 
fa) 

CS> CCZ SC> c c z  sc> <c> 
.............................. 59s 1,443 $1.099 Year 1999 5 810 1,136 

896 603 1,426 $ 810 Year 1998 5 737 
Year 1997 $ 659 938 809 1.669 $ 737 

.............................. 

.............................. 

<FNs 
(a) Excludes direct charges and credits to expense on the statements of income 

and reinvested earnings related to interexchange carrier receivables. 
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(b) Incluoes amounts previoLsly wmen off whlcn were crediteo oirectly to 
this account when recovered and amoLnts related to ong-omstance carriei 
rece.vables whlcn are wing oiled oy SBC 

(c) AmoLnIs wr.nen off as .mcollectiole 
</FN> 
<fTABLE> 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

SBC COMMUNICATIONS INC. Schedule II - :Sheet 2 
SCHEDULE II -VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

Accumulated Amortization of Intangibles 
Dollars in Millions 

COL. A COL. B COL. c C0L.D C0L.E 

AddRions 

Balance at Charged Balance 
Beginning of Charged to Other at End of 

Description Period to Expense Acwunts Deductions Period 

CS, CCZ <C> <C> <C> 
Year 1999 .............................. $ 1,111 370 8 172 $1,325 
Year 1998 .............................. $ 1,485 275 3 652(a) $ 1  ,I 11 
Year 1997 .............................. $ 971 504 62 52 $1,485 

<FN> 
(a) Primarily related to the disposition of SBC Media Ventures, Inc. and an impairment of 

4FN> 
</TABLE> 

an investment in wireless video. 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

SBC COMMUNiCATlONS INC. Schedule II . Shed 1 ............. 
SCHEDULE iI -VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

Reserve for Restructuring 
Dollars in Millions 

. 

COL. A COL. B COL. c C0L.D C0L.E . . 

Additions 
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(1 ) (2) 

Balance at Charged Charged Balance 
Beginning of to Costs and to Other Deductions at End (of 

Description Period Expenses Accounts -Note (a) Period 
............. 
SS> <C> CC> CC> <C> CC> 
Year 1999 .............................. $ 123 5 114 $ 14 
Year 1998 ............................ $ 86 104 67 $ 123 
Year 1997 .............................. $ 226 140 $ 86 

cFN> 
(a) Includes $99 in 1999 and $30 in 1998 that was reversed to other operating 

c/FN> 
crrABLEz 

<PAGE> 

expenses for amounts no longer required. 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on 
Rs behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 1Mh day of 
March, 2000. 

SBC COMMUNICATIONS INC 

By Is1 Donald E. Kiernan 

(Donald E. Kiernan 
Senior Executive Vice President, 
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer) 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this 
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the 
registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated. 

Principal Executive Officer: 
Edward E. Whitacre. Jr.' 
Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Principal Financial and 
Accounting Officer: 

Donald E. Kiernan 
Senior Executive Vice President, Chief 
Financial Officer and Treasurer 

Is1 Donald E. Kiernan 

(Donald E. Kiernan, as attorney-in-fact 
and on his own behalf as Principal 
Financial Officer and Principal 
Accounting Officer) 

March I O .  2000 

Directors: 

Edward E. Whitacre. Jr.' 
Clarence C. Barksdale' 
James E. Barnes' 
August A. Busch 111. 
Royce S. Caldwell' Toni Rembe' 
Ruben R. Cardenas' 
William P. Clark. 
Martin K. Eby, Jr.' 
Herman E. Gallegos' 

. .............. . 
Charles F. Knight' 
Lynn M. Martin' 

John B. McCoy' 
Mary S. Metz' 

Joyce M. Roche" 
Richard M. Rosenberg' 

Carlos Slim Helu'. 

S. Donley Rtchey. 
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Jess T. Hay* 
James A. Henderson' 
Bobby R. inman' 

* by power of attorney 

Laura DAndrea Tyson' 
Patricia P. Upton' 

. 

<PAGE> 

EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Securhies and 
Exchange Commission (SEC). are incorporated herein by reference as e*ibits 
hereto. Unless othelwise indicated, all exhibids so incorporated are from 
File No. 1-8610. 

Exhibit 
Number 

5 a  Restatea Cen,ficate of Incorporation filea wnn tne Secretary of 
State of Delaware on April 28 1998 (Exn o t  3-a to Form 1 0 4  aatea 
March31 1998) 

3-b Certifcate 01 Designation. f.kd with tne Secretary of State of 

Bylaws darea &ne 26, 1998 (Exhibit 3-c to Form lo-< for 1998 ) 

PursLant to Regu at on S-K, tem 601 (b)(4)( ,I)(A) no nstrument 

Delaware on March 31 1997 (Exn on 3-b to Form 10-K for 1997 ) 

3-c 

4 a  
wnch defines tne rignts of ho ders of long-term debt of tne 
registrant or any of its conso iaatm subaidlanes IS fled heranth 
PursLant 10 tn s regLiation tne registrant hereby agrees to furn sn 
a copy of any such instrument to lne SEC Lpon request 

4 b  S~pport Agreement dated Novemoer 10 1986, ceween SBC ana SBC 
CommLnications Capnal Corporation (Exhibd 4 b  to Reg Strat on 
Statement No 3 5 1  1669) 

Resolutions guaranteeing CeRain ob1 gations of Pacific Telesis 
Group (ExhotbgtoForm 10-dfor 1997) 

4-c 

4 d  Guaranty of certain obligations of Pacific Bell Telephone Company and 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company. 

4 e  Guaranty of certain obligations of A m e r k h  Capital Funding 
Corporation, liiinois Bell Telephone Company, indiana Bell Telephone 
Company, Inc., Michigan Bell Telephone Company, The Ohio Bell 
Telephone Company, Pacific Bell Telephone Company, Southern New 
England Telecommunications Corporation, The Southern New England 
Telephone Company, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company. Wisconsin 
Bell, Inc. 

10-a Short Term incentive Plan. (Exhibit 10-at0 Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10-b Senior Management Long Term Incentive Plan. (Exhibit 10-b to Form 
10-K for 1992.) 

10-c Supplemental Life Insurance Plan. (Exhibit 1O-c to Form 10-Kfor 
1997.) 

10-d Supplemental Retirement Income Plan. (Exhibit 10-d to Form 10-K 
for 1997.) 

10-e Senior Management Deferred Compensation Plan (effective for Units of 
Participation Having a Unh Start Date Prior to January 1, 1988), 
revised July30, 1993. (Exhibit 10.5 to Registration Statement No. 
33-54795.) 

10-1 Senior Management Deferred Compensation Plan of 1988 (effective for 
Units of Participation Having a Unit Start Date of January 1, 1988 or 
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later). revised July 30, 1993. (Exhibit 10.6 to Registration 
Statement No. 33-54795.) 

10-Kfor 1986.) 
10-g Senior Management Long Term Disability Plan. (Exhibit 10-1 to Form 

10-h Salary and Incentive Award Deferral Plan. 

104 Financial Counseling Program. (Exhibit 10-i to Form 10-Kfor 
1997.) 

10-1 Supplemental Health Plan. (Exhibit 10-1 to Form 1DKfor 1997.) 

10-k Retirement Plan for Non-Employee Directors. (Exhibt 10-k to Form 
10-K for 1997.) 

and its directors and officers. (Appendix 1 to Definitive Proxy 
Statement dated March 18, 1987.) 

and certain officers of SBC's subsidiaries (Exhibit 10-p to Form 10-K 
for 1988.) 

10-1 Form of Indemnity Agreement, effective July 1, 1986, between SBC 

10-m Forms of Change of Control Severance Agreements for officers of SBC 

10-n Forms of Change of Control Severance Agreements for officers of SEC 
and certain officers of SBC's subsidiaries (Approved November 21, 
1997). (Exhibit 10-nto Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10.0 Stock Savings Plan. 

10-p 1992 StockOption Plan. 

1O-q Officer Retirement Savings Plan. (Exhibit 10-q to Form 10-K for 
1997.) 

10-r 1996 Stockand incentive Plan. 

IO-s Non-Employee Director Stock and Deferral Plan. (Exhibit 10-s to 
Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10-1 Pacific Telesis Group Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployee 
Directors. (Exhibit lOgg to Form 10-Kfor 1996 of Pacific Telesis 
Group (Reg. I-8609).) 

10-t(i)Resolutions amending the Pian, effective November 21, 
1997. (Exhibit IO-v(i) to Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10-u Pacific Telesis Group Outside Directors' Deferred Stock Unit Plan. 
(Exhibit 1000 to Form 10-Kfor 1995 of Pacific Telesis Group (Reg 
1-8609).) 

10-v Pacific Telesis Group 1996 Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan. 
(Exhibit lOqq to Form 10-K for 1996 of Pacific Telesis Group (Reg. 
1-8609).) 

10-v(i)Resolutions amending the Plan, effective November 21, 1997. 
(Exhibit 10-v(i) to Form 10-Kfor 1997.) 

10-w Pacific Telesis Group 1994 Stock Incentive Plan. (Attachment A to 
Pacific Telesis Group's 1994 Proxy Statement filed March 11, 
1994. and amended March 14and March 25, 1994.) 

1 O-w(i)Reso&t on5 arneno ng me Plan effective JanLaty 1, 1995 
(Aiiacnment A lo  Pacif c Te esis GroLp's 1995 Proxy 
Statement. filed Marcn 13, 1995) 

10-x Pacific Tees s GroJp Nonemployee D rector Stock Opt on Pan 
(Exniat A to Pacif c Te esis GroLp's 1990 Proxy Statement f; ed 
February 26 1990 1 

1O-x( )ResolJtlons amending the Pan effective Apr 1, 1994 
(Exh b t  lOa((i)to Form 10-Kfor 199401 Pacific Telesis 
Grow (Reg 1-8609) ) 

10-y Agreement Regard ng Change in Controt, dated as of January 19 1994. 
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between Ameritech and Richard C. Notebaert. twether w lh  a schedule , ~~~ ~~ ~~ ~ ~~~~~~~ ~ 

identifying another agreement in the same form (Erhibit lOmm to Form 
10-Kfor1993, FiieNo. 1-8612). 

12 

13 

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

Portions of SBC's Annual Report to shareowners for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 1999. Only the information incorporated by 
reference into this Form 10-K is included in the exhibt. 

21 Subsidiaries of SBC. 

23a Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. 

23-b Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP 

24 Powers of Attorney. 

27-a Financial Data Schedule - December 31, 1999 

27-b Restated Financial Data Schedule - September 30, 1999. 

27-c Restated Financial Data Schedule - June 30, 1999. 

27-d Restated Financial Data Schedule - March 31, 1999. 

27-e Restated Financial Data Schedule - December 31, 1998. 

27-f Restated Financial Data Schedule - September 30, 1998. 

27-9 Restated Financial Data Schedule - June 30, 1998. 

27-h Restated Financial Data Schedule - March 31, 1998. 

27-i Restated Financial Data Schedule - December 31, 1997. 

99-a Report of independent Accountants Arthur Andersen LLP 

99-b Annual Report on Form 11-K for the SBC Savings Pian for the year 1999 
to be flled under Form 10-WA. 

9 9 c  Annual Report on Form 11-Kfor the SEC Savings and Security Plan for 
the year 1999 to be filed under Form 10-WA. 

9 9 d  Annual report on Form 11 -K for the Ameritech Savings Plan for 
Salaried Employees for the year 1999 io be filed under Form 1 0-KIA. 

99-e Annual report on Form 11-K for the Ameritech Savings and Security 
Pian for Non-Salaried Employees for the year 1999 to be filed under 
Form 10-WA. 

</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
sTYPEsEX-4 
sSEQUENCEs2 
cDESCRIPTION>GUARANTEE UNDERTAKING OF SEC 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT 4-d 

GUARANTEE UNDERTAKiNG 

SBC COMMUNICATIONS. INC. 
OF 

I, the Assistant Treasurer of SEC Communications Inc. (the '"Corporation"), 
pursuant to the authority granted to me in the Schedule of Authoruations of the 
Corporation. dated as of December 19, 1997, hereby undertake on behalf of the 
Corporation for the benefit of the respectwe holders of the Debt Securities (as 
defined below). as follows: 

(1) The Corporation hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the 
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punctual and full payment of ail amounts payable by each of Pacific Bell 
("PacBell") and Southwestern Bell Telephone Company ("SWBeli") under each of the 
outstanding Debt Securities as and when the same shall become due and payable 
(whether at stated maturity, by declaration of acceleration, call for 
redemption, repayment at the option of the holder or otherwise, in accordance 
with the terms of each Debt Security and of each indenture under which such 
securlty was issued) (the "Guarantee"). 

(2) The Guarantee with respect to each outstanding Debt Security will 
continuously remain in effect until the entire principal of (and premium, if 
any) and interest, if any, on such Debt Security shall have been paid in full. 

(3) The Guarantee will constitute the direct, absolute and unconditional, 
unsubordinated and unsecured obligation of the Corporation ranking pari passu 
with all of its unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. 

(4) The holders of each Debt Security are entitled to enforce their rights 
under the indenture relating to such security directly against the Corporation, 
without first instituting a prmeeding against the issuer of such security or 
any other person or entity, upon any event of defauil in payment of principal, 
or premium, if any, or interest, if any, on such security (whether at stated 
maturity, by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption, repayment at the 
option of the holder or otherwise). 

(5) This Guarantee undertaking is enforceable to the fullest &ent 
permitted by law. 

<PAGE> 

(6) For the purposes of this Guarantee undertaking, the term "Debt 
Securities" shall mean the following: (a) Pacbell's Ten Year 7 114% Notes due 
July 1, 2002, Twelve Year 6 114% Notes due March 1,2035 Thirty Year 6 718% 
Debentures due August 15,2023, Thirty-Three Year 7 118% Debentures due March 15, 
2026, Forty Year 7 112% Debentures due February 1, 2033, Forty-One Year 6 5/8% 
Debentures due October 15,2034, Thirty-Six Year 6% Debentures due November 1, 
2002 and the Thirty-Five Year 6 1/2% Debentures due July 1,2W3; and (b) 
SWBell's Seven Year 6 118% Notes due March 1, 2000, Eight Year 6 318% Notes due 
April 1,2001. Twelve Year 6 518% Notes due April 1, 2005, Folly Year 6 718% 
Debentures due February 1.201 1, Twenty-two Year 7% Debentures due July 1,2015, 
Thirty Year 7 518% Debentures due March 1,2023. Thirty-Two Year 7 114% 
Debentures due July 15, 2025. its Fifty Year 6 718% Debentures due March 31, 
2045. Thilty-Six Year 5 7/8% Debentures due June 1,2003, Forty Year 5 38% 
Debentures due June 1, 2006 and it Forty Year 6 314% Debentures due June 1, 
2008. 

(7) The Guarantee is effective on the date hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Guarantee undertaking 

Dated: November 8, 1999 

/s/ Roger Wohlert 

Name: Roger Wohlert 
Title: Assistant Treasurer 
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GUARANTEE UNDERTAKiNG 

THE ASSiSTANT TREASURER 

SBC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

OF 

OF 

I, the Assistant Treasurer of SBC Communications Inc. (the"Corp0ration"). 
pursuant to the authority granted to me in the Schedule of Authorizations of the 
Corporation, dated as of November 19. 1999. hereby undertake on behaif of the 
Corporation for the beneM of the respective holders of the Subject Debt 
Securities (as defined below), as follows 

(1) The Corporation hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees, as 
long as ali of the outstanding shares of stock of a Subsidiary, as defined 
below, are owned. directly or indirectly, by the Corporation the punctual and 
full payment of all amounts payable by such Subsidiary Southwestern Bell 
Telephone Company, Pacific Bell Telephone Company, The Southern New England 
Telephone Company, Southern New England Telecommunications Corporation. 
Ameritech Capital Funding Corporation. The Ohio Bell Telephone Company, 
Wisconsin Bell. Inc.. Michigan Bell Telephone Company, Indiana Bell Telephone 
Company Inc.. and illinois Bell Telephone Company (each, a "SubsidiaF/'). under 
each of the outstanding Debt Secuilies as and when the same shall become due 
and payable (whether at Stated maturity, by declaration of acceleration, call 
for redemption, repayment at the option of the holder or otherwise, in 
accordance with the terms of each Debt Security and of each indenture under 
which such security was issued) (the "Guarantee"). In the event the Corporation 
sells. transfers or otherwise disposes of any percentage of its stock ownership 
of a Subsidiary, and, as a result of such sale, transfer or other disposition, 
such Subsidiary is no longer a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, then 
this Guarantee shall expire immediately and the Corporation shall be released 
immediately from any and all of its obligations hereunder. 

(2) Subject to the provision of Section (1) hereof, the Guarantee with 
respect to each outstanding Debt Security will continuously remain in effect 
until the entire principal of (and premium, if any) and interest, if any, on 
such Debt Securttyshall have been paid in full. 

(3) The Guarantee will constitute the direct, absolute and unconditional, 
unsubordinated and unsecured obligation of the Corporation ranking pari passu 
with all of its unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. 

<PAGE> 

(4) The holders of each Debt Security are entitled to enforce their rights 
under the indenture relating to such security directly against the Corporation. 
without first instituting a proceeding against the issuer of such security or 
any other person or entity. upon any event of default in payment of principal, 
or premium. if any, or interest, if any, on such security (whether at stated 
maturity. by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption, repayment at the 
option of the holder or otherwise). 

permitted by law. 

Securities" shall mean the following: 

(5) This Guarantee undertaking is enforceable to the fullest extent 

(6) For the purposes of this Guarantee undertaking, the term "Debt 

See enclosed Exhibit A 

(7) The Guarantee is effective on the date hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, i have executed this Guarantee undertaking. 
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SBC SALARY AND 
INCENTIVE AWARD DEFERRAL PLAN 

1. Pumose. The DurDose of the Salarv and Incentive Award Deferral Plan 
(the"'Plan") is t i  provide Eligible Employees with a means for deferring 
the receipt of income. 

2. Definitions. For purposes of this Plan, the following words and phrases 
shall have the meanings indicated, unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise: 

Base Salary ' Base Salay. or Sa an/ shall mean tne El gible 
Employees annLal base sa ary exclJding commissions, ump-sLrn ment 
payments in lieu of salary and TEAM Awards, and before reduction aLe 
to any conlrlDution p-rsuant to this P an or reducl on pursuant to 
any other deferral plan of SBC 

Chairman '"Chairman sha mean the Cha rman 01 tne Boara of SBC 
Communicatons Inc 

Committee "Comm nee'shal mean the numan Resources Commmee of 
the Boara of SBC Communications Inc 

Eligible Empoyee 
non-Officer employee of any SBC company who 1s designate0 oy the 
Cha rman as eligmle to partic pate n me Plan 

Offcer '"Officer shal mean an IndivldJal wno is oeslgnated by 
tne Cha rman as elig n e  to pan clpale In the Pan who is an 
elected officer of SBC or of any SBC sLbsid ary (direct or 
Ina rect) 

SBC "SBC sha I mean SBC Communical ons Inc 

SBC Shares 'SBC Snares" shal mean snares of SBC common stock 

Eligible Empoyee shall mean an Offcer or a 

3 E igibil ty Each E .gible Employee sha I be eligiD e to pan cipate in 
me Sa ary and Incentive Awara Deferra P an (the "Plan') 

4. Participation 

la) Prior to the beginning of any calendar year, an Eligible Employee may 
elect to participate in the Plan by directing that up to 50% of his 
or her Base Salary andlor all or part of his or her short-term andlor 
long-term awards under the Short Term Incentive Plan andlor under the 
Senior Management Long Term Incentive Plan andlor its successor plan, 
the 1996 Stock and Incentive Plan, which would othelwise be paid 
currently to the employee in such calendar year, shall be credited to 
a deferred account subject to the terms of the Plan. In no event, 
however. shall the part of Salary or of any award credited to the 
Plan during any calendar year be less than $1,000 (which in the case 
of an award shall be based on valuation at the time the award would 
otherwise be paid). Any Base Salary deferral hereunder is condnioned 
upon a 30% Base Salary deferral election in the Stock Savings Pian. 

(b) Such an election to participate in the Plan shall be in the form of a 
document executed by the employee and tiled with SBC. An election 
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related to Salary or awards otherwise payable currently in any 
calendar year shall become irrevocable on the last day prior to the 
beginning of such calendar year. A new election to participate in the 
Plan shall be made annually. 

5. Deferred Accounts 

(a) Deferred amounts related to Salary or awards which would otherwise 
have been distributed to the Eligible Employee in cash shall be 
credited to the employee's account and shall bear interest at the 
applicable Declared Rate on the balance from month-to-month in such 
account. The interest will be credited monthly to the account at 
one-tweiRh of the annual Declared Rate for that calendar year 
compounded quarterly. The Declared Rate for each calendar year will 
be determined by the Senior Vice President-Human Resources, with the 
concurrence of the Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief 
Financial Officer. and will be announced on or before January 1 of 
the applicable calendar year. However, in no event will the Declared 
Rate for any calendar year be less than the Moody's Corporate Bond 
Yield Average-Monthly Average Corporales as published by Moody's 
Investots Service, Inc. (or any successor thereto for the month of 
September before the calendar year in question, or, if such yield is 
no longer published, a substantially similar average selected by the 
Senior Vice President-Human Resources). 

In addition, if the employee's account under the Bell System Senioi 
Management Incentive Award Deferral Plan ("Predecessor Pian") was 
transferred to an account under this Plan as of January 1,  1984, the 
effectinre date of this Plan, then the employee's account under this 
Plan shall be credited as of such date with the amount credited to 
the employee's account under the Predecessor Plan as of December 31 
1983, and such amount shall bear interest in accordance with the 
terms ofthis Plan. 

(b) Deferred amounts related to awards which would otherwise have been 
distributed in SBC shares shall be credited to the employee's account 
as deferred SBC Shares. The employee's account shall also be credited 
on each dividend payment date for SBC Shares with an amount 
equivalent to the dividend payable on the number of SBC Shares q u a i  
to the number of deferred SBC Shares in the employee's account on the 
record date for such dividend. Such amount shall then be converted to 
a number of additional deferred SBC shares determined by dividing 
such amount by the price of SBC Shares, as determined in the 
following sentence. The price of SBC Shares related to any dividend 
payment date shall be the closing price on the New York Stock 
Exchange ("NYSE") for SBC Shares on the dividend payment date, or the 
trading day immediately preceding such dividend payment date if the 
NYSE is closed on the dividend payment date. 

(c) In the event of any SBC common stock dividend or split occurring 
after January 1,1987, employees' accounts will automatically be 
credited with additional SBC Shares necessary to reflect such stock 
dividend or split. In the event of any other change in outstanding 
SBC common stock by reason of any recapilalization, merger, 
consolidation, combination or exchange of shares or other Similar 
corporate change, the Board of Directors shall make such adjustments, 
if any, that it deems appropriate in the number of deferred SBC 
Shares then credited to employees' accounts. Any and all such 
adjustments shall be conciusive and binding upon all parties 
concerned. 

6. Distribution 

(a) At the time an Eligible Employee makes an election to participate in 
the Pian, the employee shall ais0 make an election with respect to 
the distribution (during the employee's lifetime or in the event of 
the employee's death) of the amounts to be credited to the employee's 
deferred account during the upcoming calendar year. Such an election 
related to awards otherwise payable currently in any calendar year 
shall become irrevocable on the last day prior to the beginning of 
such calendar year. Amounts credited as cash plus accumulated 
interest shall be distributed in cash; amounts credited as deferred 
SBC Shares shall be distributed in the form of an equal number of SBC 

30 of 144 6/12/00415 PM 



Edgar Filing hnp:Nwww.shareholder.comNisitor!i/edgar 00-000018&CompanyID=SBC&header=A&foote1=A 

W w 
Shares; provided, however, any fractional shares shall be credited as 
federal tax withholding. 

(b) An employee may elect to receive the amounts credited to the 
employee's account with respect to Salary or with respect to each 
award to be paid in the upcoming calendar year in one payment or in 
some other number of approximately equal annual installments (not 
exceeding 15). The first installment (or the single payment if the 
employee has so elected) shall be paid within €4 days following the 
date specified in such election 

(c) Notwithstanding an election pursuant to Paragraph (b) of this Section 
6, all amounts then credited to the employee's accounts shall be paid 
immediately in a single payment if an employee is discharged for 
cause by his or her employing company, or if an employee othelwise 
ceases to be employed by his or her employing company and engages in 
cornpetition with SBC or any direct or indirect subsidiary thereof or 
with any business with which a subsidiary of SBC or an affiliated 
company has a substantial interest (wllectively referred to herein 
as an "Employer Business"), or becomes employed by a governmental 
agency having jurisdiction over the activities of SBC or any of its 
subsidiaries. For purposes hereof, engaging in compettion with any 
Employer business shall mean engaging by the employee in any business 
or activity in the same geographical market where the same or 
substantially similar business or activity is being carried on as an 
Employer business. Such term shall not include owning a 
nonsubstantial publicly traded interest as a shareholder in a 
business that competes with an Employer business. However, engaging 
in competition with an Employer business shall include representing 
or providing consulting services to, or being an employee of, any 
person or entity that is engaged in competition with any Employer 
business or that takes a position adverse to any Employer business. 
Further. engaging in competition with an Employer business would 
result if the employee either engages directly in competiive 
activity or in any capacity in any location becomes employed by, 
associated with, or renders service to any company, or parent or 
affiliate thereof. or any subsidiary of any of them, if any of them 
is engaged in competition with an Employer business, regardless of 
the position or duties the employee takes and regardless of whether 
or not the employing company, or the company that the employee 
becomes associated with or renders service to, is itself engaged in 
direct competition with an Employer business 

(d) An employee may designate pursuant to the SBC Rules for Employee 
Beneficiary Designations as may hereafter be amended from time to 
time ("Rules") that. in the event the employee should die before full 
payment of all amounts credited to the employee's accounts, the 
balance of all deferred amounts shall be distributed in one payment 
or in some other number of approximately equal annual installments 
(not exceeding 5) to the beneficiary or beneficiaries designated in 
writing by the employee. If no designation has been made or if all 
designated beneficiaries predecease the employee or die prior to 
complete distribution of all of the employee's amounts hereunder, 
then the balance of such amounts be shall be distributed according to 
the Rules. The first installment (or single payment if the employee 
has so elected) shall be paid within 60 days following the month of 
death 

(e) Installments subsequent to the first installment to the employee, or 
to a beneficiary. shall be paid on the date established in 6(b) or 
6(d) in each succeeding calendar year until the entire amount 
credited to the employee's deferred account shall have been paid. 
Deferred amounts held pending distribution shall continue to be 
credited with interest or additional deferred SBC Shares, as 
applicable. determined in accordance with Section 5(a) or 5(b). 

(0 The obligation to make distribution of deferred amounts credited to 
an employee's account during any calendar year, plus the addnional 
amounts credited on such deferred amounts pursuant to Section 5(a) or 
5(b), shall be borne by SBC or the applicable employing company which 
othewise would have paid the related award currently. However, the 
obligation to make distributions with respect to deferred amounts 
which are related to amounts credited to an employee's account as of 
the effective date of the Plan pursuant to Section 5(a). and with 
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respect to which no SBC company would otherwise have paid the related 
award currently, shall be borne by the company which employed the 
employee on the effective date of the Plan. 

(9) For the purpose of this Section 6, an election described in Paragraph 
(a) or a beneficiary designation described in Paragraph (d) made 
under the wmparable provisions of the Predecessor Plan shall be 
considered as an election or beneficiary designation, respectively, 
made under this Section 6. 

(h) Notwithstanding the previous provisions of this Section 6, at any 
time during the calendar year prior to the calendar year during which 
an award deferred under the provisions of the Plan is scheduled for 
distribution. a participant my change his or her previous election(s) 
applicable to such award to further defer the commencement of 
distribution of such award to a subsequent calendar year, and in such 
case to also change the number of installments applicable to the 
distribution of the award. Amounts with respect to which the 
participant's election(s) are modified in accordance with the 
provisions of this Section 6(h) shall continue to be subject to all 
provisions of this Plan including further distribution modifications 
in accordance with the provisions of this Section 6(h) 

7. Amendment and Tenination. This Plan may be modified or terminated at any 
time in accordance with the provision of SBC's Schedule of Authorizations. 
but such changes or termination shall not adversely affect the rights of 
any Eligible Employee, without his or her consent, to any benefit under 
the Plan to which such employee may have previously become entitled prior 
to the effective date of such change or termination. 

8. Miscellaneous 

(a) Unsecured General Creditor. The amounts deferred hereunder shall 
be held in the general funds of SBC. SBC shall not be required to 
reserve, or otherwise set aside, funds for the payment of such 
amounts 

(b) Non-Assignability. The rights of an employee to any deferred amounts 
plus the additional amounts credited pursuant to Section 5(a). 5(b) 
and 5(c) shall not be subject to assignment by the employee. 

(c) Administration. The Committee shall be the sole administrator ofthe 
Plan and will administer the Plan, interpret, construe and apply its 
provisions in accordance with Rs terms. The Committee shall further 
establish, adopt or revise such rules and regulations as it may deem 
necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. All 
decisions of the Commiitee shall be binding unless the Board of 
Directors should determine otherwise. 
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STOCK SAViNGS PLAN 

Section 1 -Statement of Purpose 

The purpose of the Stock Savings Plan ("Plan") is to increase employee 
stock ownership and to provide retirement and short-term savings 
distributions to a select group of management employees consisting of 
Eligible Employees of SEC Communications inc. (the "Company-) and its 
Subsidiaries ("Participating Companies"). 

Section 2 - Definitions 

For the purposes of this Pian, the following words and phrases shaii have 
the meanings indicated, unless the context cleariy indicates otherwise: 

Afler-Tax Account. "After-Tax AccounT' means the account maintained on an 
after-tax basis on the books of account of the Company for each 
Participant for each Savings Unit to which ARer-Tax Amounts are credited. 
After-Tax Accounts are available only for Savings Units commenced prior to 
January 1,1995. 

After-Tax Amount. "After-Tax Amount" means contributions made on an 
After-Tax basis with respect to a Savings Unit commenced prior to January 
1, 1995 under this Pian. 

Agreement. '"Agreement" means the written agreement entitled "Stock Savings 
Pian Enrollment Form" and/or, effective on or after January 1, 1995, the 
written agreement entlied '"Short Term Contribution Form" that shall be 
entered into by the Company and a Participant to carry out the Pian with 
respect to such Participant. The Company may adopt any form for such use 
or modify any such form. 

Base Compensation. '"Ease Compensation" is comprised of the following types 
of the Employee's compensation. before reduction due to any contribution 
pursuant to this Pian or reduction pursuant to any deferral pian of 
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Employer, including but not limited to a pian that includes a qualified 
cash or deferred arrangement under Section 4Ol(k) of the Internal Revenue 
Code ("Code"), all as determined by the Company: 

(a) annual base salary; 
(b) wmmissions; and 
(@the annual award identified as a "Team Award by the Company, 

including any individual award identified by the Company as an 
"Individual Discrtiionary Award made in connection therewith (the 
"IDA). or any comparable awards, if any, identified by the Company to 
be used in lieu of the Team Award and the IDA. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Base Compensation does not include: 

(a) zone allowances or any other geographical differential and (b) 
payments made for unused vacation or other paid days off that were 

Beneficiary. '"Beneficiary" means the person or persons designated as 

not used. 

such in accordance with Section 8 of this Plan. 

Chairman. "Chairman" means the Chairman of the Board of SBC 

Communications inc. 
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Company Match Rate Expressed as a Percent. "Company Match Rate Expressed 
as a Percenv means eighty percent (80%). or such higher percentage as may 
be determined by the HRC, in its sole discretion, at any time, or such 
lower percentage as may be determined by the HRC. in its sole discretion, 
and announced to affected Eligible Employees prior to the Unit Start Date 
with respect to a Savings Unit. 

Disability. "DiabiMy" means inabilty to work due to being 

physically disabled. 

Eligible Employee. "Eligible Employee" means an Employee of Employer who 
(a) is in active service on a regular, full-time salaried basis (excluding 
term or contract Employees). (b) is, as determined by the Company, a 
member of Employefs "select group of management or highly Compensated 
employees" within the meaning of the Employment Retirement income Security 
Act of 1974, as amended, and regulations thereunder ("ERISA), (c) (i) 
holds a 3rd level or higher management position, ail as determined by the 
Company, and satisfies any employment status required by the HRC or the 
Chairman, or (ii) has an employment status which has been approved bv the 
Chairman to be eligible to participate in this Plan, and (d) continuously 
maintains the employment status upan which eligibility to participate in 
this Plan was based; provided, however, the HRC or the Chairman may, from 
time to time, include or exclude any Employee or group of Employees from 
being deemed an "Eligible Employee" under this Pian. 

In addition. any Employee that holds options to acquire shares of AirTouch 
Communications, Inc., or ordinary shares or American Depository Shares of 
Vcdafone AirTouch plc (or any similar rights), under the Pacific Telesis 
Group Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Rights Plan or any other stock 
option pian of Employer as of December 15 of a particular year shall not 
be eligible to participate in this Plan for the foiiming calendar year. 
and any previously executed Agreement shall be voided. Any employee of 
Ameritech Corporation, or any corporation, partnership, venture or other 
entity in which Ameritech Corporation holds at least a 50% interest, shall 
not be an Eligible Employee until othelwise provided by the HRC or the 
Chairman. 

Employee. "Employee" means any person empioyed by Employer on a regular 
full-time salaried basis, excluding Employees hired for a fried maximum 
term and excluding Employees who are neither citizens nor permanent 
residents of the United States, all as determined by the Company. 
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Employer. "Employer means SBC Communications Inc. or any of its 

Subsidiaries. 

Fair Market Value or FMV. "Fair Market Value" or ''FMV' means the closing 
price on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE) for the Stock on the 
relevant date, or if such date was not a trading day, the next preceding 
trading date, all as determined by the Company. A trading day is any day 
that the Stock is traded on the NYSE. In lieu of the foregoing, the HRC 
may select any other index or measurement to determine the FMV of the 
Stock under the Plan. 

HRC. "HRC means the Human Resources Committee of the Board of 

Directors of SEC. 

Options. '"Options" shall mean the options to purchase Stockwhich shall 

.- 

be issued to a Participant pursuant to Section 9. 

Participant. "Participant" means an Employee or former Employee 

participating in the Plan. 

<PAGE> 

Plan Year. "Plan Yeaf means the calendar year 

Pre-Tax Account "PreTax AccoJnr means the accodnt ma ntained on a 
pretax bass on the bwks of accobnt of the Company for each Participant 
for each Savings Lln t 10 whicn Pre-Tax Amounts are crednea 

Pre Tax Amount '"Pie-Tax Amount' means tne contr DJtions made by a 
Part cipant on a pre-tax basis with respect to a Sav ngs Unit unaer this 
Plan 

Retirement "Ret<rement" means the terminat on of a Participant's 
employment wan Emp oyer for reasons other than deatn on or after the 
ear ier of tne following aates (1 ) tne aate Partic pant is e ,gible to 
retire wth an mmediate pens on pLrsLant to the SBC S ~ p p  ementa 
Ret rement ncome Pan ( SRIP). or (2) the oate tne Parlicipant has 
attained one of the following comb nations of age and service at 
terminal on of employment on or after Apr I 1, 1997 except as otnermse 
ndicatm be ow 

Net Cred lea Service Age 

10 years or more 
20 years or more 
25 years or more 
30 years or more 

65 or older 
55 or older 
50 or o der 
Any age 

Wnn respect to a Participant who IS granted an EMP Servtce Pension Lnder 
ana pumant to tne prov sions of tne SBC Pension Benefit Pan - 
NOnDargaNnea Program Lpon lerm nation of Employment, tne term "Ret rement' 
sha I inc dde such Part ctpanl's lerm nation of emp oyment 

Retirement Alternative "Retrrement A ternative means wRn respect to 
any Sav ngs Lnit tne d str bR ons descrloed In Section 6 mat the P an 
proviaes oased upon a seleclion of sLch a ternative 

Ret rement D str but on '"Ret rement Distr but on" means tne 

distribution described in Section 6.1 

Rotational Work Assignment Company. " R W A C  shall mean any entity with 

which SBC Communications inc. or any of its Subsidiaries may have an 
agreement to provide an employee for a rotational work assignment. 
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Savings Unit. "Savings UnA" means the Participant's Pre-Tax Amount and/or 
ARer-Tax Amount, and associated Company matching contributions. which 
provide stated distributions pursuant to Section 6 or Section 7 of this 
Plan in accordance with the Participant's Agreement for such Savings Unit. 

<PAGE> 

Shares. "Shares" means an accounting entry representing a number of 

equivalent shares of Stock 

Short Term Incentive Award. An award paid under the Sholt Term Incentive 
Plan or an award under a similar plan intended by the Committee to be in 
lieu of an award under such Short Term Incentive Plan, including (a) the 
Key Executive Officer Short Term Award paid under the 1996 Stock and 
Incentive Pian and (b) payments made in 1998 under the Pacific Telesis 
Group Short Term incentive Plan ("PTGSTIP") to persons identified as 
"Officer level employees" by the HRC for purposes of this Plan. 

Specified Date. "Specified Date" means, with respect to any Savings Unit 
for which the ParticiDant elects the SDecified Date Alternative. the fixed 
date specified in the Agreement on which the Specified Date Distribution 
will commence. 

Specifed Date Anernat ve Spec fie0 Date Allernalive means mth 
respect to any Sav ngs Unit the distr OJtions descr bed in Sectson 7 that 
the P an provides basea upon a select.on of sucn altemat ve 

Specified Date DislribLtlon Specifiw Date Distnbuiion" means the 

distribution described in Section 7.1 

Stock. "StocK' means the common stock of SBC Communications Inc. 

Subsidiary. A '"Subsidiary" of the Company is any corporation. partnership, 
venture or other entity in which the Company has at least a 50% ownership 
interest. The HRC may at its sole discretion designate any other 
corporation, partnership, venture or other entity a Subsidiary for the 
purpose of participating in this Plan 

Team Award. The annual award identified as a "Team Award by the Company 
(or any comparable award identified by the Company as a replacement 
therefor), excluding any individual award made in connection therewith. 
Payments under the PTGSTIP made during 1998 to persons who are not 
identified as "Officer level employees" by the HRC for purposes of this 
Pian shall be deemed Team Awards under this Plan. 

Unii Period. "Unit Period means the calendar year with respect to which 
the Participant elects to participate in the Plan on a pre-tax basis 
andlor an after-tax basis. The Unit Period for a Savings Unit will 
commence on the Unit Start Date and end upon the earliest to m u r  of the 
following: (i) the last day of the calendar year which includes the Unit 
Start Date, (ii) when the Participant terminates employment or ceases to 
be an Eligible Employee, or (iii) upon termination of the Savings UnR. 

<PAGE> 

Unn Stan Date "un t Stan Dale means me aate for commencement of a 
g m n  Sav ngs -n#t Tne hi Start Date WII be January 1, and for a 
Sav ngs Unn cornprisea of a I or a pan on of a Pan cipant's Shon Term 
ncentive Award tne Unit Stan Date sha I be the day the Award would 

otherwise have wen pala 

Section 3 -Administration of the Plan 

The HRC shall be the sole administrator of the Plan and will administer 

31 of 144 6/12/00 4:15 PM 



Edgar Filing 

Y 

hap://www.shareholder.com~isiton;iedgar.. ~0-000018&CampanyID=SBC&header=A&foote 

W 

the Plan, interpret, construe and apply its provisions in accordance with 
its terms. The HRC shall further establish, adopt or revise such rules and 
regulations as it may deem necessary or advisable for the administration 
of the Plan. All decisions of the HRC shall be final and binding. 

Section 4 - Participation 

4.1 Election to Commence a Savings Unit. Any Eligible Employee may elect 
to commence a Savings Unit on a pre-tax basis by filing a completed 
Agreement with the Company prior to the Unit Start Date. Pursuant to said 
Agreement, the Eligible Employee shall elect the percentage of Base 
Compensation that shall comprise Participanrs Pre-Tax Amount. Such 
percentage shall remain in effect for the duration of the Unit Period even 
if Base Compensation should change. Such Agreement shall continue to be 
regarded as, and shall apply as, the Eligible Employee's election to 
commence each successive Savings Unit until the Company is advised in 
writing in accordance with the aforesaid time requirements by the Eligible 
Employee to the contrary. In the Agreement, the Participant shall also 
elect either the Retirement Alternative or the Specified Date Aitemative 
and the timing of distribution of Stock. 

The ParticiDanrs Dercentaae of Base Comcensation aDDiicable to a Savinas . .  
Lnfl mall be a whole percentage ana mdslbe a i  easi six percent (6%) an;d 
not more tnan thirty percent (30%) 

<PAGE> 

A Participant shall be permitted to contribute all or a portion of his 
Short Term Incentive Award as follows. A Participants election to 
contribute all or a portion of his Short Term Incentive Award which may be 
paid to a Participant by an Employer, shall be filed with the Company (on 
a form to be provided by the Company for such purpose) prior to the 
beginning of the calendar year during which such Award is earned (For 
Savings Units with Unit Start Date of January 1, 1998, or later, and for 
PTGSTIP payments that constitute Short Term lncentiie Awards, the election 
must be filed prior to the beginning of the calendar year during which 
such Award is paid), or such earlier time as may be established by the 
Chairman. The contribution shall be deemed to have taken place on the day 
the Award would otherwise have been paid. In the Agreement relating to the 
Award, the Participant shaii also elect either the Retirement Alternative 
or the Specified Date Alternative and the timing of distribution of Stock. 
This election is independent of the election for distribution of 
contributions associated with deferrals of Base Compensation. Such 
contribution of all or a portion of Participant's Short Term Incentive 
Award shall comprise a separate Savings Unit. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Short Term Incentive Awards or any portion thereof contributed 
to the Pian prior to January 1, 1995, shall be credited into a 1994 or 
prior Savings Unit@) as specified by the Participant. 

4.2 Termination of Election. A Participanrs election to participate in 
the Plan for the duration of the Unit Period is irrevocable upon the 
filing of his Agreement with the Company; provided, however, such election 
may be terminated with respect to Base Compensation not yet paid by mutual 
agreement in writing between the Participant and the Company. Such 
termination if approved shall be effective beginning the first day of the 
month following the execution of such mutual agreement. 

Section 5 - Pre-Tax ContributionslAfter-Tax ContributiondCompany Match 

5.1 ARer-Tax and/or Pre-Tax Account(s). The Company shall establish and 
maintain a separate Afler-Tax Account (for contributions pursuant to 
Savings Units commenced prior to January 1, 1995 only) andlor Pre-Tax 
Account for each Participant for each Savings Unit. On the first business 
day of each month. the Company shall credit each Participant's Pre-Tax 
Account with the number of Shares found by dividing the Participant's 
Pre-Tax Amount for the previous month by the FMV on the iast day of such 
previous month. Annual base salary shall be deemed contributed when 
earned; ail other amounts shall be deemed contributed when paid. 

Shares credited to Participant's Pre-Tax Account and/or Afler-Tax Account 
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are 100% vested at all times. 

Sbcn PreTax Account and or Aner-Tax AcwLnt. as appllcao e, shall be 
rwlrced by tne number of Shares corresponding to tne nLmber of shares of 
StocU dlstribbtea by the Company to me Partic pant or the Participant's 
Beneficiary w in  respect to SLch Savings Unn PJrsJant to this Plan 

5 2 Company Matcning Accodnt Tne Company shal also estao s n  ana 
malnta n a separate Match.ng Account for eacn Pan'c pant The Matchlng 
Account will nola tne Companfs matching contr OR on to tne Plan 
lmmed ate y following tne computat on of Ine Shares to oe added to each 
Participants Pre-Tax Account eacn month the Company shall credn each 
Participant s Matcning AccoLnt Wi lh  the nLmoer of Snares foJnd by taking 
the Company Match Rate Expressed as a Percent 1 m e s  tne Pan cipanrs 
Pre-Tax Amount for the prev OJS montn and dividing tne resLlting figure 
by tne FMV of the Stock on the as1 day of such previods month: provided 
however if the Partic.pant ,s concurrently partic.pating n tnis P.an ana 
(a) the match el g o e (oasic) pon on of the SBC Sav,ngs Plan or (b) the 
match eligiole pon on of any other qJa1if.m plan of Employer the 
matching contr bJtion sna ne creddw. pursdant to this Plan, wnn 
respect to no more tnan six percent (6%) of tne Participant's montnh, Base 
Compensat on ess the basic (matcn elig:o e) e ection percentage In such 
pan and provided fdrtner. noflever. Company matching contributions shall 
be pad, pursdant to tnis Plan and all plans of Employer combined. with 
respect to no more than s x percent (6%) of Participant's montnh, Ease 
Compensation Company Match snall only ne paid on Base Compensation 

5 3 D.v dends. Additional Snares shal. ne cred.ted to each Pan cipanrs 
Pie-Tax Account. After-Tax Account and Matching Account. respectwely. 
for d v dends on SlocK, on tne basis of the number of Shares creaited to 
each sucn Acco-nt on tne record date for sJch avidend 

Tne number of additional Snares to ne creditea lo each Account for any 
oivldend payment dale sha I be determined oy div a ng tne total d~ oends 
wnich WJld have OtheMliSe been payaole on the number of Shares recordea 
in eacn AccoJnt by the FMV on tne last nay of the montn containing the 
div dend record aate The aaa tional Shares sna11 ne cred ted to eacn ~~ ~ ~ ~~ ~ ~~ ~~ ~ ~~~ 

Account, as appropriate on the last day of the montn contain ng tne 
diviaena recora dale 

5.4 Vesting of Matching Account. A Participant's interest in his Matching 
Account shall vest at such time as Participant shall have five (5) years 
of service as reflected on the records of Employer; provided. however, the 
Matching Account of any Participant who was employed by Employer on 
December 31, 1988 shall be 100% vested at all times. Shares in the 
Matching Account relating to a Savings Unit shall not be available for 
distribution to the Participant until vested and: (i) for ten ( IO)  years 
after the Unit Period for such Savings Unit has ended and until the 
Participant is at least fifty-five (55) years of age, or (ii) until 
Participant's Retirement or other termination of employment (including 
death). Upon termination of employment, all unvested Shares shall be 
forfeited. 

5.5 Statement of Accounts. Each Participant will receive annual statements 
in such form as the Company deems desirable sening forth the balance of 
Shares standing to the credit of each of the Participant's Pre-Tax. 
After-Tax and Matching Accounts. 

Section 6 - Retirement Alternative 

Section 6 shall apply to the portions of ail Savings Units for which the 
Retirement Alternative is elected (Section 7 shall have no application to 
such portions of such Savings Units.) The distributions specified in this 
Section 6 shall be provided under the Retirement Allernatwe. 

<PAGE> 

39 of 144 6/12/00 4: lS  PM 



Edgar Filing hnp://~.shareholder.comNisitors/edgar. no-0000 18&CompanyID=SBC&header=A&fwter=A 

W W 

6.1 Retirement Distribution. Upon Retirement or, effective for Savings 
Units commenced on or after January 1,1995. the calendar year following 
Retirement if so elected by the Participant, with respect to a Savings 
Unit, the Company shall distribute to the Participant each year for up to 
fifteen (15) years, the number of years to be selected by Participant in 
his Agreement. beginning on the first day of the month nexl following the 
date of Retirement or during February of the year following Retirement if 
the calendar year following Retirement is elected for commencing 
distribution of Savings Units commenced on or after January 1,1995, and 
annually on such date thereafter, from Participant‘s Pre-Tax Account, 
After-Tax Account, and Matching Account, shares of Stock corresponding to 
the number of Shares in each such Account on such date divided by the 
number of distributions to be made immediately prior to each such 
distribution. During the payout period, each such Account shall be 
credaed with dividends in accordance with Section 5.3. 

The Participant shall elect the number of years of distribution of a 
Retirement Distribution no later than the end of the calendar year 
immediately preceding the first distribution. If a ParticipanYs Agreement 
fails to show an election as to the number of years of distributii of a 
Retirement Distribution, and an election is not made no later than the end 
of the calendar year immediately preceding the first distribution, such 
Participant will receive distribution in two annual installments beginning 
on the first of the month nexl following the date of Retirement or during 
February of the year following Retirement, whichever commencement date was 
previously elected by the Participant. 

In the event that a final determination shall be made by the Internal 
Revenue Service or any court of competent jurisdiction that. by reason of 
Retirement. a Participant has recognized gross income for Federal income 
tax purposes in excess of the Retirement Distribution installment actually 
distributed by the Company to which such gross income is attributable, the 
Company shall make a lump sum distribution to the Participant of shares of 
Stock correspanding to the remaining Shares of his Pre-Tax, After-Tax and 
Matching Accounts for any affected Savings Units. if a distribution is 
made to a Participant pursuant to this paragraph for any Savings Unit, no 
other distributions shall thereafter be made under this Plan with respect 
to such Savings Unit. 

Notwithstanding any election made by the Participant, the Company will 
distribute the Participanrs Retirement Distribution in the form of a lump 
sum distributiin if the FMV of his Pre-Tax plus After-Tax plus Matchins 
Accounts for a Savings Unit is less than $1 0,000 when distribution of the 
Retirement Distribution for such Savings Unit would dhewise commence. 

6.2 Termination Distribution. 

6.2(a) Termination of Employment Before Retirement. Upon any termination 
of employment of the Participant for reasons other than death or 
Disabiliy or Retirement, the Company shall distribute to the Participant, 
with respect to a Savings Unit, in a lump sum, shares of Stock 
corresponding to the vested portion of the Shares standing credited to his 
Pre-Tax. After-Tax and Matching Accounts for such Savings Unit determined 
as of the date of such termination of service (“Termination 
Distribution”) 

<PAGE> 

6.2(D) Termination of a Sav ngs Un t A Part& pant mall term.nate a 
Savings Un t f he terminates n’s e ec1.on to pan c pate #n me Plan rnth 
respect to a Sav ngs Lnl pursdant to Sectmn 4 2. howdhstandng any 
other provision 01 the Plan. d w n  such d.scontinJance. tne Partc pant 
mall mmediately cease to be ellg D e for any drstribLtion other than n.s 
Terminal on DistriDJtion w.th respect to that Savings Lnn (wn cn shall be 
d StribLtea dpon his severance of employment) except as pronded dnder 
Section 11.1 The Partlc pant sha I cont.nue to ne cred led mth aividenas 
on the Snares standing creditea to n.s Pre-Tax After-Tax and Matching 
Accounts as provided bnder Sect on 5 3 and to vest in Shares as provided 
cnder Section 5 4 wh..e ne remains n employment with the Emp oyer unti. 
payment of nis Terminal on D strlbLl.on However, no funner Participant 
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pretax or after-tax or Company contributions to this Plan shall be made 
pursuant to Sections 5.1 or 5.2 with respect to a Savings Unit after a 
Participant terminates such Savings Unit. 

6.2(c) Loss of Eligibility. In the event that the Participant ceases to be 
an Eligible Employee by reason of a change to an employment status which 
is not eligible to participate in this Plan, the Participant shall 
nevertheless continue participation in this Plan while he remains in 
employment with Employer; however, no further Participant pie-tax 
contributions or after-tax contributions, or Company matching 
contributions shall be made to this Plan pursuant to Sections 5.1 or 5.2 
subsequent to the date of such loss of eligibillty. 

6.3 Disability. In the event that a Participant suffers a Disability. 
pretax contributions andlor after-tax contributions and Company matching 
contributions that otherwise would have been credded to Participant's 
Pre-Tax Account. ARer-Tax and Matching Accounts, as applicable, in 
accordance with Sections 5.1 and 5.2 will continue lo be credited to such 
Accounts out of his disability payments (as used in this Plan, disability 
payments and disability benefits shall refer to only to Employer payments) 
at the same time and in the same amounts as they would have been credited 
if the Participant had not suffered a Disability for as long as he is 
eligible to receive monthly disability benefits equal to 100 percent of 
his monthly base salary at the time of his Disability. At such time as the 
Participant is not eligible to receive monthly disability benefits equal 
to 100 percent of his monthly Base Compensation at the time of his 
Disability, Participant pre-tax Contributions and/or after-tax 
contributions and Company matching contributions that dhewise would have 
been credited to the Accounts of the Participant in accordance with 
Section 5.1 and 5.2 shall cease. 

If the Participant recovers from his Disability and returns within shty 
(60) days theleaner to employment with Employer in an employment status 
which would make him eligible to participate in this Plan and prior to the 
end of the original Unit Period, the Participant shall continue or resume 
making pre-tax contributions andlor after-tax contributions, as the case 
may be, in accordance with Section 5.1 and the Company shall continue or 
resume making matching contributions, as the case may be, in accordance 
with Section 5.2 until the end of the original Unit Period. 

<PAGE> 

If the Participant recovers from his Disability. the Participant shall be 
treated as terminating service with Employer on the date of his recovery. 
unless within sixty (60) days thereafter he returns to employment with 
Employer in an employment status which makes him eligible to participate 
in this Plan. 

If a Participanrs Disability terminates by reason of his death. the 
rights of his Beneficiary shall be determined pursuant to Section 6.4 as 
if the Participant had not been disabled but rather had been in service on 
the date of his death and died on such date. If a Participants Disability 
terminates by reason of attainment of age 65, the Participant shall upon 
the attainment of age 65 be entitled to a Retirement Distribution 
determined pursuant to Section 6.1. If a Participanrs Disability 
terminates by reason of Retirement, the Participant shall be treated as 
having a Retirement on the date elected by the Participant and shall be 
entitled to a Retirement Distribution determined pursuant to Section 6.1 

6.4 Survivor Distribution. 

6 4(a) If a Partmpanl ales wn e tn SeNce w In Employer (of wn le 
suffermg from a Disab Lty) prior to el g D ~ i ty  for Retirement wrth 
respect to a Savlngs Un I bpon the Pan copant's aeath the Company wdl 
distr ode to the Panicipani's Bend c ary wlth respec1 io such Savings 
Und, snares of Stocd correspond ng to all of the Snares In Participants 
Pie-Tax. Aner-Tax ana Matching ACCOJntS D stnbLt on Sha occur in tne 
month fo O*Y ng the aale of aeath 

6 4(b) If a Participant des whlle n service afler eligm ity for 
Retirement wtth respect 10 a Savings ,nit buf prior to commencement of 
distr OUtiOn of a Retlrement D.slribLtion rnth respect to sucn Sav ngs 
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Una the Company WI I oslribble to me Pan c pant s Beneficiary the 
Stock that sLch Partic pants Benefciary would have recerved mth respect 
to sbch Savings Un t nao me Partic pant retired and commence0 to receive 
a Retirement Distriodtion on lne day prior to Sucn Panic.pant's oeath 
Such distributions shal De made n accoroance wlth the nbrnber of 
insta lments wnich the Pan cipanl nad elected for 0 slr~oution of his 
Retirement D str bdtlon 

6.4(c) if a Participant dies after Retirement but before commencement of 
distribution of a Retirement Distribution with respect to a Savings Unit, 
the Company wiii distribute to the Participant's Beneficiarythe 
installments that Participant would have received with respect to such 
Savings Unit had the Participant survived. Payments will commence 
effective with the Participant's death. Such distributions shall be made 
in accordance with the method of distribution which the Participant had 
elected for distribution of his Retirement Distribvtion. 

6.4(d) If a Participant dies after the commencement of payment of a 
Retirement Distribution with respect to a Savings Unit, the Company will 
distribute to the Participant's Beneficiary the remaining installments 
that would have been distributed to the Participant had the Participant 
survived 

<PAGE> 

Section 7 - Specified Date Alternative 

Section 7 shall apply to the portions of all Savings Units for which the 
Specified Date Alternative is elected. (Section 6 shaii have no 
application to such portions of such Savings Units.) The distributions 
specified in this Section 7 shaii be provided under the Specified Date 
Alternative 

7.1 Specified Date Distribution. If a Participant elects the Specified 
Date Alternative with respect to a Savings Unit, the Company shall 
distribute to the Participant each year for up to four (4) years, the 
number of years to be selected by Participant in his Agreement, beginning 
on the first day of the month Selected in his Agreement for commencement 
of distributions. and annually on such date thereafter, from Participant's 
Pre-Tax Acwunt. After-Tax Account, and Matching Account (to the extent 
available for distribution), shares of Stock corresponding to the number 
of Shares in each such Account on such date divided by the number of 
distributions to be made immediately prior to each such distribution. 
During the payout period, each such Account shall be credited with 
didends in accordance W'M Section 5.3. Shares of Stock corresponding to 
Shares in the Matching Account which are not immediately available for 
distribution shall be distributed to the Participant in a lump sum 
distribution as soon as practicable after such Shares become available for 
distribution. While such Shares remain in the Matching Account, such 
Account shall be credited with dividends on such Shares in acwrdance wRh 
Section 5.3. 

A Participant may elect, as the Specifled Date for a Savings Unit, the 
first day of any month after the January following the calendar year 
during which the Savings Unit commences. If the Participant elects an 
annual distribution, the Savings Unit shall be paid out in February 
following the end of the Unit Period or as soon thereafler as is 
practicable 

Notwithstanding any election made by the Participant, the Company will 
distribule the ParticipanYs Specified Date Distribution in the form of a 
lump sum distribution if the FMV of his Pre-Tax plus After-Tax plus 
Matching Accounts for a Savings Unit is less than $lO,WO when 
distribution of a Specified Date Distribution for such Savings Unit would 
othewise commence. 

7.2 Termination Distribution 

7.2(a) Termination of Employment Prior to Specified Date. Upon any 
termination of employment of the Participant for reasons otherthan death 
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or Disability or Retirement betore the Specired Date Selected for a 
Savings Unn the Company mall diSlrlDUte to tne Part cipant. wth 
respect 10 sLch Sau ngs Unit In a ump SJm snares of Stock corresponding 
to the vestm pon.on of the Snares slanoing credneo to his Pie-Tax 
After-Tax and Match ng Accodnts tor sucn Savings unn determinea as of the 
date of such lerminalion of SeN ce ("Termination Distr!Ddlon'J 
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7.2(b) Termination of a Savings Unit. The provisions of Section 6.2(b) 
shall apply with respect to the termination of any Savings UnR for which 
the Specified Date Alternative is selected. 

7.2(c) Loss of Eligibility. The provisions of Section 6.2(c) shall apply 
with respect to the loss of eligibility under any Savings Unit for which 
the Specified Date Alternative is selected. 

7.3 Disability. In the event that a Participant suffers a Disability, the 
provisions of Section 6.3 shall apply except that the provisions of the 
following paragraphs shall govern. 

If a Participam's DisaMlty terminates by reason of his death prior to 
the Specified Date. the rights of his Beneficiary shall be determined 
pursuant to Section 7.4 as if the Participant had not been disabled but 
rather had been in service on the date of his death and died on such date. 

If a Participant suffering from a Disability attains the Specified Date 
for a Savings Unit, the Participant shall be entitled to the Specified 
Date Distribution determined pursuant to Section 7.1. 

7.4 Survivor Distribution. 

7.qa) If a Participant dies prior to the commencement of distribution of 
the Specified Date Distribution with respect to a Savlngs Unit. upon the 
Participant's death the Company will distribute to the Participanrs 
Beneficiary with respect to such Savings Unit, shares of Stock 
corresponding to all of the Shares in Participanrs PreTax. After-Tax and 
Matching Accounts. Distribution shall occur in the month following the 
date of death. 

7.4(b) If a Participant dies after the commencement of payment of an 
Specified Date Distribution with respect to a Savings Unit, the Company 
will distribute to the Participanrs Beneficiarythe remaining 
installments of any such distribution that would have been distributed to 
the Participant had the Participant survived. 

Section 8 - Beneficiary Designation 

<PAGE> 

Each participant shall have the right, at any time, to designate pursuant 
to the SBC Rules for Employee Beneficiary Designations as may hereafter be 
amended from time to time ("Rules"), which Rules shall apply hereunder and 
are incorporated herein by this Reference, any person or persons as his 
Beneficiary or Beneficiaries (both primary as well as contingent) to whom 
distributions of Stock under this Pian shall bs made in the event of his 
death prior to complete distribution to Participant of the distributions 
due him under the Plan. Each Beneficiary designation shall become 
effective only when filed in writing with the Company during the 
Participant's lifetime on a form prescribed by the Company with w i l en  
acknowledgment of receipt. 

The filing of a new Beneficiary designation form will cancel ail 
Beneficiary designations previously filed. The spouse of a married 
Participant domiciled in a community propelty jurisdiction shall join in 
any designation of Beneficiary or Beneficiaries other than the spouse. 

If a Participant fails to designate a Beneficiary as provided above, or if 
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all designated Beneficiaries predecease the Participant or die prior to 
complete distribution of the Participant's distributions, then the Company 
shall direct the distribution of such distributions according to the 
Rules. 

Section 9 -Options 

9.1 Grants. The HRC shall determine at its discretion whether the Options 
issued pursuant to this Plan shall be nonqualified stock Options or 
incentive stock Options within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code. Any 
Options issued hereunder shall be non-qualified Options unless the HRC 
specifies prior to the Unit Start Date that they shall be incentive stock 
Options. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, any incentive 
stock Options issued under this Plan shall be issued and exercised in 
accordance with Section 422 of the Code. The Options may be issued in 
definitive form or recorded on the books and records of the Company for 
the account of the Participant, at the discretion of the Company. If the 
Company elects not to issue the Options in definitie form, they shall be 
deemed issued, and the Participants shall have all rights incident thereto 
as if they were issued on the dates provided herein, without further 
action on the part of the Company or the Participant. In addition to the 
terms herein, all Options shall be subject to such additional provisions 
and limitations as provided in any Administrative Procedures adopted by 
the HRC prior to the issuance of such Options. The number of Options 
issued to a Participant shall be reflected on the Participanrs annual 
statement of account, 

9.2 Term of Options. The Options may only be exercised: (a) afler the 
earlier of (i) the expiration of one year from date of issue or (ii) the 
Participant's termination of employment (only for Options issued on or 
after August 1, 1998). and (b) no later than the tenth anniversaly of 
their issue, and shall be subject to earlier termination as provided 
herein 

9.3 Exercise Price, The price per share of Stock purchasable under an 
Option shall be the Fair Market Value of the Stock on the date of 
issuance of the Options. 

<PAGE> 

9.4 Issuance of Options. February 1 and August 1 of each year shall each 
be an Option issuance date, unless Stock is not traded on the NYSE on such 
day in which event the immediate following day in which Stock is 50 traded 
shall be the Option issuance date. On each Option issuance date, each 
Participant shall receive two Options, or such higher number as may be 
determined by the HRC. in its sole discretion, at any time, or such lower 
number as may be determined by the HRC, in its sole discretion, and 
announced to Participants prior to the Unit Start Date with respect to a 
Savings Unit, for each Share credited to the Participant's Pre-Tax Account 
during the preceding six month periods. The number of Options to be 
received shall be determined by multiplying the number of Shares by the 
number of Options to be received for each Share and rounding up to the 
ne* whole number; provided, however, that no more than 200,000 Options 
shall be issued to any individual during the calendar year. No Share may 
be counted more than once for the issuance of Options and Options shall 
only be issued for Shares credited to a Savings Unit with respect to its 
Unit Period. 

in addition to the foregoing, the HRC may, at any time and in any manner, 
limit the number of Options which may be acquired as a result of the Short 
Term Incentive Award being contributed to the Plan. Further, except as 
otherwise provided by the HRC, in determining the number of Options to be 
issued to a Participant with respect to a Participant's contribution of a 
Short Term Incentive Award to the Plan and subsequent crediting of Shares, 
Options may be issued only with respect to an amount which dDes not exceed 
the target amount of such award (or such other portion of the award as may 
be determined by the HRC). 

Acwrdingiy, the following rules shall apply: 

Options To Be Issued With Respect To A Short Term Incentive Award 
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Contributed To The Plan. 

A Participant shall be permitted to contribute his Short Term 
Incentive Award, although paid after Retirement, into the Stock 
Savings Plan; and, subject to application of the rule in the 
following sub paragraph, Options may be issued thereon and on the 
dividends that would accumulate thereon applicable to the calendar 
year when the Short Term Award was placed into the Plan 

Participants Who Retire, Terminate Employment Or Terminate A 
Savings Unit. 

<PAGE> 

Options are calcd ated on AugLst 1 ana FebrJary 1 in each case for 
the pieced ng s x month periods base3 on the Snares posted to the 
Participants acco.ntS The AJgust 1 opt ons are for January through 
JJne contr bJtiOnS p i ~ s  1st qLarter and 2nd quaner div.oend 
eqdimlents The Febrhary 1 options are for A l y  through Decemwr 
contr outions p LS tne 3rd qLaner ann 4th qLarter aividena 
eqd:mlents f a Pan cipant retires terminates emp oyment or 
terminates a Sav ngs bnn dLr ng an ongoing savings penw, since the 
bnit Period ends dpon Ret.remen1. termination. etc , a aivideno 
equ valent mall be treateo as oeing paid wth respect to a Unn 
Per w (!.e., for pdrposes of receiving Options on sucn dtvidend 
equ valent) on y i f  the Participant is employed on any day of the 
iasl month of the qLaner precedcng paymenl of the d vooend, e g , 
one must ne emp oyed at east one oay in Decemwr .n oroer to receive 
Opt ons on the foLrth quaner d v dend eqbivaient pain the folfowlng 
February 1 A retree malt tnus rece ve Options on oindenos issued 
wilh respect to his ner last qLaner if he or she workeo at any time 
owing tne last montn of sucn quarter Tne same shal apply 11 a 
Sav.ngs Lnit is terminaten however, f a Partc pant terminates 
employment otner than as a resu t of Ret rement or for any reason 
otner than deatn or D sab I ry no fdrther options shal oe issued to 
the Partic pant on or aher me as1 day of employment. 

9 5 Exerc se and Paymenr 01 Options. Options sha be exercised by 
prov ding not ce to me des gnalea agent selected by me Company ( f no 
sucn agent has been designateo. men 10 the Company) in the manner an0 
form aetermineo oy the Company, wncch notice shah be irrevocable. setting 
forth the exact ndmber of snares of Stock vnth respect Io which the Option 
is being exerc sed and 1ncA.a ng with sucn notice paymenl of the Exercise 
Price When Opt ons nave been lransferrea the Company or its designated 
agent may require appropr ate docJmentat.on that me person or persons 
exerc sing tne Opt on if otner Inan tne Partic pant has the nght to 
exerc se lne Opt on No Option may ne exemsea wth respect to a fract on 
of a share of Stock 

The Exerc se Price sha be pa a n fu I at the t me of exercise No Stoc* 
mall be ssJe0 or transferred mt i l  fJ I payment has been recelved 
therefor 

Paymenr may be maae 

(a) in casn of 

(b) unless otherwise provioed by tne Commnee at any time and sublea to 
such aad tiona terms and conoilions andm mod 6cal ons as the Comm.Uee 
or the Company may impose from time to time. an0 fLnher subject to 
sJspension or terminal on of tnis prov s on by tne Comminee or tne 
Company at any time by 

(I) delivery of Stock OHned by tne Part.c pant in partial (if in 
Pan al payment. tnen together with cam) or full payment providea 
however. as a cona.tion to paymg any pan of the Exerc se Pnce in 
Stock at tne tme of exercise of the Op tm the Pan.cfpant mLst 
estaol.sh to the sat Sfact on of tne Company tnat the Stock tendered 
to tne Company nus1 nave been neld by tne Panicipant for a minimum 
of SIX (6) months preceo ng me render, or 
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(ii) if the Company has designated a stockbroker to act as the 
Company's agent to process Option exercises, issuance of an exercise 
notice to such stockbroker together with instructions irrevocably 
instructing the stockbroker: (A) to immediately sell (which Shall 
include an exercise notice that becomes effective upon execution of a 
limit order) a sufflcient portion of the Stock to pay the Exercise 
Price of the Options being exercised and the required tax 
withholding. and (8) to deliver on the Wlement date the portion of 
the proceeds of the sale equal to the Exercise Price and tax 
withholding to the Company. In the event the stockbroker sells any 
Stock on behalf of a Participant, the stockbroker shall be acting 
solely as the agent of the Participant. and the Company disclaims any 
responsibilii for me actions of the stockbroker in making any such 
sales. No Stock shall be issued until the settlement date and until 
the proceeds (equal to the Exercise Price and tax withholding) are 
paid to the Company. 

If payment is made by the delivery of Stock, the value of the Stock 
delivered shall be equal to the Fair Market Value of the Stock on the day 
preceding the date of exercise of the Option. 

Restricted Stock may not be used to pay the Option exercise price 

9.6 Restrictions on Exercise and Transfer. During the optionee's lifetime 
(for purposes of Paragraphs 9.6 through 9.9, "optionee" shall only refer 
to the original recipient of an Option). the optionee's Options shall be 
exercisable only by the optionee or by the optionee's guardian or legal 
representative. After the death of the optionee, except as otherwise 
provided by the Company's Rules for Employee Beneficiary Designations, an 
Option shall only be exercised by the holder thereof (including. but not 
limited to. an executor or administrator of a decedent's estate) or his or 
her guardian or legal representative 

No Option shall be transferable except: (a) upon the death of the optionee 
in accordance with the Company's Rules for Employee Beneficiary 
Designations; and (b) in the case of any holder after the optionee's 
death, only by will or by the l a w  of descent and distribution. 

9.7 Termination by Death. If an optionee's employment with Employer 
terminates by reason of death, the Option may therealter be exercised, to 
the extent then exercisable, for a period of three (3) years from the date 
of such death or until the expiration of the stated term of such Option, 
whichever period is shorter. 

9.8 Termination by Disability. if an optionee's employment wnh Employer 
terminates by reason of Disability, any Option held by such optionee may 
thereafter be exercised, to the extent it was exercisable at the time of 
such termination (or on such accelerated basis as the HRC shall determine 
at the time of grant), for a period of three (3) years from the date of 
such terminalion of employment or the expiration of the stated term of 
such Option. whichever period is shorter. 

<PAGE> 

9 9 Retirement or Other Term nat on of Emp oyment Except as otherwise 
provtdeo .n tnis paragrapn if an optionee's employment w.th Employer 
terminates as a result of Ret rement or for any reason Otner man neath or 
D sabilny the Option may be exercised until the earlier of three months 
(one year for opt ons granted on or after A L ~ U S ~  1, 1998) from the aate of 
termination or tnree years (f.ve years for opt ons granted on or after 
Augbst 1, 1998) from tne aate of Retirement, as applican e or the 
exp ration of me term of sLch Option. provideo, however that a transfer 
to a RWAC shall not oe cons.aered a termination of employment to the 
extent the term of emp oyment at a RWAC IS eqJal to or less than five 
years 

Section 10 - DascontinLation Terminal on, Amenament 
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10.1 Companvs Right to Discontinue Offering Savings Units. The HRC or the 
Chairman may at any time discontinue offerings of additional Savings Units 
with respect to any or all future Pian Years. Any such discontinuance 
shall have no effect upon the pre-tax contributions or after-tax 
contributions or the terms or provisions of this Pian as applicable to any 
then previously existing Savings Units. 

10.2 Companvs Right to Terminate Plan. No Savings Unit may be commenced 
after December 31,2004. The HRC may terminate the Pian at any earlier 
time. Termination of the Pian shall mean that (1) there shall be no 
further offerings of additional Savings Units with respen to any future 
Plan Year; (2) pre-tax contributions and after-tax contributions shall 
prospectively cease with respect to all Savings Units for the then Plan 
Year and thereafler; and (3) all then currently existing Savings Units 
shall be treated as follows: 

The Participant's Matching Accounts shall be 100% vested. The 
Participant shall receive or continue to receive all distributions 
under this Plan at such time as provided in and pursuant to the terms 
and conditions of his Agreement@) and as described in this Pian; 
provided, however, any distributions under a Savings Unit that is not 
completed due to a termination of the Plan under this Section 10.2 
shall be based upon only the actual pre-tax contributions plus 
after-tax contributions plus Company contributions made with respect 
to such Savings Unit prior to such termination, and dividends on same 
thereafter. 

<PAGE> 

10.3 Amendment. The HRC may at any time amend the Plan in whole or in part 
including, but not limited to, changing the formulas for determining the 
amount of Company contributions under Section 5 or the number of Options 
to be issued under Section 9; provided, however, that no amendment, 
including an amendment to this Section I O ,  shall be effective. without the 
Written consent of a Participant, to alter, to the detriment of such 
Participant. the distributions described in this Plan as applicable to a 
Savings Unit of the Participant or to decrease the number of Shares 
standing credited to such Participanls Pre-Tax. After-Tax and Matching 
Accounts under the Plan. For purposes of this Section 10.3, an alteration 
to the detriment of a Participant shall mean a reduction in the period of 
time over which stock is distributable under a Participant's Agreement, or 
any reduction in the number of Options, increase in Exercise Price or 
decrease in the term of an Option. Wrilten notice of any amendment shall 
be given to each Participant. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this section of the 
Plan, the HRC may modify this Pian with respect to any person subject to 
the provisions of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as 
amended ("Exchange AcY) to place addnional restrictions on the exercise 
of any Option or the transfer of any Stock not yet issued under the Plan. 

Section 11 -Miscellaneous. 

11.1 Additional Benefit. The reduction of any benefit payable under the 
SBC Pension Benefit Plan (or comparable pian identified by the Company as 
a replacement therefore), which results from participation in this Pian, 
wiii be restored as an additional benefit ("make-up piece") under this 
Plan. The Participant shall elect prior to Commencement of PaVment of the 
make-up piece whether to receive such benefR in cash in a lump sum 
(consisting of the present value equivalent of the pension retirement 
benefit (life annuity) make-up piece) or such beneft in an annuity form 
of payment. Notwithstanding the proceeding provisions oithis Section 
11 . I ,  if all or a portion of the make-up piece is paid pursuant to SRlP or 
another non-qualified plan, then such amount shall not be payable pursuant 
to this Plan. 

11.2 Small Distribution. Notwithstanding any election made by the 
Participant, the Company will distribute any shares of Stock corresponding 
to Shares in the form of a lump sum distribution if the Shares in 
Participant's Pre-Tax Account plus After-Tax Account plus Matching Account 
have a FMV of less than 510,000 when such distribution would othewise 
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commence. 

11.3 Emergency DistribUtion. In the event that the HRC. upon written 
petition of the Participant, determines in its sole discretion, that the 
Participant has suffered an unforeseeable financial emergency, the Company 
shall distribute to the Participant, as soon as practicable following such 
determination. StoCk corresponding lo the number of Shares ordered by the 
HRC from his Pre-Tax, After-Tax and Matching Accounts for one or more 
Savings Units as necessary to meet the emergency (the "Emergency 
Distribution"). For purposes of this Plan, an Unforeseeable financial 
emergency is an unexpected need for cash arising from an illness, casually 
loss. sudden financial reversal. or other such unforeseeable occurrence. 
Cash needs arising from foreseeable events such as the purchase of a house 
or education expenses for children shall not be considered to be the 
result of an unforeseeable financial emergency. Upon receipt of an 
Emergency Benefit, a Participant shall nd be permitted to cnmmence a new 
Savings Unit until the next enrollment after one whole year has elapsed. 

<PAGE> 

11 4 Commencement of Paymenls Except as othennse providw in this Plan, 
commencement of a a srribLt on Lnoer 111.5 Plan 511811 oegin sxty (60) days 
foi owing tne event whicn en1 lles a Part cipant (or a Beneficiary) to 
sLch OislribLl on or at s x h  earl er date as may be oeterminea by the 
dRC. 

11 5 Tax Wnnnoloing Lpon d Slr'bLl on of Stock, InclLaing bLt not 
im tea to shares of Stock .sue0 J p n  me exercise of an Opt on, the 
Company sha I w innola s d f k  ent snares of Stock nanng a Far Marlcet 
Value on the aale the taxes are aelermined necessary to sal sly me 
minimum amodnt of Feoera.. stale, ano oca1 taxes required by law lo be 
wotnhe.d as a resLit of SLcn distr.oJl~on 

Any fract.ona6 share of Stock payable lo a Pan c pant 511811 be w thheld 
as additional Federa witnno o'ng. or. at tne opl8on of the Company, paid 
in casn to the Pan'cipanl 

Unless otnem se oeterm ne0 by m e  Commmee, when the method of payment 
for the Exerc se Price is from me sale oy a stockbroner pJrsJant to 
Sect.on 9 5(b)(4. nereof. of the Stock acqLired through me Opt on 
exercise, then the tax wlnnolo ng shad be satisfed OJI of the proceeds 
For aom n strative pLrposes in aelermining the amount of taxes due, the 
sa e pnce of SLch Stow sna I be deemed to be lne Fair Market ValLe of 
the Stow 

11.6 Reserved 

11.7 Transfer to a RWAC. i f  a Participant transfers to a RWAC. all of the 
Participanls Savings Units shall be frozen upon transfer, unless 
otherwise determined by the Company. No further Participant pretax 
contributions. after-tax contributions or Company contributions shaii be 
made subsequent to the transfer. During the period of employment at a RWAC 
(for a period n d  to exceed five (5) years), the Participant shall 
wntinue to be credited with dividends on his Pre-Tax. After-Tax and 
Matching Accounts, as applicable. as provided under Section 5.3 and to 
vest in such amounts as provided under Section 5.4, and all distributions 
shall continue to be payable to the Participant and his Beneficiaries in 
accordance with Section 6 and/or Section 7 hereof, as applicable. If the 
Participant has not resumed employment with Employer in an employment 
status which makes him eligible to participate in this Plan within five 
(5) years from the date of transfer. a Termination Distribution based on 
the amounts credited to the Participanls Pre-Tax. After-Tax and Matching 
Accounts, as applicable, shall be paid upon termination of employment with 
a RWAC or the expiration of such five (5) year period, whichever IS 
earlier. 

<PAGE> 

11.8 Leave of Absence. if a Participant absents himself from employment on 
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a formally granted leave of absence (i.e., the absence is with formal 
permission in order to prevent a break in the continuity of the Employee's 
term of employment, which permission is granted in conformlty with the 
rules of the Employer which employs the individual, as adopted from time 
to time), all of the Participant's Savings Units shall automatically be 
frozen upon such leave of absence, unless otherwise determined by the HRC. 
No Participant pre-tax contributions or alter-tan contributions or Company 
contributions shall be made during the leave of absence. However, during 
the leave of absence, the Participant shall continue to be credited with 
dividends on his Pre-Tax. After-Tax and Matching Accounts, as applicable, 
as provided under Section 5.3 and to vest in such amounts as provided 
under Section 5.4, and all distributions shall continue to be payable to 
the Participant and his Beneficiaries in accordance with Section 6 andlor 
Section 7 hereof, as applicable. If the Participant returns to employment 
with Employer in an employment Status which makes him eligible to 
participate in this Plan before Completion of or immediately upon the 
expiration of the leave of absence, Participant pre-tax contributions and 
Company matching contributions will resume until the end of the original 
Unit Period. If the Participant has not resumed employment with Employe1 
in an employment status which makes him eligible to participate in this 
Plan before completion of or immediately upon the expiration of the leave 
of absence. a Termination Distribution based on the amounts credited to 
the Participant's Pre-Tax, After-Tax and Matching Accounts shall be paid 
to the Participant. 

This Section 11.6 shall not apply with respect to any period during which 
a Participant is suffering from a Disability, and such pericd of 
Disability shall not be included under this Section 11.8 as a portion of a 
period of leave of absence. 

11.9 Ineligible Participant. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
Plan to the contrary, if any Participant is determined not to be a 
"management or highly compensated employee" within the meaning of ERISA, 
such Participant will not be eligible to participate in this Plan and 
shall receive an immediate lump sum distribution of shares of Stock 
corresponding to the vested portion of the Shares standing credited to his 
Pre-Tax plus After-Tax plus Matching Accounts. Upon such payment no other 
distribution shall thereafter be payable under this Plan either to the 
Participant or any Beneficiary of the Participant, except as provided 
under Section 1 1  .I 

1 1  .I 0 Unsecured General Creditor. Participants and their Beneficiaries, 
heirs, successors, and assigns shall have no legal or equitable rights, 
interest. or ciaims in any property or assets of Employer. No assets of 
Employer shall be held under any trust for the benefifi of Participants, 
their Beneficiaries, heirs, successors, or assigns, or held in any way as 
collateral securty for the fulfilling of the obligations of Employer 
under this Plan. Any and all of the Employe& assets shall be, and 
remain, the general, unpledged, unrestricted assets of Employer. The only 
obligation of Employer under the Plan shall be merely that of an unfunded 
and unsecured promise of the Company to distribute shares of Stock 
corresponding to Shares, and Options, under the Plan in the future. 

11.1 1 Offset. if a Participant becomes entitled to a distribution of Stock 
under the Plan, the Company may offset against the amount of Stock 
otherwise distributable, any ciaims to reimbursement for intentional 
wrongdoing by the Participant against the Employer or an affiliate as well 
as any overpayment made under this Plan. Such determination shall be made 
by the Company. 

<PAGE> 

1 1  .I 2 Non-Assignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person shall 
have any right to commute. sell, assign, transfer, pledge, anticipate, 
mortgage, or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypothecate or convey in 
advance of actual receipt, shares of Stock Corresponding to Shares under 
the Plan, if any, or any part thereof, which are, and all rights to which 
are, expressly declared to be unassignable and non-transferable. No part 
of the Stock distributable shall, prior to actual distribution, be subject 
to seizure or sequestration for the payment of any debts, judgments, 
alimony or separate maintenance owed by a Participant or any other person, 
nor be transferable by operation of law in the event of a Participant's or 
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any other person's bankruptcy or insolvency. 

11.1 3 Employment Not Guaranteed. Nothing contained in this Plan nor any 
action taken hereunder shall be construed as a contract of employment or 
as giving any Employee any right to be retained in the employ of Employer 
or to Serve as a director. 

11 .I 4 Gender, Singular and Plural. All pronouns and any variations there 
of shall be deemed to refer to the masculine or feminine, as the identity 
of the person or persons may require. As the context may require, the 
singular may be read as the plural and the plural as the singular 

11 .I 5 Captions. The captions of the articles, sections, and paragraphs of 
this Plan are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the 
meaning or construction of any of its provisions. 

11.16 Applicable Law. This Plan shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, to the extent not 
preempted by ERISA. Any action seeking to enforce an Employee's or 
Beneficiary's rights under this Plan, including but not limited to the 
terms of any Agreement or Option issued hereunder, may only be brought in 
Eexar Counly. Texas. 

11 .I 7 Validity in the event any provision of this Plan is held invalid 
void, or unenforceable, the same shall not affect, in any respect 
whatsoever. the validity of any other provision of this Plan. 

11.1 8 Notice. Any notice or filing required or permitted to be given to 
the Company under the Plan shall be sufficient if in writing and hand 
delivered, or sent by registered or certified mail, to the principal 
office of the Company, directed to the attention of the Vice 
President-Human Resources ofthe Company. Such notice shall be deemed 
given on the date of delivery or, if delivery is made by mail, on the date 
shown on the postmark on the receipt for registration or certification. 

11.19 Successors and Assigns. This Plan shall be binding upon the Company 
and its successors and assigns. 

<PAGE> 

11 20 Limitations and Adjustments. The number of shares of Stmk which may 
be distributed pursuant to the Plan, exclusive of Section 9, is 6,500,033. 
The number of stock Options and shares of Stock which may be issued 
pursuant to Section 9 of the Plan is 10,500,000 each. Of the foregoing 
stock options, the number of incentive stock Options which may be issued 
pursuant to the Plan is 10,500,OW. 

In the event of a merger, reorganization, consolidation, recapitalbation. 
separation. liquidation, stock dividend, stock split. share combination, 
or other change in the corporate structure of the Company affecting the 
shares of Stock, such adjustment shall be made in the number and class 01 
shares of Stmk which may be delivered under the Pian, and in the number 
and class of andlor price of shares of Stock subject to outstanding 
Options granted under the Plan, as may be determined to be appropriate and 
equitable by the Committee, in its sole discretion, to prevent dilution or 
enlargement of rights. 

11 2 1  Distribution Alternative. Effective November 17. 1995, 
notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6 and of Section 7. at any time 
during the calendar year prior to the calendar year during which a 
distribution(s) pursuant to a Savings Unit is scheduled to commence. a 
Participant may change his or her previous election(s) applicable to such 
Savings Unit to further defer the commencement of the distribution(s) 
pursuant to such Savings Unit to a subsequent calendar year, and in such 
case to ais0 change the number of installments applicable lo the 
distribution of the Savings Unit as follows: (a) the new electiOn(S) 
applicable to such Savings Unit must conform with either Section 6, if the 
Retirement Alternative is the new selection for such Savings Unit, Or 
Section 7, if the Specified Date Alternative is the new selection for such 
Savings Unit; (b) either the Retirement Alternative or the Specified Date 
Aliernative may be selected for the new election(s) for a Savings Unit 
irrespective of the Alternative originally seleckd for such Savings UnR; 

50 of 144 6/12/00 4 1 5  PM 



Edgar Filing hnp://\*Yvw.shareholder.comNisitorsiedga 00400018&CornpanylD=SBC&heade~A&footer=A 

W v 

(c) the commencement date for payments pursuant to such Savings Unit may 
be delayed to any point in time in a subsequent calendar year - the 
commencement date for payments may not be advanced to an earlier point in 
time; and (d) any number of installments may be selected purruant to the 
new eiection(s) for a Savings Unit irrespective of the number of 
installments originally selected for such Savings Unit. Provided, however, 
in the event a Participant is involuntarily terminated from employment 
(which shall be deemed to include termination by reason of death). and 
such termination is for a reason other than for cause (Le.. willful and 
gross misconduct on the part of the Participant that is materially and 
demonstrably detrimental to the Company or any subsidiary thereo0. and 
such termination is a Retirement (or in the case of Participant's death, 
Participant was Retirement eligible), then Participant (or Participant's 
Beneficiary(1es)) may make the change@) to Participant's previous 
eiection(s) pursuant to this Section 11.21 at the time of Participant's 
termination of employment. Amounts with respect to which the Participant's 
election(s) are modified in accordance with the provisions Of this Section 
11 .2t shall continue to be subject to all provisions of this Pian 
including further distribution modifications in accordance with the 
provisions of the Section 11.21 

<PAGE> 

Section 12 - Participation in Other Plan@) 

12.1 Participation in Predecessor Plans. Effective November 21.1997, the 
plans of the Stock Savings Program shall be merged into the Stock Savings 
Plan. All Savings Units under the Stock Based Savings Plan or the 
Management Stock Savings Plan shall be transferred to this Plan as of that 
date and shall be governed by the terms of this Plan 

12.2 Pacific Teiesis Group 1996 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan 01 
the Pacific Telesis Group Non-Qualified Savings Plan. If an Eligible 
Employee elects to participate in this Plan with respect to contributions 
during 1998, the Employee may not defer, under the Pacific Telesis Group 
1% Executive Deferred Compensation Plan or the Pacific Telesis Group 
NonQualified Savings Plan, any compensation otherwise payable in 1998, 
and such election under this Plan shall operate as a termination of 
participation in such Pacific Teiesis Group plans to the extent it relates 
to any deferrals of compensation otherwise payable in 1998. 
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SBC 1992 STOCK OPTION PLAN 

ARTICLE 1. PURPOSE, DEFINITIONS AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

1 .I Purpose. The purpose of the SBC 1992 Stock Option Plan ("Plan") is to 
promote the success and enhance the value of SBC Communications inc. (the 
"Company") by linking the personal interests of the Employees of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries to the interests of the Companys 
shareowners, and by providing Employees with an additional incentive for 
outstanding performance. To achieve this purpose. Options to purchase 
common stock of the Company may be granted to Employees of the Company and 
Rs Subsidiaries pursuant to the Pian. 

1.2 Additional Definitions. In addition to definitions set forth elsewhere 

in the Plan, for purposes of the Plan: 

(a) '"Cause" shall mean willful and gross miswnduct on the part of a 
Participant that is materially and demonstrably detrimental to the 
Company or any Subsidiary as determined by the Commiliee in its sole 
discretion. 

(b) "Employee" shall mean any management employee of the Company or of 
one of its Subsidiaries in the third (3rd) level of management or 
above. Directors who are not otherwise employed by the Company or any 
of its Subsidiaries shall not be considered Employees under the Plan. 

(c) "Exchange ACT' shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, or any successor Act thereto. 

(d) "Fair Market Value" shall mean the closing price on the New York 
Stock Exchange ("NYSE) for Shares on the relevant date. or if such 
date was not a trading day, the next preceding trading date, all as 
determined by the Company. A trading day is any day that the Shares 
are traded on the NYSE. In lieu of the foregoing, the Committee may 
select any other index or measurement to determine the Fair Market 
Value of Shares under the Plan. 

common stock of SBC Communications Inc. on the terms and conditions 
contained in this Plan, the rules of the Committee, and the terms of 
the Option. 

(e) '"Option" shall mean the right to purchase one or more shares of the 

<PAGE> 

(0 "Retirement" shall mean the termination of a Participant's employment 
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with the Company or one of its Subsidiaries, for reasons other than 
death, disability (as that term is used in the SBC Senmr Management 
Long Term Disability Plan) or for Cause, on or after the earlier of 
the following dates: (1) the date Participant is eligible to retire 
with an immediate pension pursuant to the SBC Supplemental Retirement 
Income Plan; or (2) the date the Participant has attained one ofthe 
following combinations of age and service at termination of 
employment on or afler April 1, 1997, except as otherwise indicated 
below: 

Net Credited Service Age 

10 years or more 
20 years or more 
25 years or more 
30 years or more 

With respect to a Participant who is granted an EMP Service 
Pension under and pursuant to the provisions of the SBC Pension 
Benefit Plan - Nonbargained Program upon termination of Employment 
the term '"Retirement" shall include such Participant's termination of 
employment 

65 or older 
55 or older 
50 or older 
Any age 

(g) "Rotational Work Assignment Cornpan)/' 0r"RWAC" shall mean Bell 
Communications Research, Inc., formerty the Central Services 
Organization. Inc., andlor any other entity with which SBC 
Communications Inc. or any of its subsidiaries may enter into an 
agreement to provide an employee for a rotational work assignment, 

(h) "Shares" or "StocK' or "Shares of StocK' shall mean the common stock 
of SBC Communications Inc. 

(i) "Subsidiary'shall mean any corparation in which the Company owns 
directly, or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than fiRy percent 
(50%) of the total combined voting power of all classes of Stock. or 
any other entity (including, but not limited to, partnerships and 
joint ventures) in which the Company owns more than fifty percent 
(50%) of the combined equity thereof. 

1.3 Effective Date. The Plan shall be effective on the date it is approved 

by the Company's shareowners 

ARTICLE 2. ADMINISTRATION 

2.1 The Committee The Plan shall be administered by a Committee or 

Commttees (the "Committee") appointed by the Board of Directors. 

<PAGE> 

2.2 Authority of the Committee. The Committee shall have full power, except as 
limited by law or by the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the 
Company, and subject to the provisions of this Plan, to select the 
recipients of Options CParticipants"): determine the sizes of grants of 
Options under the Pian; determine the exercise price, duration, vesting 
requirements, and permd of exerclsabiiity of each Option; determine the 
terms and conditions of such Option grants in a manner consistent with the 
Plan; construe and interpret the Plan and any agreement or instrument 
entered into under the Plan; establish, amend, or waive NleS and 
regulations for the Plan's administration; and, subject to the provisions 
of Article 5 -Amendment, Modification, and Termination, herein, amend the 
terms and conditions of any outstanding Option to the exient such terms 
and wnditions are within the discretion of the Committee as provided in 
the Pian. Further, the Committee shall make all other determinations which 
may be necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. 

All determinations and decisions made by the Committee pursuant to 
the provisions of the Plan, and all related orders and resolutions of the 
Board shall be final, conclusive, and binding on all persons, including 
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the Company, its shareowners. Employees, Participants, and their estates 
and beneficiaries. 

ARTICLE 3. SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN 

3.1 Number of Shares. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 3.3 
Adjustments in Authorized Shares, herein, the total number of Shares of 
Stock for which Options may be granted under the Plan may not exceed 
S,MX),OW Shares. These Shares may be either authorized but unissued or 
reacquired Shares. 

terminates, expires, or lapses for any reason. any Shares subject to such 
Option again shall be available for the grant of an Option under the Plan. 

3.2 Lapsed Options. If any Option granted under the Plan is canceled, 

3 .3 Ad,ustments In Anhorlzeo Shares In the event of a merger 
reorgan zat,on consolidat on recapita ization separation qudation 
stock d viaend SIOCK sp 11. snare comoinal on or other cnange in tne 
corporate struct~re of the Company affecting the Snares, SLcn adjustment 
sha I be made .n the nLmoer and c ass of Shares wh cn may be deliverw 
Jnder the plan. an0 In tne nmber an0 class of andlor pnce of Snares 
supect to outstanding Options grantea under the Plan as may be 
determined to oe appropriate and eqditable by the Commnee. in its Sole 
a scretion to prevent oildtion or enlargement of rights, an0 provded 
that the number of Snares sdo ect to any Option shall always oe a whole 
numcer 

ARTICLE 4 STOCL OPTIONS 

<PAGE> 

4.1 Grant of Options. Subject to the terms and provisions ofthe Plan, Options 
may be granted to such Employees, at such times and on such terms and 
conddions, as shall be determined by the Committee; provided, however, no 
Options may be granted after the 1 Mh anniversary of the effective date of 
the Plan. The Commi!tee shall have discretion in determining the number of 
Options and the number of Shares subject to each Option granted to each 
Participant. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing. the 
Cornminee shall have the authority lo establish guidelines setting forth 
anticipated grant levels which correspond to various salary grades or the 
equivalent thereof. 

4 .2 Form of Issuance. Options may be issued in the form of a certificate or 
may be recorded on the books and records of the Company for the account of 
the Participant. if an Option is not issued in the form of a certificate, 
then the Option shall be deemed granted upon issuance of a notice of the 
grant addressed to the recipient. The terms and conditions of an Option 
shall be set forth in the certificate. in the notice of the issuance of 
the grant, or in such other documents as the Committee shall determine. 
The Committee may require a Participant to enter into a written agreement 
containing terms and conditions relating to the Option and its exercise. 

4 3 Opt on Pr ce The Option Pr.ce for each grant of an Option mall be 
determined oy me Commitlee' prov oed however, tnat the minimdm Optlon 
Prce sna I be one nmdred percent ( 1  00%) of lne Fair Market Vaue of a 
Snare on the oate tne Opt.on IS granted 

4 4 Duration of Options. Eacn 0pt.on snall exp.re at SLcn time as the 
Commmee sna 1 oeterm ne at me m e  of grant provdeo, nowever Inat no 
Option Sha.1 oe exerc sa0 e later tnan tne tenth (10(h) anniversary date 
of RS grant 

4 5 Vesting of Options. Opt on5 sna, vest at such lmes and Lnaer sJch terms 
an0 condnions as determ ne0 by tne Commmee The Comminee shal have 
the authorfly to accelerale the vest ng of any Option' provided. however. 
that the Senior Exeat ue Vice Preoaenl . Human ReSoLrceS or n 6  
sbccessor or SLcn otner person des.gnated by the Commmee, shall have 
the aLlnorny to accelerate me vest ng of Options for any Part c'pant who 
IS .n tne fiRh eve of management or oelow and who is not a Director or 
an off cer (as that lerm s aef ned in Section 16 of the Exchange Act) 
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4 6 Exercise of Oprions Options grantea mder the Plan sha I be exercisaole 
at SLch times an0 w s#.b,ect 10 SJCh restr ctions an0 conations as me 
Comm ttee shalt n each nstance approve. which need not be the same foi 
eacn grant or for eacn Parlicipant tiowever in no event may any Opl on 
granred Jnaer tnis Plan become exerc sab.e prior to me first anniversary 
of the date of fis grant except as provide0 n Section 4 11 Change in 
Contro 
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Options shall be exercised by providing notice to the designated 
agent selected by the Company (if no such agent has been designated. then 
to the Company), in the manner and form determined by the Company, which 
notice shall be irrevocable, setting forth the exact number of Shareswith 
respect to which the Option is being exercised and including with such 
notice payment of the Option Price. When Options have been transferred. 
the Company or its designated agent may require appropriate documentation 
that the person or persons exercising the Option, il other than the 
Participant, has the right to exercise the Option. No Option may be 
exercised with respect to a fraction of a Share. 

4.7 Payment. The Option Price shall be paid in full at the time of exercise. 
No Shares shall be issued or transferred until full payment has been 
received therefor. 

Payment may be made: 

(a) in cash, or 

(b) unless otherwise provided by the Committee at any time, and subject 
to such additional terms and conditions andlor modifications as the 
Committee or the Company may impose from time to time, and further 
subject to suspension or termination of this provision by the 
CommMee or the Company at any time, by: 

(i) delivery of Shares of Stock owned by the Participant in partial 
(if in partial payment, then together wRh cash) or full payment: 
provided, however, as a condition to paying any part of the 
Option Price in Stock, at the time of exercise of the Option, the 
Participant must establish to the satisfaction of the Company 
that the Stock tendered to the Company must have been held by the 
Participant for a minimum of six (6) months preceding the tender; 
or 

(ii)if the Company has designated a stockbroker to act as the 
Company's agent to process Option exercises, issuance of an 
exercise notice to such stockbroker together with instructions 
irrevocably instructing the stockbroker: (A) to immediately Sell 
(which shall include an exercise notice that becomes eflective 
upon execution of a limit order) a sufficient portion of the 
Shares to pay the Option Price of the Options being exercised and 
the required tax withholding, and (B) to deliver on the 
settlement &le the portion of the proceeds of the sale equal to 
the Option Price and tax withholding to the Company. In the event 
the stockbroker sells any Shares on behalf of a Participant, the 
stockbroker shall be acting solely as the agent of the 
Participant, and the Company disclaims any responsibility for the 
actions of the stockbroker in making any such sales. No Stock 
shall be issued until the settlement date and until the proceeds 
(equal to the Option Price and tax withholding) are paid to the 
Company. 

if payment is made by the delivery of Shares of Stock. the value of 
the Shares delivered shall be equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares 
on the day preceding the date of exercise of the Option. 

Restricted Stock may not be used to pay the Option Price. 

<PAGE> 
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(a) Termination by Reason of Death or Disability. in the event the 
employment of a Participant is terminated by reason of death or 
disability (as that term is used in the SBC Senior Management Long 
Term Disability Plan), any outstanding Options granted to the 
Participant shall vest as of the date of termination of employment 
and may be exercised if at all, no m e  than one (I) year following 
termination of employment, unless the Options. by their terms. expire 
earlier. 

(b) Termination by Retirement. In the event the employment of a 
Participant is terminated by reason of Retirement. any outstanding 
Options granted to the Participant which are vested as of the date of 
termination of employment may be exercised, if at ail, no more than 
three (3) years following termination of employment. unless the 
Options, by their terms, expire earlier. 

(c) Termination of Employment for Other Reasons. If the employment of a 
Participant shall terminate for any reason other than the reasons set 
forth in (a) or (b), above, and other than for Cause, all outslanding 
Options granted to the Participant which are vested as of the date of 
terminalion of employment may be exercised by the Participant within 
the period beginning on the effective date of termination of 
employment and ending three (3) months afler such date, unless the 
Options, by their terms, expire earlier. 

(d) Termination for Cause. If the employment of a Participant shall 
terminate for Cause, all outstanding Options held by the Participant 
shall immediately terminale and be forfeited to the Company, and no 
additional exercise period shall be allowed. 

(e) Options not Vested at Termination. Any outstanding Options not vested 
as of the effective date of termination of employment shall expire 
immediately and shall be forfeited to the Company. 

4.9 Transfers. For purposes of the Plan, transfer of employment of a 
Patticipant between the Company and any one of its Subsidiaries (01 
between Subsidiaries) or between the Company or a Subsidiary and a RWAC. 
to the extent the term of employment at a RWAC is equal to or l k s  than 
five years shall not be deemed a termination of employment. 

<PAGE> 

4.10 Restrictions on Exercise and Transfer of Options. During the Participant's 
lifetime, the Participant's Options shall be exercisable only by the 
Participant or by the Participanrs guardian or legal representative. 
Afler the death of the Participant. except as dherwise provided by the 
Company's Rules for Employee Beneficiary Designations, an Option shall 
only be exercised by the holder thereof (including, but not limited to, an 
executor or administrator of a decedent's estate) or his or her guardian 
or legal representative 

No Option shall be transferable except: (a) in the case of the 
Participant. only upon the Participant's death and in accordance with the 
Company's Rules for Employee Beneficiary Designations; and (b) in the case 
of any holder afler the Participant's death, only by will or by the laws 
of descent and distribution. 

4.1 1 Change in Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control. ail Options 
heid by Participants hereunder shall immediately become vested and 
exercisable, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.6 Exercise of 
Options to the contrary. A "Change in Control" shall be deemed to have 
occurred if (i) any "person" (as such term is used in SeCtionS t3(d) and 
t q d )  of the Exchange Act), other than a trustee or other fiduciary 
holding securities under an employee benefR plan of the Company or a 
corporation owned directly or indirectly by the shareowners of the Company 
in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of stock of the 
Company, is or becomes the '"beneficial ownef (as defined in Rule 13d-3 
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under said Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the company 
representing twenty percent (20%) or more of the total voting power 
represented by the Company's then outstanding voting securities. or (ii) 
during any period of two (2) consecutive years, individuals who at the 
beginning of such period constitute the Board of Directors of the Company 
and any new Director whose election by the Board of Directors or 
nomination for election by the Companys shareowners was approved by a 
vote of at least two-thirds (23) of the Directors then still in office 
who either were Directors at the beginning of the period or whose election 
or nomination for election was previously so approved, cease for any 
reason to constitute a majority thereof, or (iii) the sharwwners of the 
Company approve a merger or wnsolidation of the Company with any other 
corporation, other than a merger or consolidation which would result in 
the vding securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto 
continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being 
converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) at least eighty 
percent (80%) of the total voting power represented by the voting 
securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately 
after such merger or consolidation, or the shareowners of the Company 
approve a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an agreement for 
the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all the 
Companfs assets. 

ARTICLE 5. AMENDMENT, MODIFICATION, AND TERMiNATlON 

5.1 Amendment, Modification, and Termination. The Board or the Committee may 
at any time and from time to time, terminate, amend, or modify the Plan. 
However, no such amendment, modiflcation, or termination of the Plan may 
be made without the approval of the shareowners of the Company, if such 
approval is required by the Internal Revenue Code, by the insider trading 
rules of Section 16 of the Exchange Act, by any national securities 
exchange or system on which the Shares are then listed or reported, or by 
a regulatory body having jurisdiction with respect hereto. 

<PAGE> 

5.2 Awards Previously Granted, No termination, amendment, or mcdification of 
the Plan shall in any material manner adversely affect any Option 
previously granted under the Plan, without the written consent of the 
Participant holding such Option. 

ARTICLE 6. WiTHHOLDlNG 

6.1 Tax Withholding. Upon exercise of an Option, the Company shall withhold 
sufficient Shares having a Fair Market Value on the date thetaxes are 
determined in an amount necessary to satisfy the minimum amount of 
Federal, state, and local taxes required by law to be withheld as a resuk 
of such exercise. 

Any fractional share of Stock payable to a Participant shall be 
withheld as additional Federal withholding, or, at the option of the 
Company, paid in cash to the participant. 

Unless otherwise determined by the CommNtee, when the method of 
payment for the Option Price is from the sale by a Stockbroker pursuant to 
Section 4.7(b)(ii), hereof, of the Stock acquired through the Option 
exercise, then the tax withholding shall be satisfied out of the proceeds. 
For administrative purposes in determining the amount of taxes due, the 
sale price of such Stock shall be deemed to be the Fair Market Value of 
the Stock. 

ARTICLE 7. MISCELLANEOUS 

7.1 Employment. Nothing in the Plan shall interfere with or limit in any way 
the right of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof to terminate any 
Participant% employment at any time, nor confer upon any Participant any 
right to continue in the employment of the Company or any Subsidiary 
thereof. 
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7.2 Participation. No Employee shall have the right to be selected to receive 
an Option under the Plan, or, having been so selected, to be selected to 
receive a future Option. 

7.3 Successors. All obligations of the Company under the Plan Shall be binding 
on any successor to the Company, whether the existence of such successor 
is the result of a direct or indirect purchase, merger. consolidation. or 
otherwise, of all or substantially all of the business andlor assets of 
the Company. 

construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of 
Missouri. 

7.4 Governing Law. The Plan, and any and all agreements hereunder, shall be 
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SBC Commn cations Inc 
1996 Stock an0 Incentive Plan 

Article 1 Establishment and Purpose. 

4 'I Establishment of the Plan. SBC Communications Inc., a Delaware 
corporation (the "Company" or "SBC"), hereby establishes an 
incentive compensation plan (the"Plan"). as set forth in this 
document 

1.2 Purpose of the Plan, The purpase of the Pian is to promote the 
success and enhance the value of the Company by linking the personal 
interests of Participants to those of the Company's shareowners. and 
by providing Participants with an incentive for outstanding 
performance. 

The Plan is further intended to attract and retain the Sewices of 
Participants upon whose judgment, interest, and special efforts the 
successful operation of SBC and its Subsidiaries is dependent. 

Effective Date of the Plan, The Plan shall become effective on 
January 1, 1996; however, grants may be made before that time subject 
to becoming effective on or after that date. During the first year 
this Plan is effective, Awards shall be issued only to the extent the 
potential payout of Shares shall not exceed 10% of the Shares 
approved for issuance under this Plan. 

1.3 

Article 2 Definitions. 

Whenever used in the Plan, the following terms shall have the 
meanings set forth below and, when the meaning is intended, the 
initial letter of the word is capitalized: 

(a) '"Award means, individually or collectively, a grant under 
this Pian of Nonqualified Stock Options, Incentive Stock 
Options, Restricted Stock, Performance Units, or Performance 
Shares. 

(b) '"Award AgreemenP' means an agreement which may be entered 
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into by each Participant and the Company, setting forth the 
terms and provisions applicable to Awards granted to 
Patticipants under this Plan. 

(c) '"Board or "Board of Directors" means the SBC Board of 

(d) "Cause" shall mean wiliful and gross misconduct on the part 

Directors. 

of an Employee that is materially and demonstrably 
detrimental to the Company or any Subsidiary as determined bv 
the Committee in its sole discretion 

(e) "Change in Control" shall be deemed to have occurred if (i) 
any"person" (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 
14(d) of the Exchange Act), other than a trustee or other 
fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan 
of the Company or a corporation owned directly or indirectly 
by the shareowners of the Company in substantially the same 
proportions as their ownership of stock of the Company. iS or 
becomes the '"beneficial ownel" (as defined in Rule 134-3 
under said Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the 
Company representing twenty percent (20%) or more of the 
total voting power represented by the Company's then 
outstanding voting securities, or (ii) during any period of 
two (2) consecutive years, individuals who at the beginning 
of such period constitute the Board of Directors of the 
Company and any new Director whose election by the Board of 
Directors or nomination for election by the Company's 
shareowners was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds 
(213) of the Directors then still in office who either were 
Directors at the beginning of the period or whose election or 
nomination for election was previously so approved, cease for 
any reason to constitute a majorily thereof, or (iii) the 
shareowners of the Company approve a merger or consolidation 
of the Company with any other corporation. other than a 
merger or consolidation which would result in the voting 
securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior 
thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining 
outstanding or by being converted into voting securiiies of 
the surviving entity) at least eighty percent (80%) of the 
total voting power represented by the voting securities of 
the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately 
aRer such merger or consolidation, or the shareowners of the 
Company approve a plan of complete liquidation of the Company 
or an agreement for the Sale or disposition by the Company of 
all or substantially all the Company% assets. 

(f) "Code" means the internal Revenue Code of 1986. as amended 
from time to time. 

(9) "Committee" means the committee or committees, as specified 
in Article 3, appointed by the Board to administer the Plan 
with respect to grants of Awards 

(h) "Director means any individual who is a member of the SBC 

(i) "Disabi l i i  shall mean the Participant's inability to 

Board of Directors. 

perform the Participant's normal Employment functions due to 
any medically determinable physical or mental disability. 
which can last or has lasted 12 months or is expected to 
result in death. 

fj) "Employee" means any management employee of the Companv 01 

one of the Company's Subsidiaries. '"EmploymenT' means the 
employment of an Employee by the Company or one of its 
Subsidiaries. Directors who are not otherwise employed by the 
Company shall not be considered Employees under this Plan. 

(IC) "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended from time lo time, or any successor Act thereto. 

(I) "Exerc se Price" means the price at wnich a Snare may ne 
pdrcnased by a Partic pan1 pJrsuant10 an Op1.on as 
determined by me Commnee 

. Of 
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(m) "Fair Market Value" shall mean the closing price on the New 
York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") for Shares on the relevant 
date, or if such date was not a trading day, the next 
preceding trading date, all as determined by the Company. A 
trading day is any day that the Shares are traded on the 
NYSE. In lieu of the foregoing. the Committee may select any 
other index or measurement to determine the Fair Markel 
Value of Shares under the Plan. 

(n) "Incentive Stock Option" o r " I S 0  means an option to purchase 
Shares from SEC, granted under this Plan, which is designated 
as an Incentive Stock Option and is intended to meet the 
requirements of Section 422 of the Code. 

(0)  ''Insider shall mean an Employee who is, on the relevant 
date, an officer. director, or ten percent (10%) beneficial 
owner of the Company, as those terms are defined under 
Section 16 of the Exchange Act. 

Performance Unit expressed in dollars. 
(p) "Key Executive Officer Short Term Award means a 

(4) "Nonqualified Stock Option" o r "NQS0 means the option to 
purchase Shares from SBC. granted under this Plan, which is 
not intended to be an incentive Stock Option. 

(r) "Option" or "Stock Option" shall mean an Incentive Stock 
Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option. and shall include a 
Restoration Option. 

(s) "Participant" means a person who holds an outstanding Award 
granted underthe Plan. 

(1) 'Performance Lnit" and ' Performance Share" 511811 eacn mean an 
Awaro granted to an Employee pdrsuant to Aticte 8 herein 

(J) 'Pan means this 1996 Stock and Incentive Pian The Plan 
may also ne referreo to as tne "SEC 1996 StocL ana 
lncent re Plan" or as the ' SEC CommJnicat ons Inc 1596 
Stock and menlive P an '' 

(v) "Restrcted Stocfi means an Award of Stock granted to an 

(w) "Restr ction Per ca means tne period during which Shares of 

Employee pdrsLant to Article 7 here n 

Resrricteo Stocfi are subject to restrictions or condt ons 
mder Ande  7 

(x) 'Ret rement" or to "Ret.re shai mean the term nation of a 
Panicipant's employment wdh the Company or one of RS 
SJbsidlar es, for any reason other than oeath, Dsabilty or 
for Cause, on or after the earlier of the following dates, or 
as otherwise provioed by tne Comm nee: (1) me date the 
Parlic'pant WOJ d be eligiole to retire with an mrnwiate 
pens.on Jnder the rJles of the SBC Sdpplemental Retirement 
income Pan. whether or not actLal y a participant n Sucn 
plan, or (2) the date tne Participant has anained one of the 
fo ow ng comb nations of age and service at term nation of 
emp oyment on or after Apr I 1, 1997. except as otherwse 
ndicated be ow 

Net Crw led Service Age 

10 Years of more 
20 years or more 
25 years or more 
30 years or more 

. . . .. . 
65 or older 
55 or o oer 
50 or o der 
Any age 

W i n  respect to a Pan cipant who is granted an EMP Service 
Pension Jnoer and PursLant to the provisions of the SEC 
Pension Benefit Plan - Nonbargainea Program upon termination 
of emp oyment. the terms "Ret rement or to "Ret re mall 
inc Jde sLch Parl c pan1 s term nation of employment 

(y) "Rotational Work Assignment Company ("RWAC") shall mean any 
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entity with which SBC Communications Inc. or any of its 
Subsidiaries may enter into an agreement to provide an 
employee for a rotational work assignment. 

(2) "Shares" or "Stock" means the shares of common stock of the 
Company. 

owns directly, or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than 
fifly percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all 
classes of Stock, or any other entity (including, but not 
limited to, partnerships and joint ventures) in which the 
Company owns more than fifly percent (53%) of the combined 
equity thereof. 

(aapubsidiary" shall mean any corporation in which the Company 

(bbrWindow Period means the period beginning on the third 
business day following the date of public release of the 
Companfs quarterly sales and earnings information, and ending 
on the twelilh business day following such date. 

Article 3 Administration. 

The Committee. Administration of the Plan shall be bifurcated as 3.1 
follows: 

(a) With respect lo insiders, the Plan and all Awards hereunder 
shall be administered only by the Human Resources Committee 
of the Board or such other Committee as may be appointed by 
the Board for this purpose (the "Disinterested Committee"), 
where each Director on such Disinterested Committee is a 
"Disinterested Person" (or any successor designation for 
determining who may administer plans, transactions or awards 
exempt under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act), as that term 
is used in Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act. as that rule 
may be modified from time to time. 

Board may create, if any, specifically to administer the Plan 
with respect to non-Insiders (1he"Non-Insider Committee") 
shall each have full authority to administer the Plan and all 
Awards hereunder with respect to all persons who are not 
Insiders. except as otherwise provided herein or by the 
Board. Either Committee may be replaced bythe Board at any 
time. 

(b) The Disinterested Committee and such other Committee as the 

3.2 Authority of the Committee. The Committee shall have full power 
except as limited by law and subject to the provisions herein. to 
select the recipients of Awards, to determine the size and types of 
Awards; to determine the terms and conditions of such Awards in a 
manner consistent with the Pian; lo construe and interpret the Plan 
and any agreement or instrument entered into under the Plan; to 
establish, amend, or waive rules and regulations for the Plan's 
administration; and (subject to the provisions of Article 13 herein) 
to amend the terms and condltions of any outstanding Award to the 
exient such terms and conditions are within the discretion of the 
Committee as provided in the Plan. Further, the Committee shall make 
all other determinations which may be necessary or advirable for the 
administration of the Plan. 

No Award other than Restoration Options may be made under the Plan 
afler December 31,201 0. 

All determinations and decisions made by the Committee pursuant to 
the provisions of the Plan and all related orders or resolutions of 
the Board shall be final, conclusive, and binding on all perrons. 
including the Company, its stockholders. Employees, Participants. and 
their estates and beneficiaries. 

Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Committee is authorized, 
and shall not be limited in its discretion, to use any of the 
Performance Criteria specified herein in its determination of Awards 
under this Plan. 

Article 4 Shares Subject to the Plan. 

W 
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4.1 Number of Shares. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.3 
herein, the number of Shares available for grant under the Plan shall 
not exceed 30 million Shares of Stock. No more than 10% of the Shares 
approved for issuance under this Plan may be Shares of Restricted 
Stock. No more than 40% of the Shares approved for issuance under 
this Plan may be issued to Participants as a result of Performance 
Share or Restricted Stock Awards. The Shares granted under this Plan 
rnay be either authorized but unissued or reacquired Shares. The 
Disinterested Committee shall have full discretion to determine the 
manner in which Shares available for grant are counted in this Pian. 

Without limiting the discretion of the Commttee under this 
section. unless otherwise provided by the Committee, the following 
rules will apply for purposes of the determination of the number of 
Shares available for grant under the Plan or compliance with the 
foregoing limits: 

(a) The grant of a Stock Option or a Restricted Stock Award shall 
reduce the Shares available for grant under the Plan by the 
number of Shares subject to such Award. However. to the 
extent the Participant uses previously owned Shares to pay 
the Exercise Price or any taxes, or Shares are withheld to 
pay taxes, these Shares shall be available for regrant under 
the Plan. 

(b) With respect to Performance Shares, the number of Performance 
Shares granted under the Plan shall be deducted from the 
number of Shares available for grant under the Plan. The 
number of Performance Shares which cannot be, or are not, 
converted into Shares and distributed (including deferrals) 
to the Participant (after any applicable tax withholding) 
following the end of the Performance Period shall increase 
the number of Shares available for regrant under the Pian by 
an equal amount 

(c) With respect to Performance Units representing a fixed dollar 
amount that mav onlv be settled in cash. the Performance 
Units Award shall n i t  affect the number'of Shares available 
under the Plan. 

4.2 Lapsed Awards. If any Award granted under this Plan is canceled, 
terminates, expires, or lapses for any reason, Shares subject to such 
Award shall be again available for the grant of an Award under the 
Plan. 

4.3 Adjustments in Authorized Pian Shares. In the event of any merger, 
reorganization, consolidation, recapitalization. separation, 
liquidation, Stock dividend, split-up, Share combination, or other 
change in the corporate structure of the Company affecting the 
Shares, an adjustment shall be made in the number and class of Shares 
which rnay be delivered under the Plan (including individual limk). 
and in the number and class of andlor price of Shares subject to 
outstanding Awards granted under the Plan, andlor the number of 
outstanding Options, Shares of Restricted Stock, and Performance 
Shares constiuting outstanding Awards, as may be determined to be 
appropriate and equitable by the committee, in its sole discretion, 
to prevent dilution or enlargement of rights. 

Article 5 Eligibility and Participation 

5.1 Eligibility. All management Employees are eligible to participate 

Actual Participation. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the 

in this Pian. 

5.2 
Committee may, from time to time, select from all eligible Employees, 
those to whom Awards shall be granted and shall determine the nature 
and amount of each Award. No Employee is entitled to receive an Award 
unless selected by the Committee, 

Article 6 Stock Options 

6.1 Grant of Options. subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, 
Options rnay be granted to Employees at any time and from time to 
time. and under such terms and condlions, as shall be determined by 
the Committee. The committee shall have discretion in determining the 
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number of Shares subject to Options granted to each Employee; 
provided, however, that the maximum number of Shares subject to 
Options which may be granted to any single Employee during any 
Mlendar year shall not exceed 2% of the Shares approved for issuance 
under this Plan. The Committee may grant ISOs, NQSOs, or a 
combination thereof; provided, however, that no IS0 may be issued 
afler January 1,2006. The Committee may authorize the automatic 
grant of additional Options rRestoration Options") when a 
Participant exercises already outstanding Options, or options granted 
under a prior option pian of the Company, on such terms and 
Conditions as it shall determine. Unless otherwise provided by the 
Comminee. the number of Restoration Options granted to a Participant 
wiih respect to the exercise of an option (including an Option under 
this Plan) shall not exceed the number of Shares delivered by the 
Participant in payment of the Exercise Price of such option, andlor 
in payment of any tax withholding resulting from such exercise, and 
any Shares which are wiihheld to satisfy withholding tax liability 
arising out of such exercise. A Restoration Option shall have an 
Exercise Price of not less than 100% of the per Share Fair Market 
Value on the date of grant of such Restoration Option, and shall be 
subject to all the terms and conditions of the original grant, 
including the expiration date, and such other terms and conditions as 
the Committee in its sole discretion shall determine. 

6.2 Form of Issuance. Each Option grant may be issued in the form of an 
Award Agreement andlor may be recorded on the b k s  and records of 
the Company for the account of the Participant. If an Option is not 
issued in the form of an Award Agreement, then the Option shall be 
deemed granted as determined by the Committee. The terms and 
conditions of an Option shall be set forth in the Award Agreement, in 
the notice of the issuance of the grant, or in such other documents 
as the Committee shall determine. Such terms and conditions shall 
include the Exercise Price, the duration of the Option, the number of 
Shares to which an Option pertains (unless otherwise provided by the 
Committee, each Option may be exercised to purchase one Share), and 
such other provisions as the Committee shall determine, including, 
but not limited to whether the Option is intended to be an I S 0  or a 
NQSO. 

6.3 Exercise Price. Unless a greater Exercise Price is determined by the 
Committee, the Exercise Price for each Option Awarded under this Plan 
shall be equal to one hundred percent (1 00%) of the Fair Market Value 
of a Share on the date the Option is granted. 

6.4 Duration of Options. Each Option shall expire at such time as the 
Committee shall determine at the time of grant (which duration may be 
extended by the committee); provided, however, that no Option shall 
be exercisable later than the tenth (1Mh) anniversary date of its 
grant. 

terms and conditions as determined by the Committee; provided, 
however, unless a later vesting period is provided by the Committee 
at or before the grant of an Option, onethird of the Options will 
vest on each of the first three anniveMries of the grant; if one 
Option remains after equally dividing the grant by three, it will 
vest on the first anniversary of the grant, if two Options remain, 
then one will vest on each of the first two anniversaries. The 
Committee shall have the right to accelerate the vesting of any 
Option; however, the Chairman of the Board or the Senior Vice 
President-Human Resources, or their respective successors, or such 
other persons designated by the Committee, shall have the authority 
to accelerate the vesting of Options for any Participant who is not 
an Insider. 

6.5 Vesting of Options. Options shall vest at such times and under such 

6.6 Exercise of Options. Options granted under the Pian shall be 
exercisable at such times and be subject to such restrictions and 
conditions as the Committee shall in each instance approve, which 
need not be the same for each grant or for each Participant. 

Options shall be exercised by providing notice to the designated 
agent selected by the Company (if no such agent has been designated. 
then to the Company), in the manner and form determined by the 
Company, which notice shaii be irrevocable, setting forth the exact 
number of Shares with respect to which the Option is being exercised 
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and including with such notice payment of the Exercise Price. When 
Options have been transferred, the Company or its designated agent 
may require appropriate documentation that the person or persons 
exercising the Option, if other than the Participant. has the right 
to exercise the Option. No ODtion mav be exercised with respect to a 
fraction of a Share. 

6.7 Payment. The Exercise Price shall be paid in full at the time of 
exercise. No Shares shall be issued or transferred until full payment 
has been received therefor. 

Payment may be made: 

(a) in cash, or 

(b) unless otherwise provided by the Comminee at any time, and 
subject to such additional terms and conditions and/or 
modifications as the Commiltee or the Company may impode from 
time to time, and further subject to suspension or 
termination of this provision by the Committee or Company at 
any time, by: 

(i) delivery of Shares of Stock owned by the Participant in 
partial (if in partial payment, then together with cash) 
or full payment; provided, however, as a condition to 
paying any part of the Exercise Price in Stock. at the 
time of exercise of the Option. the Participant mUSt 
establish to the satisfaction of the Company that the 
Stock tendered to the Company must have been held by the 
Participant for a minimum of six (6) months preceding 
the tender; or 

(ii) if the Company has designated a stockbroker to act as 
the Companqs agent to process Option exercises, 
issuance of an exercise notice together with 
instructions to such stockbroker irrevocably instructing 
the stockbroker: (A) to immediately Sell (which shall 
include an exercise notice that becomes effective upon 
execution of a limit order) a sufficient portion of the 
Shares to pay the Exercise Price of the Options being 
exercised and the required tax withholding, and (8 )  to 
deliver on the settlement date the portion of the 
prcceeds of the sale equal to the Exercise Price and tax 
withholding to the Company. In the event the stockbroker 
sells any Shares on behalf of a Participant, the 
stockbroker shall be acting solely as the agent of the 
Participant, and the Company disclaims any 
responsibility for the actions of the stockbroker in 
making any such sales. No Stock shall be issued until 
the settlement date and until the proceeds (equal to the 
Option Price and tax withholding) are paid to the 
Company. 

If payment is made by the delivery of Shares of Stock, the MlUe 
of the Shares delivered shaii be equal to the Fair Market Value of 
the Shares on the day preceding the date of exercise of the Option 

Restricted Stock may not be used to pay the Option Price. 

6.6 Termination of Employment. 

Unless otherwise provided by the Comminee, the foliowing 
limitations on exercise of Options shall apply upon termination of 
Employment: 

(a) Termination by Death or Disability. In the event the 
Employment of a Participant shall terminate by reason of 
death or Disability, all outstanding Options granted to that 
Participant shall immediately vest as of the date of 
termination of Employment and may be exercised, if at all, no 
more than three (3) years from the date of the termination of 
Employment. unless the Options, by their terms. expire 
earlier. However, in the event the Participant was eligible 
to Retire at the time of termination of Employment, 
notwithstanding the foregoing, the Options may be exercised, 
if at all, no more than five (5) years from the date of the 
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termination of Employment, unless the Options, by their 
terms, expire earlier. 

(b) Terminat on for CaLse If the Emp oyment of a Participant 
sha i be term naled by Ihe Company for Cause a,l outslanamg 
Options hela oy the PaRicipant shall mmeaiately be 
forfeited to rhe Company and no add t onal exercise p n o d  
shall be allowed regaro ess of the vested status 01 tne 
Oplions 

(c) Retirement or Other Terminalion of Employment. if the 
Employment of a Participant shall terminate for any reason 
other than the reasons set forth in (a) or (b). above. all 
outstanding Options which are vested as of the effective date 
of termination of Employment may be exercised, if at all. no 
more than five (5) years from the date of termination of 
Employment if the Participant is eligible to Retire, or one 
(1) year from the date of the termination of Employment if 
the Participant is not eligible lo Retire. as the case may 
be, unless in either case the Options, by their terms, expire 
earlier. in the event of the death of the Participant afler 
termination of Employment, this paragraph (c) shall still 
apply and not paragraph (a), above 

(d) Options not Vested at Termination. Except as provided in 
paragraph (a). above, all Options held bythe Participant 
which are not vested on or before the effective date of 
termination of EmDlovment shall immediatelv be forfeited to 
the Company (ani siali once again becomeavailable for grant 
under the Plan). 

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing. the Committee may, in its sole 
discretion, establish different terms and wnditions 
pertaining to the effect of terminalion of Employment. but no 
such modification shall shorten the terms of Options issued 
prior to such modification. 

6.9 Employee Transfers For purposes of the Plan, transfer of employment 
of a Participant between the Company and any one of its Subsidiaries 
(or between Subsidiaries) or between the Company or a Subsidiary and 
a RWAC. to the evtent the period of employment at a RWAC is equal to 
or less than five (5) years shall not be deemed a termination of 
Employment. Provided, however. for purposes of this Article 6, 
termination of employment with a RWAC without a wncurrent transfer 
to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries shall be deemed a 
termination of Employment as that term is used herein. Similarly, 
termination of an entivs status as a Subsidiary or as a RWAC shall 
be deemed a termination of Employment of any Participants employed by 
such Subsidiary or RWAC. 

6.1 0 Restrictions on Exercise and Transfer of Options. Unless dhelwise 
provided by the Committee: 

(a) During the Participant's lifetime, the Participant's Options 
shall be exercisable only by the Participant or by the 
Participant's guardian or legal representative. Afler the 
death of the Participant, except as otherwise provided by 
SBCs Rules for Employee Beneficiary Designations, an Option 
shall only be exercised by the holder thereof (including. but 
not limiied to, an executor or administrator of a decedent's 
estate) or his or her guardian or legal representative. 

(b) No Option shall be transferable except: (i) in the case of 
the Participant, only upon the Participant's death and in 
accordance with the SBC Rules for Employee Beneficiary 
Designations: and (ii) in the case of any holder after the 
Participant's death, only by will or by the l a m  of descent 
and distribution. 

6 11 Compet.tton hotwithsrand.ng anything in this Article 6 to the 
contrary pr or to a Change in Control in the event the Committee 
determ nes in its sole 0 Scretion that a Participant is engaging in 
compet;r $e acr v ly  with me Company, any Subsidiary or any 
bdsiness In wh cn any of me foregoing nave a Sdbstantial interest 
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(the "SBC Businesses"). the Committee may cancel any Option granted 
to such Participant, whether or not vested, in whole or in part. Such 
cancellation shall be effective as of the date specified by the 
Committee. Competitive actiity shall mean any business or activity 
in the same geographical market where a substantially similar 
business activity is being carried on by an SBC Business. including. 
but not limited to, representing or providing consuning services to 
any person or entity that is engaged in competition with an SBC 
Business or that takes a position adverse to an SBC Business. 
However. competitive activity shall not include, among other things, 
owning a nonsubstantial interest as a shareholder in a competing 
business. 

The determination of whether a Participant has engaged in 
competitive activity with the Company shall be determined by the 
Committee in good faith and in its sole discretion. 

Article 7 Restricted Stock. 

7.1 Grant of Restricted Stock. Subject to the terms and provisions of the 
Plan, the Committee. at any time and from time to time, may grant 
Shares of Restricted Stock to eligible Employees in such amounts and 
upon such terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine. In 
addition to any other terms and conditions imposed by the Committee, 
vesting of Restricted Stock may be condithed upon the attainment of 
Performance Goals based on Performance Criteria in the same manner as 
provided in Section 8.4, herein, with respect to Performance Shares. 
No Employee may receive, in any calendar year, in the form of 
Restricted Stock more than one-third of 1 % of the Shares approved fol 
issuance under this Plan. 

7.2 Restricted Stock Agreement. The committee may require, as a condition 
to an Award, that a recipient of a Restriied Stock Award enter into 
a Restricted Stock Award Agreement, setting forth the terms and 
conditions of the Award. In lieu of a Restricted Stock Award 
Agreement, the Committee may provide the terms and conditions of an 
Award in a notice to the Participant of the Award, on the Stock 
certificate representing the Restricted Stock, in the resolution 
approving the Award, or in such other manner as it deems appropriate. 

7.3 Transfwability. Except as otherwise provided in this Article 7, the 
Shares of Restricted Stock granted herein may not be sold, 
transferred, pledged, assigned. or otheiwise alienated or 
hypothecated until the end of the applicable Restriction Period 
established by the Committee, which shall not be less than a period 
of three years. 

7.4 Other Restrictions. The Committee shall impose such other conditions 
andlor restr ict i is on any Shares of Restricted Stock granted 
pursuant to the Plan as it may deem advisable including, without 
limitation, a requirement that Participants pay a stipulated purchase 
price for each Share of Restricted Stock andlor restrictions under 
applicable Federal or state securities laws; and may legend the 
certificates representing Restricted Stock to give appropriate notice 
of such restrictions. 

The Company shalt also have the rigM to retain the ceMcates 
representing Shares of Restricted Stock in the Company's possession 
until such time as all conditions andlor restrictions applicable to 
such Shares have been satisfied. 

7.5 Removal of Restrictions. Except as othemise provided in this Article 
7, Shares of Restricted Stock covered by each Restricted Stock grant 
made under the Plan shall become freely transferable by the 
Participant afler the last day of the Restriction Period and 
completion of all conditions to vesting, if any. However, unless 
otherwise provided by the Committee, the Committee, in its sole 
discretion, shall have the right to immediateiywaive all or part of 
the restrictions and conditions with regard to all or part of the 
Shares held by any Participant at any time. 

Restriction Period, Participants hoiding Shares of Restricted stock 
granted hereunder may exercise full voting rights and shall receive 
all regular cash dividends paid with respect to such Shares. Except 

7.6 Voting Rights, Dividends and Other Distributions. During the 
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as provided in the following sentence, in the soie discretion of the 
Committee, other cash dividends and other distributions paid to 
Participants with respect to Shares of Restricted Stock may be 
subject to the same restrictions and conditions as the Shares of 
Restricted Stock with respect to which they were paid. If any such 
dividends or distributions are paid in Shares, the Shares shall be 
subject to the same restrictions and wndtions as the Shares of 
Restricted Stock with respect to wtrich they were paid. 

Termination of Employment Due to Death or Disability. In the event 
the Employment of a Participant shall terminate by reason of death or 
Disability, all Restriction Periods and all restrictions imposed on 
Outstanding Shares of Restricted Stock held by the Participant shall 
immediately lapse and the Restricted Stock shall immediately become 
fully vested as of the date of termination of Employment, 

7.7 

7.8 Termination of Employment for Other Reasons. lfthe Employment o fa 
Participant shall terminate for any reason other than those 
specifically set forth in Section 7.7 herein, all Shares of 
Restricted Stock held by the Participant which are not vested as of 
the effective date of termination of Employment immediately shall be 
forfeited and returned to the Company. 

7.9 Employee Transfers. For purposes of the Plan, transfer of employment 
of a Participant between the Company and any one of its Subsidiaries 
(or between Subsidiaries) or between the Company or a Sukidialy and 
a RWAC, to the extent the period of employment at a RWAC is equal to 
or less than five (5) years, shall not be deemed a termination of 
Employment. Provided, however, for purposes of this Article. 
termination of employment with a RWAC without a concurrent transfel 
to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries shall be deemed a 
termination of Employment as that term is used herein. Similarly, 
termination of an entitys status as a Subsidiary or as a RWAC shall 
be deemed a termination of Employment of any Participants employed by 
such Subsidiaryor RWAC. 

7.10 Other Grants. Subject to the terms and provisions of the Pian, the 
Committee, at any time and from time to time, may make grants of cash 
or other properly to eligible Employees in such amounts and upon such 
terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine. If the grant 
is in the form of stock or shares in a company other than SBC: (a) 
the award shall be subject to tax withholding in accordance with 
Article 14, hereof, in the same manner as Stock. and (b) for purposes 
of deferrals under Article I O ,  hereof, the award shall be treated as 
Shares except that any dividends or dividend equivalents thereon 
shall be paid out unless othewise provided by the Committee, which 
may, among other things, provide that the dividends or dividend 
equivalents be deferred in the same manner as a cash award. 

Article 8 Performance Units and Performance Shares. 

8.1 Grants of Performance Units and Performance Shares. Subject to the 
terms of the Plan, Performance Shares and Performance Unls may be 
granted to eligible Employees at any time and from time to time, as 
determined by the Committee. The Committee shall have wmplete 
discretion in determining the number of Performance Units andlor 
Performance Shares Awarded to each Participant. 

8.2 Value of Performance Shares and Units. 

(a) A Performance Snare IS equivalent in va1t.e to a Snare of 
Stoclc n any ca enaar year no individual may be Awarded 
Performance Snares hav ng a potentlal pay0t.t of Shares of 
Stock exceeding two-th rds of 1% of the Shares approvea for 
%dance mder this Pan 

(b) A Performance ..nit sna.1 be eqdal in value to a fxed dollar 
amomt determined oy tne Committee In any calendar year, no 
inaivooual may oe Awarded Performance Units nav ng a 
potent al payodt eqdwa ent exceedmg the Fair Mar!w Value 
of two-th.rds 01 t ?4 of me Shares approved for SsLance Jnder 
tnis Plan Tne nJmber of Snares equivalent to the potent al 
paywt of a Performance Lnn mall ne determinea oy dmding 
the maximJm cash payo& of the Award ~y the Falr Marlcef ValJe 
per Snare on tne effectme date of the grant In the event 
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the Committee denominates a Performance Unil Award in dollam 
instead of Performance Units, the Award may be referred to as 
a Key Executive Officer Short Term Award. in all other 
respects, the Key Executive Officer Short Term Award will be 
treated in the same manner as Performance Units under this 
Plan. 

8.3 Performance Period. The Performance Period for Performance Shares and 
Performance Units is the period over which the Performance Goals are 
measured. The Performance Period is set by the Committee for each 
Award; however, in no event shall an Award have a Performance Period 
of less than one year. 

Performance Goals. For each Award of Performance Shares or 
Performance Units, the Committee shall establish performance 
objectives (“Performance Goals”) for the Company, its Subsidiaries, 
andlor dwisiom of any of foregoing, based on the Performance 
Criteria and other factors set forth in (a) through (d), below. 
Performance Goals shall include payout tables, formulas or other 
standards to be used in determining the extent to which the 
Performance Goals are met. and, if met, the number of Performance 
Shares andlor Performance Units which would be converted into Stock 
andlor cash (or the rate of such conversion) and distributed to 
Participants in accordance with Section 8.6. Ail Performance Shares 
and Performance Units which may not be Converted under the 
Performance Goals or which are reduced by the Committee under Section 
8.6 or which may not be converted for any other reason afler the end 
of the Performance Period shall be canceled at the time they would 
othelwise be distributable. When the Committee desires an Award to 
qualify under Section 162(m) of the Code, as amended, the Committee 
shall establish the Performance Goals for the respectie Performance 
Shares and Performance Units prior to or within 90 days of the 
beginning of the service relating lo  such Performance Goal, and not 
later than after 2556 of such period of Service has elapsed For all 
other Awards, the Performance Goals must be established before the 
end of the respective Performance Period. 

8.4 

(a) The Performance Criteria which the Committee is authorized lo 
use, in its sole discretion, are any of the following 
criteria or any combination thereof: 

(1) Financial performance of the Company (on a consolidated 
basis), of one or more of its Subsidiaries, andlor a 
division of any of the foregoing. Such financial 
performance may be based on net income andlor Value Added 
(after-tax cash operating profit less depreciation and 
less a capital charge). 

(2) Service performance of the Company (on a consolidated 
basis), of one or more of its Subsidiaries, andlor of a 
division of any of the foregoing. Such service 
performance may be based upon measured customer 
perceptions of service quality. 

(3) The Company’s Stock price; return on shareholders 
equity; total shareholder return (Stock price 
appreciation pius dividends, assuming the reinvestment of 
dividends); andlor earnings per share. 

(4) With respect to the Company (on a consolidated basis), to 
one or more of its Subsidiaries, andlor to a division of 
any of the foregoing: sales: costs; market share of a 
product or service; return on net assets; return on 
assets; return on capital; profit margin; andlor 
operating revenues, expenses or earnings. 

(b) i f  the performance of more than one Subsidiary is being 
measured to determine the attainment of performance goals, 
then a weighted average of the subsidiaries’ results shall be 
used, as determined by the Committee, including, but not 
limiled to. basing such weighting upon the revenues, assets 
or net income for each Subsidiary for any year prior lo the 
Performance Period or by using budgets to weight such 
Subsidiaries. 
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8.5 

8.6 

(c) Except to the extent otherwise provided by the Committee in 
full or in part. if any of the following events occur during 
a Performance Period and would directly affect the 
determination of whether or the extent to which Performance 
Goals are met. they shall be disregarded in any such 
computation: changes in accounting principles; extraordinary 
Rems; changes in tax laws affecting net income and/or Value 
Added; natural disasters, including floods, hurricanes, and 
earthquakes; and intentionalb inflicted damage to property 
which directly or indirectly damages the property of the 
Company or its Subsidiaries. No such adjustment shall be made 
to the extent such adjustment would cause the Performance 
Shares or Performance Units to fail to satisfy the 
performance based exemption of Section 162(m) of the Code 

Dividend Equivalents on Performance Shares. Unless reduced or 
eliminated by the Comminee. a cash payment in an amount equal to the 
dividend payable on one Share will be made to each Participant for 
each Performance Share which on the record date for the dividend had 
been awarded to the Participant and not converted, distributed (or 
deferred) or canceled. 

Form and Timing of Payment of Performance Units and Performance 
Shares. As soon as practicable after the applicable Performance 
Period has ended and all other conditions (other than Comminee 
actions) to conversion and distribution of a Performance Share andor 
Performance Unit Award have been satisfied (or, if applicable. at 
such other time determined by the Committee at or before the 
establishment of the Performance Goals for such Performance Period). 
the Committee shall determine whether and the edent to which the 
Performance Goals were met for the applicable Performance Units and 
Performance Shares. If Performance Goals have been met, then the 
number of Performance Units and Performance Shares to be converted 
into Stock and/or cash and distributed to the Participants shall be 
determined in accordance with the Performance Goals for such Awards 
subject to any limits imposed by the Committee. Unless the 
Participant has elected to defer all or part of his Performance Units 
or Performance Shares as provided in Article 10, herein, payment of 
Performance Units and Performance Shares shall be made in a single 
lump sum, as s w n  as reasonably administratively possible following 
the determination of the number of Shares or amount of cash to which 
the Participant is entitled. Performance Unlts will be distributed to 
Participants in the form of cash. Performance Shares will be 
distributed to Participants in the form of 50% Stock and 50% Cash, or 
at the Participant's election, 100% Stock or 100% Cash. In the event 
the Participant is no longer an Employee at the time of the 
distribution, then the distribution shall be 100% in cash, provided 
the Participant may elect to take 50% or 100% in Stock. At any time 
prior to the distribution of the Performance Shares and/or 
Performance Units (or if distribution has been deferred, then prioi 
to the time the Awards would have been distributed), unless otherwise 
provided by the Committee, the committee shall have the authority to 
reduce or eliminate the number of Performance Units or Performance 
Shares to be converted and distributed or to mandate the form in 
which the Award shall be paid (Le.. in cash, in Stock or both, in 
any proportions determined by the Committee). 

Unless otherwise provided by the committee, any election to take a 
greater amount of cash or Stock with respect to Performance Shares 
InUSt be made in the calendar year prior to the calendar year in which 
the Performance Shares are distributed (or if distribution has been 
deferred, then in the year prior to the year the Performance Shares 
would have been distributed absent such deferral). In addition, if 
required in order to exempt the transaction from the provisions of 
Section 161b) of the Exchanae Act. any election bv an Insider to lake 
a greater amomt In cash mdst oe maoe OLr ng a Wmdow Period an0 
shall be sdoject to Comm nee approval 

For the purpose of converting Performance Shares into cash and 
distributing the same to the holders thereof (or for determining the 
amount of cash to be deferred), the value of a Performance Share 
shall be the average of the Fair Market Values of Shares for the 
period of five (5) trading days ending on the valuation date. The 
valuation date shall be the first business day of the second month in 
the year of distribution (or the year it would have been distributed 
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were R not deferreo] except tnat in tne case of d.stnbLtions due 
to death or Disability the va Jat on date mall be tne first 
bbsiness day of tne montn in wn ch tne Committee determ nes the 
distribution Performance Shares to be aislributed n tne form of 
Stock w II be convene0 at tne rate of one (1) Share of Stoclc pi 
Performance Share 

8 7 Termination of Employment DJe to Death Disaal.lty or Ret rement. If 
lne Employment of a Part.c pant sha I terminate by reason of death or 
D Sab ity, the Partic.pant sna.1 receive a lump sum payout of all 
outstanding Performance Lnits ana Performance Shares calculated as if 
al JnCnishea Performance Periods had ended with 100% of the 
Performance Goals achievea, payable in the year fo lowing tne date of 
termination of Employment n tne event of R n  rement. the hil 
Performance Units an0 Performance Shares mall ne converted and 
distriouted based on and sLb.ect to the achievement of the 
Performance Goals an0 n accoroance wdh al other terms of me Awara 
and this Pan 

8 8 Termoation of Employment for Other Reasons If the Employment of a 
Pan cipant sna I term nate for o!ner man a reason set forth in 
Sect on 8 7 (and otner than for Ca~se).  tne numDer of Performance 
Units and Performance Shares to be converted and d nributed shall be 
wnverted an0 d str OJted based upon the acnievement of lne 
Performance Goa s and in accordance with a I otner terms of the Award 
an0 me Pan. nowever the Panicipant may rece ve no more than a 
prorated payon of al Performance Unns and Performance Snares, 
based on tne portions of tne respective Performance Penods that have 
been comp eted 

8.9 Terminal on of Emp.oyment for CaJse in the event that a 
Participants Emp oyment sha I oe terminate0 by the Company foi 
Cadse. al Performance -nits ana Performance Snares shal be 
forfeited by lne Pan c.pant to me Company 

8.10 Nontransferaoi ty Performance Unns and Performance Snares may not 
be sold transferrea. p edged assignea, or othenwse a ienatec or 
nypothecated otner than in accordance wth the SBC R J ~ S  for 
Employee Beneficiary Des gnat ons 

Article 9 8enefciary Des'gnat on 

In the event of the death of a Participant, distributions or 
Awards under this Plan, other than Restricted Stock. shall pass in 
accordance with the SBC Rules for Employee Beneficiary Designations. 

Article 10 Deferrals. 

10.1 Deferrals. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee. a Participant 
may defer all or part of the Stock or cash to be received upon 
conversion and distribution of Performance Units or Performance 
Shares. In the event of the termination of Employment of a 
Participant prior to becoming eligible for Retirement, no deferrals 
under this Article shall be permitted and any previously deferred 
Performance Shares or Performance Unts, and earnings thereon, shall 
be distributed as soon as administratively possible. 

10.2 Deferral of Performance Unit and Performance Share Distributions. 
Prior to the calendar year in which Performance Units or Performance 
Shares are to be distributed (or if deferred. prior to the calendar 
year the Awards would have been distributed), Participants may elect 
to defer the receipt of a Performance Unit or Performance Share 
distribution upon such terms as the Committee deems appropriate. 
Unless otherwise provided by the Committee, Participants may elect to 
defer receipt of ail or part of a Performance Unit or Performance 
Share for distribution in a lump sum in February of any calendar year 
following the year in which the Awards would otherwise be 
distributed, or to be distributed in up to 15 annual installments 
(each installment shall be equal to the total Shares or cash in the 
Award divided by the number of remaining installments), payable each 
calendar year in the month determined by the Participant. beginning 
as soon as administratively possible afler Retirement or in a later 
month in the calendar year of Retirement. or in the calendar year 
immediately thereafter. 
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(a) Deferred amounts which would othewise have been distributed 
in cash shall be credited to the Participants account and 
shall bear interest from the date the Awards would otheNYise 
have been paid. The interest will be credited quarterly to 
the account at the declared rate determined by the Company 
from time to time, which Shall not be less than one-fourth of 
the annual Moodys Corporate Bond Yield Average-Monthly 
Average Corporales, as published by Moodfs Investor Service, 
InC., (or successor thereto) for the month of September 
before the calendar year in question. 

(b) Deferred amounts which would dhewise have been distributed 
in Shares by the Company shall be credled to the 
Participant's account as deferred Shares. The Participants 
account shall also be credited on each dividend payment date 
for Shares with an amount equivalent to the dividend payable 
on the number of Shares equal to the number of deferred 
Shares in the Participants account on the record date for 
such dividend. Such amount shall then be converted to a 
number of additional deferred Shares determined by dividing 
such amount by the price of Shares, as determined in the 
following sentence. The price of Shares related to any 
dividend payment date shall be the average of the Fair Market 
Values of Shares for the period of five (5) trading days 
ending on such dividend payment date, or the period of five 
(5) trading days immediately preceding such dividend payment 
date if the New York Stock Exchange is closed on the dividend 
payment date. 

(c) At any time during the calendar year prior to the calendar 
year during which an Award deferred under the provisions of 
this Article 10 is scheduled for distribution. a Participant 
may further defer the commencement of the distribution of 
such Award to a subsequent calendar year and upon such 
further deferral, change the number of installments 
applicable to the distribution of the Award. Amounts that are 
further deferred pursuant to this Article 10 shall continue 
to be subject to all provisions of this Plan including 
further distribution modifications as provided herein. 

Article 11. Employee Matien 

11 .I Employment Not Guaranteed. Nothing in the Plan shall interfere with 
or limit in any way the right of the Company or any Subsidiary to 
terminate any Participants Employment at any time, nor confer upon 
any Participant any right to continue in the employ of the Company or 
one of its Subsidiaries. 

11.2 Participation. No Employee shall have the right to be selected to 
receive an Award under this Plan, or, having been so selected. to be 
selected to receive a future Award. 

11.3 Claims and Appeals. Any claim under the Plan by a Participant or 
anyone claiming through a Partlcipant shall be presented to the 
Committee. Any person whose claim under the Plan has been denied n 
within sixty (60) days aRer receipt of notice of denial, submit to 
the Committee, a written request for review of the decision denying 
the claim. The Committee Shall determine conclusively for all parties 
all questions arising in the administration of the Plan. 

Article 12 Change in Control 

Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control: 

(a) Any and all Options granted hereunder immediately shall 
become vested and exercisable; 

(b) Any Restriction Periods and all restrictions imposed on 
Restricted Shares shall lapse and they shall immediately 
become fully vested; 

(c) The 100% Performance Goal for all Performance Units and 
Performance Shares relating to incomplete Performance Periods 
shall be deemed to have been fully achieved and shall be 
converted and distributed in accordance wiih all other terms 
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of tne Awaro ana i n s  Plan provided however. 
ndw tnstanoing anytning to tne contrary ;n i n s  Pan no 
outslano ng Performance ,nit or Performance Share may be 
redwed 

Article 13 

13 1 

Amenoment, Modif cat.on and Terminat on 

Amenament. Modircat on and Term natlon Tne Board may at any time 
suspend or terminate tne Plan n *hole or in part; the Disinteresteo 
Cornminee may at any 1 me ana from time to m e  alter or amend the 
Plan in wnoe or in pan 

13 2 Awaros Previads y Granted No term nation. amendment, or mcdiflcation 
of the Plan sna I adverse.y affect n any materlal way any Award 
previods y grantea under the P.an. withod the wrinen consent of the 
Participant noloing s.cn Award 

Article ?4  Withno a ng 

14 1 Tax Withnolo:ng. The Company shad aeduct or wnnnold an amodnt 
sufficient to satisfy Feoera , state, an0 loca taxes (inc Ld ng the 
Part cipant's employment tax obllgat ons) required by aw to be 
withheld w in  respect to any taxa0 e event arising or as a resun of 
i n s  Plan [ W tnho d ng Taxes") 

14.2 Share W tnno d ng With respect to wthholding reqdired upon the 
exerc se of Options. dpon tne apse of restrict ons on Restr.ctea 
Stock. upon the OistribLt on of Performance Shares n the form of 
Stock. or dpon any other taxaD e event nereunder involv ng the 
transfer of Stoc< to a Part.c pant. tne Company snall withhold Stock 
having a Far Market ValLe on me date the tax is to be aetermined n 
an amount eqLal to me W tnnoiaing Taxes on such Stock 

Any fract ona Snare of StocK payable to a Partic pant mall be 
mtnhe d as aadn onal Federa witnho d ng, or, at tne opt on of the 
Company pa a .n cash to the Participant 

J n  ess ofnew se aelerm nea oy the Committee, m e n  the method of 
payment lor tne Exerc se Pr ce s from the sale by a stockbroker 
pursuant to Section 6 7(0)(  ) here n, of the Stoclc acqd reo throbgh 
the Option exerc se. tnen tne tax withhold ng sha I be sat sfed out 
of tne proceeds For aam n stratlve pdrposes in oetermin ng me 
amodnt of taxes oue the sale price of sucn Stoclc shall be deemed to 
be the Fair Market Value of the Stock 

Pnor to me end of any Performance Per cd a Participant may elect 
to nave a greater amodnt of Stoc< wlthheld from tne 0 stribution of 
Performance Shares to pay witnnolo ng taxes; provided, however the 
Committee may pr0hib.t or limit any individual e ection or al such 
elections at any 1 me In add t on if required in order to exempt 
me transact on from me provisions of Sect on 16(n) of tne Exchange 
Act, any sucn e ect on by an lns;aer mdst ne made ddring a Window 
Period and snail be sdolect to CommMee approval 

Art1c.e 15 Successors 

AI ob.iga1~ons of the Company bnaer tne Plan, witn respect to 
Awaros granted herednoer, sha I be binoing on any successor to the 
Company wnetner the existence of SLcn successor s the resdrt of a 
oirect or ma rect pdrcnase. merger. conso idat.on or otnemise. of 
a I or sLbstantia y al of the bLsiness anolor assets of the 
Company 

Artic.e 16 Legal ConslrLction 

16 1 Genoer and NLmber Except wnere othermse indicatea by the context. 
any mascd ne term Lseo nerein a so shall inc Lde the femin ne the 
plural sha I incldde the s ngd ar an0 Ine slngular sha I include tne 
plural. 

16.2 Severability. In the event any provision of the Plan shall be held 
illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity shall 
not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan shall be 
construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid Drovision had not 
been included. 
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16.3 Requirements of Law. The granting of Awards and the issuance of 
Shares under the Plan shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules, 
and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies 
or national securities exchanges as may be required. 

16.4 Securities Law Compliance. With respect to Insiders transactions 
under this Plan are intended to comply wiih all applicable condhions 
or Rule 16b-3 or its successors under the Exchange Act. To the extent 
any provision of the plan or action by the Committee fails to comply 
with a condition of Rule 16b-3 or its successors, it shall n d  apply 
to the Insiders or transactions thereby 

16.5 Governing Law. To the extent not preempted by Federal law, the 
Plan, and all agreements hereunder, shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 
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<DOCUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-l2 
<SEQUENCE>8 
<TEXT> 

<TABLE> 
CAPTION, 

EXHiBlT 12 

SBCCOMMUNICATIONSINC 
COMPUTATiON OF RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Dollars in Millions 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 

1999 1998 1997 I996 1995 

<SS CCS <c> <c> <c> <c> 
Income Before income Taxes, 

Extraordinary Items and Cumulative 
Effect of Accounting Changes’ $ 10,382 $ 11.859 $6,356 $ 8.789 $ 8,139 
Add: Interest Expense 1,430 1,605 1,550 1,418 1,513 

Dividends on Preferred Securities 118 114 98 68 6 
1/3 Rental Expense 236 228 202 188 152 

Adjusted Earnings $12,166 $13,806 5 8 . m  $10,453 $9.810 ....................... ___________  ....................... ___________  

Total Interest Charges $ 1,511 $ 1,691 $1,700 $1,589 $ 1,533 
Dividends on Preferred Securities 118 114 98 68 6 
1/3 Rental Expense 236 228 202 188 152 

Adjusted Fixed Charges $ 1,865 $ 2,033 S2,OM) $1,845 $ 1,691 --------______------___ ___________  ....................... _____--------_________. ___________  

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 6.52 6.79 4.10 5.67 5.80 

<FN, 
* Undistributed earnings on investments accounted for under the equty method have been excluded. 
4FN> . .  .. 
</TABLE> 
</TEXT> 
c/DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
<lYPE>EX-13 

CDESCRIPTlON>PORTlONS OF SBCS 19WANNUAL REPORT 
<TEXT> 

cSEQUENCE>9 

16 of 144 
6/12/00 4:15 PM 



Edgar Filing 

'y 

hnp://www.shareholder.comNisito~~edgar ~0-000018&CornpanylD=SBC&header=A&faater=A 

U 

<TABLE> 
Selected Financial and Operating Data 
Dollars in millions except per share amounts 
... 

At December 31 or for the year ended: 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 
. -. 
<S> <C> <c> CCZ <c> CC, 
Financial Data 1 
Operating revenues $ 49.489 $ 46,207$ 43,106 $ 40,510$ 37,134 

Operating expenses $ 37,891 $ 34,984$ 35,504 $ 30,461 $ 27,976 
............... 
Operating income $ 11,598 $ 11,2230 7,602 $ 10.049$ 9.158 

Interest expense $ 1,430$ l,M15$ 1,5500 1,418$ 1,513 

Equityinnetincomeofaffiliates $ 912 $ 6135 437 $ 4705 216 
- 

Income taxes $ 4,280 $ 4.380$ 2,451 $ 3.368$ 2,858 
. ............. 
Income before enraordinary tems and 
CumL at ve effect of accoLnt ng change 6 6 573 5 7 735 5 4,087 $ 5,705 5 5.36; 
. .... .... . 
Net income (loss) 2 $ 8.159 $ 7690 5 4087 $ 5.795 I 11.347) . .  ........................................................... 
Earnings per common share: 
Income before extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.93 $ 2.27 $ 1.21 $ 1.67 $ 
. 
Net income (loss) 2 $ 2.39 $ 2.26 5 1.21 $ 1.70$ (0.39) 

Earnings per common share-assuming dilution: 
Income before extraordinary items and 

......................... 

cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.90 $ 2.24 $ 1.20 $ 1.36 $ 

1.57 

1.56 . ........... 
Net inwme (loss) 2 $ 2.36 $ 2.23 $ 1.20 $ 1.69$ (0.39) 

Total assets $ 83,215 $ 74,966 $ 69,917 $ 65.765$ 62,197 

Long-term debt $ 17,475 $ 17,170$ 17,787 $ 16,53616 16,105 

. ....... 
.. ..... 

Construction and capital expenditures $ 10,304 $ 8,882 5 8,856 $ 8,304 $ 6.891 
........ 
Free cash flow 3 $ 6,274 $ 4,099 $ 2,723 0 2 , W $  3,946 
............................ 
Dividends declared per common share 4 $ 0.975 $ 0.935 $ 0.895 $ 0.860 $ 0.8% . ................... 
Bwk value per common share $ 7.87 $ 6.69 $ 5.26 $ 4.940 4.26 

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 6.52 6.79 4.10 5.67 5.80 . -. 
~~~~~~~ 

Debt ratio 42.9% 47.3% 54.9% 55.6% 59.8% 

Weighted average common shares 

Weighted average common shares 

.... 

outstanding (000,000) 3,409 3,406 3,391 3.409 3,412 . 

outstanding with dilution (~0,000) 3,458 3,450 3.420 3,429 3,430 
~~~~~~ 

End of period common shares 

Operating Data 

Network access lines in sewice (000) 60.682 58.845 56,131 6 53.891 51,532 

outstanding (000,000) 3,395 3,406 3,398 3,389 3,418 . ..... 

. 

. -. 
Access minutes of use (000.000) 264,010 247,597 228,300 208,230 184~384 

Wireless customers (000) 5 11.151 8,686 7,556 6.018 4,814 

Number of employees 204,530 200,380 202,440 185,400 182,610 

</TABLE> 

........................ 

. 
.. ............................. 
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1 Certain one4 me aquslments are mc Jded n the resdns for each year 
presented See ResJns of Operations for a summary of the 1599,1998 and 1997 
one-time aqustments ano lne impact of these items on ncame before 
extraordinary items and CJmL alive effect of accountlng change and net 
income on 1996 resu.ls inc ude tne incremental operating impacts 
anributaDle to the operations of Ine overlapp ng AmerRech Corpom on 
(Ameritech) w re,ess propert es sod n 1999 Excludmg these Rems. SEC 
Communications Inc (SEC) reported an ad.usted inwme before CumLlaI ve 
effect of accounling changes of $5,643 or $1.65 dilutea earn ngs per share, 
and an ad.dstea net (ncome of $5.733. or $1 67 d luted earnings per share 
Tne 1995 results incl#.de (jwor6 force restrJctLr ng creait. (ii) galn on 
exchange of cei u ar nlerests and (I ) incrementa operallng mpacts 
attributable to lne operations of the over apping Amerdecn fflreless 
propertes sod n 1999 Exc ddmg lnese items. SBC reported an adjJsted 
income before extraord nary loss of $5.21 6, or $1 52 dilLted eammgs per 
share, ana an aalLsted net loss of $1.493 or 30.43 di uted loss per share 

2 Amounts inclt.de me fol ow ng enraordinary items and cLmdiative effect of 
accounting change 1999, ga n on sa e of over apping cellu ar properties and 
change in directory accodnting at Ameritech; 1998. ear.y retirement of debt 
and change in a rectory accomting at Southern New England 1elecommLn:cations 
Corporat.on (ShET) 1996 change n d rectory accountmg at Paclflc Teless 
GroLp (PAC) and 1995, dsconhmance of regulatory accounting 

3 Free cash flow s net cash pro" o w  by operating activil es less construction 
ana captal expenditLres 

4 D v.denas aec area by SEC s Boar0 of Dlredors' these amounts ao not incluae 
div denas declared and paia by Amer lecn SNET and PAC prlor to their 
respective mergers. 

5 All periods exc ude CLslomers from me overlapp ng Amer tech w reless 
propertes sold In 1999 

oFN> 

<PAGE> 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations Dollars in millions except per share amounts 

SEC Communications Inc. (SEC) is a holding company whose subsidiaries and 
affiliates operate in the communications services industry. S B C s  subsidiaries 
and affiliates provide wireline and wireless telecommunications services and 
equipment. directory advertising, electronic security services and cable 
television services both domestically and worldwide 

The consolidated financial results reflect mergers of SBC subsidiaries wRh 
Ameritech Corporation (Ameritech) in 1999, Southern New England 
Telecommunications Corporation (SNET) in 1598 and Pacific Telesis Group (PAC) in 
1997 as pooling of interests (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements). 

This discussion should be read in conjunction wRh the consolidated financial 
statements and the accompanying notes. 

Results of Operations 

Summary 

Financial results, including percentage changes from the prior year, are 
summarized as follows 
<TABLE> 

. 

Percent Change 

1999vs. 1998vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

. 
CS, sc> scs <c> <cs <c> 
Operating revenues $ 49,4895 46,207 $43,106 7.1% 7.2% 
Operating expenses 37,891 34,984 35,524 8.3 (1.5) 
Income before extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of accounting change 6,573 7,735 4,087 (15.0) 89.3 
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w 
Extraordinary items 1.379 (60) - - 
Cumulative effect of accounting change 207 15 - - 
Net income 8,159 7,690 4,087 6.1 88.2 ________________________________________------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~======= 
+TABLE> 

In 1999 and 1998, SBC reflected a cumulative effect of accounting change related 
to accounting for directory revenues and expenses (see Note 1 of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements). In 1999, SEC recognized an extraordinary 
gain from the sale of overlapping cellular properties sold in October (see Note 
15 of Ndes to Consolidated Financial Statements). In 1998. SBC incurred an 
extraordinary loss related to the early retirement of debt 

Reported results for 1999,1998 and 1997 also include onetime Rems that SBC 
normalies for management purposes. Normalied results in 1999 include the 
Following adjustments: 

o After-tax charges totaling $1.5 billion including, among other items, 
recognition of impairment of long-lived assets. adjustments to the estimate 
of allowance for doubtful accounts at Ameritech. estimation of deferred 
taxes on international investments. wireless conversion costs and other 
merger integration costs as discussed in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

o Elimination of income of $1 19 from the incremental impacts of overlapping 
wireless properties sold in October 1999. 

o After-tax pension settlement gains of $368 recorded in the fourth quarter 
associated with lump sum pension payments that exceeded the projected 
Setvice and interest costs. 

o After-tax gains of $77 recognized from the Sale of properly by an 
international equity affiliate. 

o Reduction of a portion of a first quarter 1998 aftertax charge of $27 to 
cover the ws t  of consolidating security monitoring centers and 
company-owned cellular retail stores. 

<PAGE> 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuno of 
Operations, continued 
Dollars in millions except per share amounts 

Normalized results in 1998 include the following adjustments: 

o After-tax gain of $1.01 2 from the sale of Telecom Corporation of New Zealand 
Limited (TCNZ) shares. 

o After-tax charges related to strategic initiatives totaling $268 resulting 
from the merger integration process with SNET. 

o After-tax gains of $219 from the sale of ceiiain non-core businesses, 
principally the required disposition of SEC's investment in Mobile Telephone 
Networks (MTN), a cellular company in South Africa. 

o Elimination of income of $1 23 from the incremental impacts of overlapping 
wireless properties sold in October 1999. 

o After-tax charge of $64 to cover the cost of consolidating security 
monhoring centers and company-owned wireless retail stores. 

o After-tax gain of $102 from the sale of certain telephone and directory 
assets 

Normalized results in 1997 include the following adjustments: 

o After-tax charges of $1.6 billion related to strategic initiatives resulting 
from the merger integration process with PAC. 

0 After-tax charge of $87 for SBC'S share of the costs of a work force 
restructuring at Belgacom SA (Belgacom). 

o After-tax charges of $304 for ongoing merger integration costs (see Note 2 
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). 

0 After-tax first quarter settlement gains of $90 at PAC asscciated with lump 
sum pension payments that exceeded the projected service and interest costs 
for 1996 retirements. 

0 After-tax gain of $58 from the sale of SBC's interests in Bell 
Communications Research, Inc. (Bellcore). 

0 Elimination of income of $88 from the incremental impacts of overlapping 
wireless properties sold in October 1999. 

Excluding these items, 1999 income before extraordinary gain and cumulative 
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effect of accounting change would have been $7,439 or 12.5% higher than 1998 
earnings of $6.61 1. The corresponding diluted per share amounts would be $2.1 5 
in 1999, or 12.0% higher than $1.92 in 1998. In 1998, income before 
extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change would have heen 
13.3% higher than 1997 earnings of $5,836 The corresponding diluted per share 
amountswouid have been 12.3% higher than $1.71 in 1997. 

Excluding these items, the 1999 and 1998 increases in income before 
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change were due 
primarily to broad-based growth in demand across SBCs operations. Results for 
1999 include operations related to the third quarter acquisitions of Comcast 
Cellular Corporation (Comcast) and Cellular Communications of Puerto Rico, Inc. 
(Cellular Communications). In addition, SBCs international investments 
experienced growth due to the acquisitions of Bell Canada in June 1999 and Tele 
Danmark N S  (Tele Danmark) in January 1998, as well as growth in 1999 and 1998 
from SBCs investment in Telefonos de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (Telmex). 

Segment Results 

As a result of the Ameritech merger and to better reflect the broadened scope of 
its operations, SBC adjusted its segment reporting StNCture in 1999. SBC now 
has four reportable segments that reflect the current management of its 
business: wireline, wireless, information and entertainment, and international 
The wireline segment provides landline telecommunications services, including 
local, network access and long distance services, messaging and Internet 
services and sells customer premise and private business exchange equipment. The 
wireless segment provides wireless telecommunications services. including imal 
and long distance services, and sells wireless equipment. The information and 
entertainment segment expands on what was previously the directory segment. and 
includes all directory operations from advertising, yellow pages, Whne pages 
and electronic publishing and Ameritechs electronic security and cable 
television operations. All international investment operations have been removed 
from the other segment and are shown separately in the international segment. 
The miscellaneous items that formerly were included in the other segment are 
immaterial and have been reclassified to corporate, adjustments and eliminations 
(see Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) 

The normalized segment results include the 1999 effects of Conforming accounting 
methodologies between SBC and Ameritech. Among other items, noncash adjustments 
were made to conform accounting for pension and postretirement benefk behYeen 
the companies and to immediately expense certain items routinely deferred and 
amortized by Ameritech. including Sales commissions and leased customer securiiy 
and paging equipment. The pension and postretirement adjustments include the 
effects of conforming the adoption date for postretirement accounting, methods 
of recognizing actuarial gains and synchronization of estimates related to the 
current yeats benefit plans. The conforming accounting changes for 1999 and 
prior were recorded as a cumulative effect of accounting change at the segments. 
This Cumulative effect of accounting change was retroactively restated to the 
appropriate year in SBCs consolidated results. Segment results for periods 
after 1999 also will include these conforming entries and be comparable to 1999 
results. 

Normalized income before income taxes, extraordinary items and cumulative effect 
of accounting change for each segment for 1999, 1998 and 1997 are as follows: 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 
~~~~~~~ 

1999vs. 1998vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

<s> <c> <c> cc> <c> <c> - - 
Wireline $ 8,052 $ 7,318 $ 6,558 10.0% 11.6% 
Wireless 918 564 372 62.8 51.6 
Information and entertainment 1,641 1,590 1,350 3.2 17.8 
International 706 453 512 55.8 (11.5) 
Corporate, adiustments .% eliminations 364 435 375 - 
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Changes in income before income taxes in the wireline, wireless and information 
and entertainment segments primarily reflect increases in operating income 
discussed below. Changes in income before income taxes for the international 
segment result primarily from the changes in equity in net income of affiliates 
and other income (expense) - net discussed below; changes in this line also 
impacted the wireline segment. 

The normalizing Hems impacting the wireiine segment include the 1999 one-time 
adjustments to the estimate of allowance for doubtful accounts, strategic 
initiatives resulting from the merger integration process and other items offset 
by 1999 pension settlement gains. One-time adjustments in 1998 include charges 
for merger integration costs related to the SNET merger, gain from the Sale of 
certain telephone and directory assets and the first quarter consolidation of 
certain Ameritech operations. The 1997 one-time adjustments include costs for 
strategic initiitives related to the merger integrati i process whh PAC, 
pension settlement gains and gains from the Sale of SBC's interests in Bellcore. 

The wireless segment's normalizing items include 1999 adjustments to wnvert 
Ameritechs wireless customers to SBC's network plalform and merger integration 
costs offset by recognition of pension settlement gains, the 1999, 1998 and 1997 
incremental impacts of the overlapping cellular propelties, the 1998 charge to 
cover the costs of consolidating company-owned cellular retail stores and the 
1599 reduction of this charge. In addition, one-time items affecting the 
wireless segment in 1997 include PAC merger integration costs. The information 
and entertainment segment includes onetime charges in 1999, including 
recognition of impairment of long-lived assets, adjustments to the estimate of 
allowance for doubtful accounts and other merger integration costs offset by the 
recognition of pension settlement gains, the 1998 charge to cover the wsk of 
consolidating security monitoring centers and the 1999 reduction of this charge. 
In addition. 1997 one-time iiems included PAC merger integration costs. 

The international segment's normalizing items include the 1999 gains related to 
sales by an international equity affiliate. 1998 gains on Sales of certain 
noncore businesses, principally the required disposition of SBC's MTN 
investment, and the sale of TCNZ shares. Also, 1997 included a one-time item for 
SBC's share of the costs of a work force restructuring at Belgacom. 

The following table provides a summary by segment of the net increase (decrease) 
of the normalizing items on income before income taxes, extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of accounting change for 1999, 1998 and 1997: 

. 
1999 1998 1997 

Wireline $ 73 $ 178 $ 1,966 

Information and entertainment 523 (23) 75 
International 129 (1,811) 86 
Corporate. adjustments & eliminations 97 - 562 

Total Normalizing impacts $ 828 $ (1,755) $ 2,629 

Wireless 6 (99) (60) 

- 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Operating Income Components of normaluea operating income by segment for 1999 
I998 ana 1997 are as follow 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 

1999vs. 1998vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

~~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~ 

e> cc> <C> <c> ccr ccr 
Wireline $ 9,125 $ 8,588 $ 7,702 6.3% 11.5% 
Wireless 1,280 931 647 37.5 43.9 
Information and entertainment 1,684 1,624 1.384 3.7 17.3 
International (8) (78) (43) (89.7) 81.4 
Corporate, adjustments & eliminations 442 422 458 - 
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segment results for 1999, 1998 and 1997 follow. 

Operating Revenues SBc's normalized operating revenues increased 33,637. or 
8.0%, in 1999 and $2,890. or 6.8%, in 1998. Components of operating revenues by 
segment for 1999, 1998 and 1997 are as follow: 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 

1999vs. 1998vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

<S> <c> <c> <C> cc>  CCZ 
Wireline $ 37,576 $ 35,419 3 33,656 6.1% 52% 
Wireless 6,764 5,629 5,023 20.2 12.1 
InforMion and entertainment 4,777 4.345 3,819 99 13.8 
International 147 149 122 (1.3) 22.1 
Corporate, adjustments 8 eliminations (304) (219) (187) - 

Wireline 

Wireline normalized operating revenues increased $2,157, or 6.1%. in 1999 and 
$1,763, or 5.2%, in 1998. Components of wireline operating revenues for 1999, 
1998 and 1997 are as follows: 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 

1999 vs. 1998 vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

CSZ 

Local service 
Network access' 

<C> CCZ <cs  ccs <c> 
3 19.126 $ 17.239 3 15.864 10.9% 8.7% 

Interstate 7.544 6,960 6,939 8.4 0.3 
Intrastate 2.645 2,717 2,762 (2.6) (1.6) 

Long distance service 3,471 3,679 3,616 (5.7) 1.7 
Other 4,790 4.824 4,475 (0.7) 7.8 

Total Wireline Revenues 3 37,576 3 35,419 3 33.656 6.1% 5.2% 

</rABLE> 
________________________________________----------------------------~---------------------------- 

Local service revenues increased $1,887. or 10.9%. in 1999 and $1,375, or 
6.7%, in 1998 due primarily to increases in demand, which totaled 
approximately 31,245 in 1999 and $1,270 in 1998, including increases in 
access lines, vertical services and data-related services revenues. in 
addition, revenues from two network integration companies acquired by SBC 
in the fourth quarter of 1996 and the second quarter of 1999 contributed 
approximately 5578 to the increase in 1999 and $25 in 1998. The number of 
access lines increased by 3.1 % in 1999 and by 3.9% in 1998. Approximately 
39% of access line growth in 1999 and 35% in 1998 was due to sales of 
additional access lines to existing residential customers. In 1999 and 
1998, approximately 33% and 31 % of the access line growth was in 
California. 19% and 23% was in Texas and 9% and 12% was in Illinois. 
Access lines in California, Texas and Illinois account for apprommately 
60% of SBC's access lines in both 1999 and 1998. Vertical SeN iCeS 
revenues. which include custom calling services, such as Caller ID. Call 
Waiting, voice mail and other enhanced services. increased by 
approximately 14% and totaled more than 53.3 billion in 1999 and increased 
by approximately 20% and totaled more than $2.9 billion in 1998. 

Local service revenues also increased as a result of regulatory actions 
that decreased one or more other types of operating revenues. In 1999, the 
introduction of extended area service plans, the intrduction of the 
California High Cost Fund (CHCF) and the September 1999 Texas Universal 
SeNice Fund (TUSF) rate rebaiancing collectively increased local service 
revenues by approximately $185 and decreased long distance revenues by 
approximately $1 12 and intrastate network access revenues by approximately 

82 of 144 6/12/00415 PM 



Edgar Filing 

$87, wRh a net decrease on wireline Operating revenues of approximately 
$1 4. In 1998, the introduction of extended area service plans and the CHCF 
increased local service revenues by approximately $73 and decreased long 
distance revenues by approximately $43 and intrastate network access 
revenues by approximately $24, with a net increase on wireline opwathg 
revenues of approximately $6. The state public utility commissions (PUCs) 
have stated that the CHCF and the TUSF are intended to directly subsldue 
the provision of service to high-cost areas and allow Pacific Bell 
Telephone Company (PacBell) and Southwestern Bell Telephone Company 
(SWBell) to set competitive rates for other services. The increases in 
local service revenues were Dartiallv offset bv decreases due to rate 
reductions under various PUC pri& cap orders of approximately $194 in 
1999and$53in 1998. 

Network access Interstate network access revenues increased $5584, or 8.4%, 
in 1999 and $21, or 0.3%, in 1998. Included In the results Is a decrease 
of approximately $66 due to a conforming item related to costs routinely 
deferred by Ameritech (see discussion under Segment Results above for 
further information on the effect of these conforming items). Excluding 
this conforming item, interstate network access revenues increased $650, 
or 9.3%, in 1999 and $21, or 0.3%, in 1998 due largely to Increases in 
special access, demand for access services by interexchange carriers and 
growth in revenues from end-user charges attributable to an increasing 
access line base, which coiiectiveiy resulted in an increase of 
approximately $795 in 1999 and $521 in 1998. In addition, customer number 
portability cost recovery, net of a Federal Communications Commission 
(FCC) retroactive rate decrease in the second quarter of 1999. contributed 
approximately $183 in 1999. Partially offsetting these increases were the 
effects of rate reductions of approximately $296 in 1999 and $336 in 1998 
related to the FCC's productivity factor adjustment and access reform. 
Additional decreases in 1998 totaling approximately $1 14 resulted from an 
increase in universal service fund net payments implemented in the first 
quarter of 1998 that exceeded the 1997 net payments of long-term support. 
The net federal universal fund payments and receipts will be exogenous 
factors in future federal price cap filings. 

Intrastate network access revenues decreased $72, or 2.6%. in 1999 and 
$45, or 1.6%. in 1998. These decreases were due largely to state 
regulatory rate reductions, including reduction of cellular 
interconnection rates and the Intrastate rate reduction by the Texas 
legislature as discussed under Regulatory Environment, of approximately 
$144in t999anda105in 1998andtheeffectsoftheTUSFandCHCF 
described in local service above totaling approximately $87 In 1999 and 
$24 in 1998. These decreases were partially offset by increases in demand, 
including usage by alternative intraLATA, to11 carriers of approximately 
$2W in 1999 and $t 79 in 1998 

Long distance Service revenues decreased $208. or 5.7%. in 1999 and 
increased $63, or 1.7%- in 1998. Long distance service revenues decreased 
in 1999 and 1998 by approximately $202 and $36 due to price competition 
from akernative intraLATA toll carriers and the effects of implementing 
dialing par8y. Decreases also resulted from the effects of regulatory 
shins of approximately $1 12 in 1999 and approximately $43 in 1998 
discussed in local service above related to the TUSF. CHCF and 
introduction of extended area service plans and rate reductions in Kansas 
and California of approximately $24 in 1999. These decreases were 
partially offset by approximately $1 28 in 1999 and $1 33 in 1998 due to 
increased demand at Ameritech's long distance unit, certified to provide 
long distance service outside SBC's region, increased demand and toll 
messages for SNET All Distance and increased demand at PacBell in 1998 

Other operating revenues decreased $34, or 0.7%. in 1999 and increased 
$349, or 7.8%. in 1998. Other operating revenues increased due to sales 
from nonregulated products and services. including customer premise 
equipment and network integration sales totaling approximately $91 in 1999 
and $263 In 1998 and revenues from other wireline business initiatives, 
primarily Internet services totaling approximately $59 in 1999 and $83 in 
1998. These increases were offset in 1999 and partially offset in 1998 by 
a decline in the public telephone business totaling approximately $1 33 in 
1999 and $36 in 1998. In addition, 1999 results include a decrease for the 
shin of certain directory revenues to the information and entertainment 
segment in the first quarter of 1999 totaling approximately $30. 

Wireless 
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Wireless normalized operating revenues increased $1,135, or 20.2%. in 1999 and 
$606, or 12.1 %. in 1998. Components of wireless operating revenues for 1999, 
1998 and 1997 are as follows: 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 

1999vs. 1998vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 - 

cs> CC> <CS <c> <c> <c> 
Subscriber 16 5,307 $ 4.538 $ 4,121 16.9% 10.1% 
Other 1,457 1,091 902 33.5 21.0 

Subscriber revenues consist of local service. incollect roaming (revenues 
from SBC wireless customers roaming outside their home area) and wireless 
long distance. Wireless subscriber revenues increased $769, or 16.9%. in 
1999 and $417, or 10.1%, in 1998 due primarily to growth in the number of 

customers of 28.4% in 1999 and 15.0% in 1998. The growth in customers 
includes approximately 1,237,000 customers of Comcast and Cellular 
Communications acquired in 1999. California Personal Communications 
Services (PCS) operations also contributed to the customer growth. These 
increases were partially offset by declines in average revenue per 
customer. SBC had domestic wireless customers totaling 11,151 .wO and 
8,686,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

Other wireless revenues relate primarily to outcollect roaming (revenues 
from non-SBC wireless customers roaming on SBC'S wireiess network) and 
equipment sales and increased $366, or 33.5%. in 1999 and $189. or 21 .O%, 
in 1998 The increases were primarily attributable to growth in outcollect 
roaming revenues, as well as equipment Sales in the California PCS 
operations. 

Information and Entertainment 

Information and entertainment normalized operating revenues increased $432. or 
9.9%, in 1999 and $526, or 13.8%, in 1998 Information and entertainment 
operating revenues for 1999, 1998 and 1997 are as follows: 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 

1999vs. 1998vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

<S> CC, SC> <c> <c> cc>  
Total Information and 

Entertainment Revenues .$ 4,777 $ 4.345 $ 3,819 9.9% 13.8% 

ciTABLE> 

Information and entertainment operating revenues increased in 1999 and 1998 
primarily from increased demand for directory advertising services. The 1999 
increase also includes approximately $107 related to the change in directory 
accounting at Ameritech and approximately $57 for changes in the directory 
publishing schedule. in addition, 1999 directory revenues increased due to the 
shift of certain directory revenues from the wireiine segment totaling 
approximately $30. Cable revenues increased approximately $51 in 1999 due 
primarily to customer growth. Growth in the number of customers. including 
through acquisitions, increased security revenues approximately $179 in 1998. In 
addition, 1998 directory revenues increased approximately $1 50 due to revision 
of a partnership agreement covering the publication of directories. 

Operating Expenses SBC's normalized operating expenses, which include operations 
and support and depreciation and amortization expenses, increased $2.601, or 
7.7%, in 1999 and $1,551, or 4.8%, in 1998. Components of operating expenses by 
segment for 1999, 1998 and 1997 are as follows: 
<TABLE> 
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Percent Change 

1999 ys. 1998 vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

<S> SC> CC> SCS CCZ <C> 
Wireline $ 28,451 $ 26,831 $ 25,954 6.0% 3.4% 
Wireless 5,484 4,698 4,376 16.7 7.4 
Information and entertainment 3,093 2,721 2,435 13.7 11.7 
International 155 227 165 (31.7) 37.6 
Corporate, adjustments 8 eliminations (746) (641) (€45) - - 
Total Normalized Operating Expenses $ 36,437 $ 33,836 $ 32,285 7.7% 4.8% 

<ITABLE> 

Operations and support SBC's normalized operations and support expenses 
increased $1,979, or 7.5%. in 1999 and $1.1 12, or 4.4%, in 1998. Components Of 
operations and support expenses by segment for 1999,1996 and 1997 are as 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

follows: 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 

1999vs. 1998VS. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

<S> <C> <C> CC> <c> <c> 
Wireline $ 21,625 $ 20,391 $ 19.796 6.1% 3.0% 
Wireless 4,557 3,991 3,769 14.2 5.9 
Information and entertainment 2,899 2,520 2,286 15.0 10.2 
International 138 209 147 (34.0) 42.2 
Corporate, adjustments & eliminations (920) (791) (790) - - 
Total Normalized Operations and 

ciTABLE> 

~ 

support $ 28,299 $ 26,320 $ 25,208 7.5% 4.4% 

Wireline operations and support expenses increased $1,234, or 6.1 %. in 
1999 and $595, or 3.0%. in 1998. The 1999 results include $91 related to 
the treatment of conforming accounting methodologies between SBC and 
Ameritech. The conforming items include noncash adjustments made to 
conform accounting for pension and postretirement knefds between the 
companies and to immediately expense certain items routinely deferred and 
amortized by Ameritech, including sales commissions (see discussion under 
Segment Results above for further information of the effect of these 
conforming items). The increase includes costs of approximately $460 in 
1999 and $21 in 1998 associated with business initiatives and other 
products, primarily Digital Subscriber Lines (DSL), Internet and voice 
mail. Additionally, operations and support expenses increased 
approximately $341 in 1999 and $21 4 in 1998 as a resun of i n c r e a d  wages 
and salaries, materials and operating taxes, and by approximately $575 in 
1999 primarily as a result of the acquisition of two network integration 
companies in 1998 and 1999. Operations and support expenses also increased 
by approximately $83 in 1999 related to costs asscciated with software 
right-to-use fees including digital network deployment initiatives and by 
approximately $288 in 1999 and $297 in 1998 as a resub of costs 
associated with reciprocal compensation for the termination of Internet 
traffic. 

Operations and support expense increases were partially offset by 
approximately $278 in 1999 and $317 in 1998 due to lower cmtract labor 
costs, employee benefits and costs associated with customer number 
portability. These reductions primarily resulted from the realization of 
merger initiative benefits. The 1998 decrease was partially offset by 
costs of approximately $262 related to progress in the PAC and SNET merger 
implementation process including centralizing support functions and other 
merger initiatives. Also partially offsetting the increases in operations 
and support was the change in accounting for somare costs (see Note 16 
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) which required 
approximately $345 of software costs to be cadtalized rather than 
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expensed in 1999. The 1997 results include the recognition of 1997 pension 
settlement gains relating to 1997 retirees since the merger with PAC 
totaling approximately $136. 

Wireless operations and support expenses increased $566, or 14.2%. in 1999 
and $222, or 5.9%. in 1998 due primarily to growth in the number of 
customers. including the acquisitions of Comcast and Cellular 
Communications discussed in subscriber revenues above. The 1959 resuits 
also were impacted by increased incollect roaming expenses and sohare  
costs capitalized rather than expensed in 1999 

Information and entertainment operations and support expenses increased 
5379, or 15.0%. in 1999 and $234, or 10.2%, in 1998. The 1999 results 
include $1 16 of conforming charges related to sales commissions and leased 
customer equipment that SecuriiyLink from Ameritech, Inc. (SecurityLink) 
previously deferred and amortized (see discussion of conforming items 
under Segment Results above). The change in directory acwunting at 
Ameritech discussed in information and entertainment operating revenues 
above caused expenses to increase by approximately $1 03. Electronic 
security and cable television expenses increased in 1999 and 1998 due 
primarily to grwvth-related employee increases. while directory 
emplayee-related expenses declined pattialiy offsetting the costs d 
increased demand and changes in the schedule of published directories. 

Depreciation and amortization SBCs normalized depreciation and amortization 
expense increased $622, or 8.3%, in 1999 and $439, or 6.2%. for 1998. Components 
of normalized depreciation and amortization expense by segment for 1959,1998 
and 1997 are as foilows: 
<TABLE> 

Percent Change 

1999vs. 1998vs. 
1999 1998 1997 1998 1997 

~ -- - 
-53- <C> <C> <c> <c> cc>  
Wireline $ 6,826 5 6,440 $ 6,158 6.0% 4.6% 
Wireless 927 707 607 31.1 16.5 

International 17 18 18 (5.6) - 
Information and entertainment 194 201 149 (3.5) 34.9 

Corporate. adjustments & eliminations 174 150 145 - - 
. 
Total Depreciatiinand Amortization $ 8.138 0 7,516 $ 7,077 8.3% 6.296 

<iTABLE> 

Depreciation and amortization expense is primarily in the wireline and wireless 
segments. In 1999, overall higher plant levels increased depreciation expense by 
$326 in the wireline segment and $67 in the wireless segment. Depreciation and 
amortization expenses also increased by $1 42 due to the third quarter 
acquisitions of Comcast and Cellular Communications. A new soffware accounting 
standard (see Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) also 
contributed $52 to the increase in 1999. Overall higher plant levels in 1998 
increased depreciation expense by $329 in the wireline segment and $88 in the 
wireless segment. Amortization expense at SecurilyLink increased $38 in 1998 due 
to acquisitions. The increase in 1998 was partially offset by reduced 
depreciation of $42 on certain wireline analog switching equipment mnten off 
in 1997. 

A full year of operations from the wireless acquisitions, along with additional 
capital expenditures as a part of the rapid deployment of advanced data 

=-1=====1111===1=====1111=====r=====1=====================================~====-========================= 

seNices. is expected to increase depreciation and amortization expense by 
approximately 5250 in 2000. 

Interest expense on a consolidated basis f a  1999 decreased by $175, or 10.9%, 
in 1999 and increased by $55, or 3.5%. in 1998. The 1999 decrease was due 
primarily to reductions in interest expense resulting from l w r  average deM 
levels due to debt retirements in 1998 and early 1999. The 1998 increase was due 
primarilyto higher average debt levels early in 1998 and lower capitalized 
interest in the wireless segment in 1998 than in 1997. 

Equity in net income of affiliates increased $299 in 1999 and $176 in 1998. The 
1999 increase includes $1 31 of gains related to the sale of property by SBc's 
Israeli equity affiliate and refiects increased equity in net income of $1 08 
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from investments in Teimex and Tele Danmark. The new investment in Bell Canada 
along with increased earnings at MATAV contributed 571 to the increase. These 
increases were partially offset by $83 of reduced earnings from the sale of 
SBC's investment in TCNZ and lower earnings from Telkom SA Limited (Telkom) and 
Belgacom. Investments in domestic wireless partnerships contributed 517 to the 
increase. 

The 1998 increase includes $1 32 from inclusion of the first year of earnings 
from Tele Danmark and earnings growth at Belgacom. offset by reduced earnings 
from TCNZ, which was sold in April 1998. Also contributing to the increase was 
$92 from Telmex, Telkom. domestic wireless partnerrhips and MATAV. These 
increases were partially offset by increased losses of $53 from wireless start 
up costs in Switzerland and long distance start up costs in Switreriand, France 
and Israel. 

SEC's earnings from foreign affiliates will continue to be sensitive to exchange 
rate changes in the value of the respective local currencies. SBC's foreign 
investments are recorded under United States' generally accepted accounting 
principles, which include adjustments for the purchase method of accounting and 
exclude certain adjustments required for local reporting in specific countries. 
such as inflation adjustments. Equity earnings in 2000 will reflect a full year 
of operations from SECs investment in Bell Canada (see Note 15 of Nates to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of the Bell Canada investment). 

Other income (expense) -net in 1999,1998 and 1997 includes amounts that SBC 
management normalized for evaluating results. Normalizing adjustments for the 
incremental impacts of overlapping wireless properties sold in October 1999 were 
524 in 1999. $31 in 19% and $21 in 1997. Amounts for 1998 include gains of 
52,071 related to various sales of investments and assets, primarily the Mle of 
TCNZ and the required disposition of MTN. Amounts for 1957 also reflect gains of 
$96 from the sale of SBC's interests in Bellcore and $26 in charges related to 
strategic initiatives, primarily writeoffs of nonoperating plant. Excluding 
these items. other income (expense) - net was expense of $205 in 1999, $156 in 
1998and $0 in 1997. 

Resuits for 1999 include a gain from the sale of a portion of Amdocs Limited 
(Amdocs). an SBC equity investee, of approximately $92 and gains of 
approximately $63 representing dividends and market adjustments on Amdocs shares 
used for contributions to the SEC Foundation and deferred Compensation. Results 
for 1995 also include a gain of approximately $59 recognized from the sale of 
SBC's investment in Chile and a gain of approximately $81 recognized from the 
sales of certain discontinued plant and other investments. These gains were 
offset by increased expenses related to higher appreciation in the market value 
of Telmex L shares underlying certain SBC debt redeemable in either cash or 
Telmex L shares than in the comparable periods of 1998, net of gains recognized 
from the sale of certain Telmex L shares, of approximately $296 and 
approximately $76 in dividends paid on preferred securities issued by Ameritech 
subsidiaries, losses on forward exchange contracts and other nonoperating Rems 
In addiion, higher wireless minority interest and lower interest income 
resulted in approximately $160 net expense. 

During 1998, SBC recognized expenses of approximately $237 related to an 
impairment of an international investment and investments in certain wireless 
technologies, primarily wireless video, and approximately 51 54 related to the 
combination of dividends paid on preferred securities owned by Ameriiech 
subsidiaries, losses on forward exchange contracts and debt redemption costs. 
Partially offsetting these expenses was other income related to a special 
dividend of approximately $1 58 received from Amdocs and gains of approximately 
5127 recognized on the sale and the charitable contribution of SEC's 
available-for-sale investment in Telewest Communications plc. 

Results for 1997 include gains of approximately $95 recognized from the sale of 
all or portions of certain international investments and royalty payments 
associated with software developed by Amdocs and other investment gains totaling 
approximately $82. Partially offsetting these gains was the net activity related 
to market movement on Telmex L shares of approximately $47 and the combination 
of dividends paid on preferred securities owned by Ameritech subsidiaries and 
IOSSeS on forward exchange contracts totaling approximately 554. In addition, 
higher minority interest and lower interest income resulted in approximately 596 
net expense 

Income taxes for 1999, 1998 and 1997 reflect the tax effect of certain one-time 
charges related to strategic initiatives resulting from SBC's comprehensive 
review of operations after completion of the Ameritech. SNET and PAC mergers, 
gains related to the sale of various assets and businesses and other items, and 
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pension Settlement gains (see further discussion of these items under Segment 
Results). The net effective tax rate on these items differed as a resun of 
nondeductible items included in the charges and valuation adjustments to certain 
deferred tax assets. Excluding these items, income taxes for 1959. 1998 and 1997 
would have been $4.242, $3,749 and $3,331. Income taxes for 1999.1998 and 1997 
were higher due primarily to higher income before income taxes 

Extraordinary items In 1999, SBC recorded an extraordinary gain of $1,379, net 
of taxes of $960, related to the sale of overlapping wireless properties in 
October (see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). In 1998, 
SBC recorded an extraordinary loss of $60 related to the repurchase of $&a4 of 
long-term debt. 

Cumulative effect of accounting change As discusssd in Note 1 of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, Ameritech's directory publishing subsidiary, 
effective January 1, 1999, and SNET effective January 1, 1998, changed their 
methods of recognizing directory publishing revenues and related expenses (see 
Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The cumulative after-tax 
effect of applying the new method to prior years was recognized as of January 1, 
1999 and 1998 as a one-time, noncash gain applicable to wntinuing operations 
of $207, or $0.06 per share and $1 5, or $0.01 per share, net of deferred taxes 
of $125 and $1 1. 

Operating Environment and Trends of the Business 

Regulatory Environment 

Overview 

The telecommunications industry is in a period of dynamic transition from a 
tightly regulated industry overseen by multiple regulatoly bodies to a 
market-driven industry monitored by state and federal agencies. SBC's wireline 
telecommunications subsidiaries remain subject to regulation by state regulatory 
commissions for intrastate services and by the FCC for interstate services. 

Consolidation of companies is occurring within the marketplace for local 
telephone service and across other communications services. such as long 
distance, wireless, electronic security, cable television, Internet and other 
data transmission. Companies operating in some of these markets also are 
expanding into others, such as the provision of local service by long distance 
companies. and companies in previously unrelated industries, such as 
entertainment. are expanding into communications and communications companies 
are expanding into these unrelated industries. Additionally, new technologies 
ais0 are affecting the way people view and use communications services. 

The telecommunications industry also is changing internationally, as 
government-owned telephone monopolies are being privatbed in many countries and 
competitive entrants are authorized. United States-controlled companies have 
acquired or formed investments, joint ventures or strategic relationships with 
these newly privatized companies or their new competitors involving any or all 
of the range of telecommunications services. Foreigncontrolied companies have 
also acquired or formed such relationships with United States companies 

SBC is aggressively representing its interests before federal and state 
regulatory bodies, courts, Congress and state legislatures. SBC will continue to 
evaluate the competitive nature of its business and develop appropriate 
competitive, legislative and regulatory strategies, 

Trends 

National-Local 

In 1999, SBC began to implement a "National-Local" strategy in conjunction with 
its acquisition of Ameritech. Under the '"National-Local" strategy SBC will seek 
to become a competitive local exchange carrier (CLEC) and offer iml exchange 
services in 30 new markets across the country in combination with other major 
national and international operations. SBC expects to introduce selvice in nine 
new markets in 2000, and is required by the FCC to enter the remaining 21 
markets by midyear 2002 (see Ameritech Merger discussion below). This 
'"National-Local" strategy is part of SBC's overall strategy to expand from a 
regional company to a company that provides communications services and products 
nationally and globally. 

Broadband initiative 
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In October 1999, as the first post-Ameritech merger initiative. SBC announced 
plans to offer broadband services to approximately 80% of SBC's United States 
wireline customers over the next three years (Project Pronto). SBC will invest 
an estimated $6 billion in fiber, electronics and other technology forthis 
brwdband initiative. The build-out will include moving many customers from the 
existing copper network to a new fiber network. Over the deployment perial, 
marketing costs will be incurred depending on the rate of customer sign-ups and 
installations. An ongoing assessment of the carrying value and economic useful 
life of the existing network facilities will continue (see Note 5 of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Wireline 

Federal Regulation 

Through affiliates, SBC offers landline interLATA long distance services to 
Customers in selected areas outside its wireline subsidiaries' operating areas. 
Further, through a subsidiary, SEC offers interlATA long distance services to 
customers in Connecticut. Under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (Teiecom 
Act). before being permitted to offer landline interLATA long distance service 
in any state within the 12-state region encompassed by the regulated operating 
areas of SWBell. PacEell, Ameritech and Nevada Bell (these areas with the 
addition of SNET are referred to as SEC's 15state area), SEC must apply for and 
obtain state-specific approval from the FCC. The FCC's approval, which involves 
consultation with the United States Department of Justice and the appropriate 
state commission, requires favorable determinations that SBC's wireline 
subsidiaries have entered into interconnection agreement@) that satisfy a 
1 +point '"competitive checklist" with predominantly facilities-based camer(s) 
that serve residential and business customers or, alternatively. the 
sukidiaries have a statement of terms and conditions effective in that state 
under which they offer the '"competitive checklist" items. The FCC also must make 
favorable public interest and structural separation determinations in connection 
with each application. See "State Regulation" for status of the state 
applications. 

Ameritech Merger On October 8, 1999, SEC and Ameriiech completed the merger of 
an SBC subsidiary with Ameritech (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements for a discussion of the merger with Ameritech). 

The FCC issued an order approving the transaction. subject to certain 
conditions, including fostering out-of-region competlon. promoting advanced 
services, opening local markets to competition and improving residential 
Services. These FCC conditions require specific performance and reporting 
provisions and contain enforcement provisions that could potentially trigger 
more than $2 billion in payments, as described below. if certain goals are not 
met. The following is a brief summary of the major conditions: 

Out-of-Region Competiion -Within 30 months from the merger closing. SBC 
must enter 30 new markets as a facilities-based competitive provider of 
local services to business and residential customers~ Failure to achieve 

~~~~ ~ ~~~~ ~~ ~~ 

entrance nto 30 markets with n me 30-month t.me frame could resLlt In a 
fine of $40 for eacn mar~er m ssed 

Promoting Advanced Services - SEC established separate subsidiaries to 
provide advanced services, such as DSL. These subsidiaries are required to 
use the same processes for the ordering and provisioning of SBC wireline 
services as competitors, pay an equivalent price for facilities and services 
and locate at least 10% of their advanced service facilities in low-income 
areas. in addition, SEC will provide data CLECs the economic equivalent of 
line sharing by providing them a second line at a 50% discount forthe 
purposes of providing advanced services 

Opening Local Markets to Competition - SEC will file performance measurement 
data reflecting 20 different categories for each state in its 13-state area 
with the FCC and relevant state commissions on a monthly basis. These 
performance measurements address functions that may have a particularly 
direct effect on SEC's local competitors and their customers such as SBC's 
response to competitors' requests for information and interconnection. If 
these performance goals are not met. payments of up to $1 .I billion over 
three years could be triggered. 

SEC will develop and deploy, with CLEC input, uniform electronic operational 
support systems (OSS) throughout its 13-state area that supporl the 
pre-ordering, ordering, provisioning, maintenance, repair and billing of 
resold local services and unbundled network elements. The OSS will include 
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uniform application-to-application interfaces and graphical user interfaces. 
Payments of up to $20 could be triggered if deployment targets are not met. 
SBC wiii restructure OSS charges to eliminate any flat rate upfront charge 
for the right to use SBCs standard interfaces for accessing OSS. in 
addition, SBC wiii provide free training and OSS expert teams for CLECs wRh 
annual revenues under $300. 

improving Residential Service - SBC will not charge residential customers 
minimum monthly long distance fees for at least three years after entering 
the long distance business in that market. in addkion. SBC will offer a 
low-income Lifeline universal service pian to low-income residential 
customers in each state in its Ibstate area. 

The effects of these conditions on results of operations is stili being 
evaluated. However, SBC expects to incur approximately $5W in additional 
expenses, exclusive of potential penally payments, in 2oW to comply with these 
conditions. 

Unbundled Network Elements in August 1996, the FCC issued rules by which 
competitors could connect with iocai exchange companies' (LECs) networks, 
including those of SBCs subsidiaries. Among other items, the rules addressed 
unbundling of network elements, pricing for interconnection and unbundled 
elements and resale of retail telecommunications services. The FCC rules were 
appealed by numerous parties, including SBC. in January 1999, the United States 
Supreme Court (Supreme Court) ruled that the Teiecom Act gives the FCC the 
authority to set guidelines for states to foilow in setting prices under the 
Teiecom Act, reinstated the FCC rules allowing those seeking to interconnect to 
"pick and choose" specific provisions from previous interconnection agreements 
and upheid FCC rules forbidding incumbent LECs from separating already wmbined 
network elements. The Supreme Court ais0 ordered the FCC to review ih 
unbundling rules that required major iocai telephone carriers, such as SBCs 
subsidiaries, to lease to competitors. at a diswunt, parts of their phone 
networks, including the telephone lines that run to customers homes, switching 
equipment that routes caiis and directory and operator assistance. 

in November 1999. the FCC adopted an order providing that the major iocai 
telephone carriers must continue leasing certain parts of their phone network to 
competitors at a discount. This order provides revised rules that expand the 
definitions of certain unbundled network elements. The FCC did rule that 
directory and operator assistance no longer has to be leased at a diswunt. The 
order also limits discounted access to switches serving customers with four or 
more lines under certain conditions. In addkion, the FCC declined to expand its 
regulation to include mandatory leasing of high speed internet and data 
equipment. Although the effect of this order on SBCs results of operations and 
financial position cannot be determined at this time, R is expected to be 
unfavorable. 

Reciprocal Compensation is billed to SBCs wireline subsidiaries by CLECs for 
the termination of certain local exchange traffic to CLEC customers. SBC 
believes that under the Teiecom Act the state commissions have authoi i  to 
order reciprocal Compensation only for intrastate iocai traffic, while the FCC 
has authority over interstate and interexchange traflic. SBC believes most 
internet traffic is interexchange and interstate. Several state WmmisSions have 
taken the position that a connection to the internet is intrastate or iocai 
trafflc and ordered SBC to pay reciprocal compensation to certain CLECs pursuant 
to existing contracts. In February 1999. the FCC declared that Internet t r a m  
is not intrastate or local traffic, but instead is primarily interstate, subject 
to interstate jurisdiction. However, the FCC found that existing federal iaw 
does not address to what extent, if any, compensation should be paid to CLECs 
that deliver Internet traffic to internet service providers and initiated a 
proceeding to establish such rules. Pending the completion of that proceeding, 
the FCC heid that state commissions, interpreting existing contracts and 
wnsistent with federal law, might nevertheless order payment of reciprocal 
wmpensation for Internet traffic in certain circumstances. The FCCs February 
1999 decision was appealed by MCi WoridCom, inc. (MCi). US West. inc. (US West) 
and GTE Corporation (GTE). In its appeal. MCi disputed that a connection to the 
internet is part of interstate communication. US West and GTE appealed the FCCS 
conciusion that states may require reciprocal compensation for such traffic 
pending completion of FCC rulemaking. These appeals are pending in the UnRed 
States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. 

in June 1999. the United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh CircuR (7th 
Circuit) issued an opinion affirming an order of the iiiinois Commerce 
Commission (iCC) directing Ameritech to pay reciprocal compensation on internet 
traffic under existing interconnection agreements. The 7th Circuit only reviewed 
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whether the ICCs determination that the parties intended that calls to Internet 
Service Providers would be subject to reciprocal Compensation violated federal 
law. The 7th Circuit declined to review any contract issues and concluded that 
the ICCs determination did not violate federal law as it was expressly 
permitted under the February 1999 FCC ruling regarding reciprocal wmpensation. 
SBC has sought a rehearing of the 7th Circuit Court decision. 

Other appeals of reciprocal compensation decisions currently are pending before 
the United States Circuit Courts of Appeals for the Fifth and Tenth Circuits, 
the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit (6th Circuit) 
and United States District Courts in Indiana, Ohio and California. in August 
1999, the Michigan District Court affirmed an order ofthe Michigan Public 
Service Commission (MPSC) directing Ameritech to pay reciprocal Compensation 
under existing interconnection agreements. Relying upon the FCCs declaratory 
ruling, the Michigan District Court concluded that the FCC had left the issue of 
reciprocal Compensation to be determined by state commissions and therefore 
deferred to the MPSCs decision. SBC has appealed that decision to the 6th 
Circuit. In July 1999, the United States District Court in Wisconsin dismissed 
SBCs appeal without deciding the merits of the case. SBC appealed that 
dismissal to the 7th Circuit 

SBC records expense for amounts sought by certain CLECs for the termination of 
Internet traffic to Internet service providers. 

Digfial Subscriber Line is a high-speed data service principally used for 
Internet access. In June 1998, SBC filed a petition with the FCC requesting 
relief for DSL from pricing, unbundling and resale regulatory restrictions. The 
FCC denied the petition and declared that incumbents, such as the SBC's wireline 
subsidiaries, must offer such services for resale at a discount and must offer 
unbundled access to the equipment used in DSL provisioning to the extent 
possible. SBC filed a petition with the FCC for reconsideration of this order. 

In November 1999, the FCC issued an order requiring the regional holding 
companies (RHCs), such as SBC, to share phone lines with data CLECs. Using a 
technology called line sharing, the RHCs split the frequency of a telephone line 
so the Internet service is carried on a portion of it. This ruling is not 
expected to have a material effect on SBCs financial position or resuiis of 
operations. 

Federal Access Rates In May 1999, the United States Court of Appeals for the 
District of Columbia Circuit (Court of Appeals) ruled that the FCC failed to 
adequately explain certain changes to part of the price cap formula used to 
calculate the access rates local carriers, such as SBC's subsidiaries, charge 
long distance carriers. In a subsequent order, the Court of Appeals stayed this 
decision until April 1, 2000. In November 1999, the FCC issued a further notice 
of proposed rulemaking (FNPR) and SBC and numerous other local exchange and 
interexchange carriers have proposed a solution to the issues in this docket 
that would temporarily maintain the current price cap formula and reduce it 
markedly after traffic sensitive rates are reduced. The effect of any future 
final decision on SBC's results of operations and financial position cannot be 
determined at this time. 

Pricing Flexibility In August 1999, the FCC adopted an order and an FNPR on 
interstate access charge reform issues. Under the order, Phase I flexibility 
will permit a LEC, such as one of SBCs subsidiaries, to offer volume and term 
discounts under contract for certain access services after the LEC has 
demonstrated that competitors have made substantial investments in facilities in 
the LECs market areas. Phase II flexibility will permit a LEC to have special 
access and dedicated transport services removed from price caps entirely after 
the LEC demonstrates that a greater level of competitive investment eMsts. 
Although the effect of this order and FNPR on SBCs resuks of operations and 
financial position cannot be determined at this time, it is expected to be 
favorable 

Acquisitions of Security Services Assets In 1998. the FCC issued a Memorandum 
Opinion and Order to Show Cause relating to four asset acquisitions by 
SecurityLink in 1996 and 1997. The FCC found that Ameritech had gained 
"financial control" over the entities from which SecurityLink acquired the 
security Services assets, in violation of the 1996 Act, and required that, 
within 30 days afler issuance of the Order, Ameritech show cause why the FCC 
should not require SecurityLink to divest the assets acquired in this 
transaction. Previously, the FCC had ruled that the 1996 transactionwas 
permissible under the Telecom Act, and the District of Columbia Circuit court 
(D.C. Circuit Court) had vacated and remanded this decision to the FCC. 
Ameritech filed a response with the FCC, contending that divestiture would not 
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be an appropriate remedy The FCCs decision on these Orders to Show Cause is 
pending. 

The effects of the FCC decisions on the above topics are dependent on many 
factors including, but not limited to, the ultimate resolution ofthe pending 
appeals; the number and nature of competitors requesting interconnection. 
unbundling or resale; and the results of the state regulatory commissions' 
review and handling of related matters within their jurisdictions. Accordingly, 
SBC is not able to assess the impact of the FCC orders and proposed rulemaking 
at this time. 

<PAGE> 

State Regulation 

The following provides an overview of state regulation in the 13 states in which 
SBC's wireline subsidiaries operated at December 31, 1999: 
<TABLE> 

Number of 
Signed 

Alternative Wireiine Long Distance Appiication 
State Regulation 1 Dialing Parity 2 Interconnection status 

Agreements 3 

sss CC, <C> cc, CCZ 
Arkansas Yes Yes 66 Decision expected in 2000 4 

California Yes. through Yes I40 Decision expected in Moo 4 
. _________ .______--- 

1 zm1 

Connecticut Yes, through Yes 18 Long distance service 
3l2001 provided 5 

Illinois Yes Yes 48 Filing planned in Moo 6 

Indiana Yes, interim Yes 45 Filing planned in Moo 6 
. 

Kansas Yes Yes 60 Decision expected in Moo 4 

Michigan Yes Yes 27 Filing planned in 2300 6 

Missouri Yes Yes 74 Decision expected in Moo 4 
. .................... 

Nevada Yes Yes 31 Filing planned in 20W 6 

Ohio Yes Yes 51 Filing planned in 2000 6 

Oklahoma Pending Yes 74 Decision expected in 2000 4 

Texas Yes Yes 204 State approval received in 
. 

1999; FCC decision 
expected in 2000 

Wisconsin Yes Yes 35 Filing planned in 2000 6 

-=TTABLE> 

Notes: 
1 Alternative regulation is other than rate of return regulation. 
2 In a January 1999 decision, the Supreme Court ruled that the FCC had the 

authority to issue rules implementing intrastate and intraLATA dialing 
parity. Dialing parity allows customers to subscribe to an intraLATA toll 
carrier just as they do for long distance services. 

3 Interconnection agreements are signed with CLECs for the purpose of allowing 
the CLECs to exchange local calls with the incumbent telephone company and, 
at the CLECs option, to resell services and obtain unbundled network 
elements. 

4 Awaiting determination by state commissions on SBCs compliance with the 
14-point competitive checklist. FCC approval is required subsequent to state 
determination. 

5 Restricted from providing interLATA long distance service originating in any 

. _________ .- 

92 of 144 6/12/00415PM 



Edgar Filing http://www.shareholder.comNisitors/edgar ~ 0 - 0 0 0 0 1 8 8 r C o m p a n y I D = S E C & h ~ ~ d ~ ~ A & f o o t  

w W 

of the other 12 slates in its 13-state area. 
6 Will require approval by the state commission and the FCC 

The following presents highlights of certain regulatoiy developments: 

Texas Long Distance Application In December 1999. the Texas Public U t i l i  
Commission (TPUC) unanimously approved SWBeil's interlATA long distance 
application and formally declared that the local phone market in Texas is open 
to cornpetition, noting that SWBeil has met the 14-point checklist requirements 
of the Telecom Act. SWEell's long distance application was filed with the FCC in 
January 2000 and the FCC has 90 days from that time to rule on the application. 

Texas Legislation in May 1999, the Texas legislature adopted Senate Bill 560, as 
amended. The bill, which became law on September 1,1999, extends incentive 
regulation indefinitely, provides more pricing flexibility on certain prcducts 
offered by SWBell, such as Caller ID, operator service and directory assistance, 
and allow5 SWBell to package some services in ways atlractive to customers. The 
bill a h  required SWBell to reduce the intrastate switched access rate it 
charges to long distance carriers by 1 cent on September 1, 1999 and by 2 
additional cents on the earlier of either SWBell's entry into the long distance 
market or July 1, 2000. The 2-cent reduction in intrastate access rates. 
assuming a July 1, 2000 effective date, is expected to resun in a reduction of 
intrastate network access revenues of approximately $72 for Moo 

California Property Tax Investigation In 1992, PacBell entered into a settlement 
with tax authorities and others, which fixed a specific methodology for valuing 
u t i l i  property for tax purposes for a period of eight years. As a result, the 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) opened an investigation to 
determine if any property tax savings that may reSUk from the settlement 
agreement should be returned by PacBell to Rs customers. In January 2000, the 
CPUC ruled the property tax changes resulting from the settlement are not 
subject to refund. This ruling is not expected to have a material effect on 
SBC's financial position or results of operations. 

California Ruling In December 1999, a CPUC administrative judge ruled that 
PacBell must pay $44 in penalties and contact customers for potential refunds 
for alleged overly aggressive and deceptive marketing practices related to 
packages of enhanced services such as Caller ID and call forwarding. SBC 
believes the findings in this decision are unwarranted and appealed the ruling 
to the CPUC in January 2000. 

Competition 

Wireline 

Competition continues to increase for telecommunications and information 
services. Recent changes in legislation and regulation have increased the 
opportunities for alternative communications service providers. Technological 
advances have expanded the types and uses of services and products available. As 
a result, SBC faces increasing competition as well as new opportunities in 
significant portions of its business. 

Recent state legislative and regulatory developments allow increased competition 
for local exchange services. Companies wishing to provide compettive local 
service have filed numerous applications with each of the stale commissions 
throughout SBCs 13-state area and the commission of each state has been 
approving these applications since late 1995. Under the Telecom Act, companies 
seeking to interconnect to SBC's wireiine subsidiaries' networks and exchange 
local calls must enter into interconnection agreements with SBC. These 
agreements are then subject to approval by the appropriate state commission. SBC 
has reached approximately 873 wireiine interconnection agreements with 
competitive local service providers, and most have been approved by the relevant 
state commission. AT8T Corp. (AT8T), MCI and other competitors are reselling SBC 
local exchange services, and as of December 31,1999, there were approximately 
1.6 million SBC access lines supporting services of resale competitors 
throughout SBC's 13-state area, primarily in Texas, California and Illinois. 
Many competitors have placed facilities in service and have b u n  advertising 
campaigns and offering sewices. SBC also was granted facilities-based and 
resale operating authority in certain territories served by other LECs and 
expects to begin offering local exchange service to these areas in late 2000. 

In California, the CPUC authorized facilities-based local services competition 
effective January 1996 and resale competition effective March 1996. While the 
CPUC has established local competition rules and interim prices. several issues 
still remain to be resolved, including final rates for resale. PacBell has 
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incurred substantial costs implementing local competition and number 
portability. In November 1998. the CPUC issued a decision authorizing PacBell to 
recover local competition implementation costs and a proceeding is pending to 
deternine the amount ofthose costs that are recoverable. In June 1999. the CPUC 
issued a ruling recategorizing certain PacBell services, including the 
maintenance of inside wiring, calling card, collect and person to person calls 
and the provisioning of directory assistance to interexchange carriers. as 
competiive products thereby allowing greater pricing flexibility. In l s  
ruling, the CPUC approved an increase in the maximum price for both inside wire 
repair Services and interexchange directory assistance. 

In Texas, the TPUC set rates n December 1997 that SWBe I may charge for access 
ana interconnection to IS telepnone netword Tne TPUC dec sion set priclng for 
dozens of network componenls an0 completed a consolidated arbaration between 
SWBell and s x of 11s wna esale cuslomers inc Ld ng AT8T ana MCI 

In lllmois. the CC approvea Amantage I lnos In 1994, prowding a framework 
for regulating Ameritech DY capp ng pr ces for noncompet.tive Servces. In this 
order the ICC approvea a pr ce cap on the monthly I ne charge for res dential 
customers and resioenlia ca in9 rales within local call ng areas for an 
tnilaf five year period that enoed In OctoDer 1999 Per tne oraer an 
application far review was sdomltled in March 1998 This renew is pend ng The 
price cap on residenl'al rates WI remaan in effect unt I the review .s 
completed or tne price cap s overriaaen by egislabon 

In MissoLri, the Missom PUD c Service Commiss~on (MSC) issuw oraers on a 
consolidatw aroitration hear ng w th AT8T and MCI and in a separate arbaration 
on selectea terns win Metropo Ian F.oer Systems (wn ch is now owned by MCI). 
Among otner terms. tne orders eSlabl!Snw a scount rates for resale of SWBell 
Sew ces and prices for JnbLnd ea networK elements SWBell appealed the 
interconnection agreement res2 t ng from the frst AT8TIMCI arotration 
proceed ng In November 1997 A secona arbitration process to aadress mner 
interconnection issLeS with A T 8 T  nas concldded. ana tne MSC ordered that a 
conforming interconnection agreement oe fi w SWBell appea ed i n  s second order 
in Apnl 1998 In a conso ,oated decision ssdea n ALgJst 1999, affecting both 
appeals, a federa dstr ct court in M ssoub affirmed most pon ons oftne 
MSC's oraers, fino ng among olner th ngs, that the MSC's pricing decisions were 
not Ln awful ana remandlng aec sons on certa n fiber and unbunaling issues oack 
to the MSC In Septemwr 1999 SWBe.1 appealw 1n.s decision to tne United 
States Co~r t  of Appea s for the E gnth C rcut 

In Odlahoma. tne Odanoma Corporal on Commission (OCC) approved a rule in 
October 1999 creating anernal ,e regL ation for companies who opt into tne 
alternat ve regd ation rue inc Jd ng SWBell Under me rdle wn ch wds 
approved as an emergency rJle ana s gned by the governor of Oklahoma, SWBell, In 
oraer 10 opt into aternal ve reg.. ai on, was req. rw to f le an application 
wnn the OCC for approval of 1s trans I on plan The pan was approvw Dy tne 
OCC in Decemoer 1999. Wnen SWBe opts :nro the alternatve regulation r.1 e 
SWBell wll be regLlated unaer price cap regJ atlon instead of rate of return 
regulation Jnder tne emergency r~ e SWBell plans to implement one element of 
the transition plan, nelword .nfrastrLctLre oeployment. includ ng DSL ana svntch 
replacement Tne cost of fd dep oyment is current y eslimatea at $Mo in total 
capital expeno tdres over tne ne* lnree years Other items under SWBell's 
transn on pian wi be imp emented on y f the Olclanoma legislature adopts the 
alternative regula! on rdle an0 Ine &le oecomes aw Tnese otner items include 
promotional discodnts on dnb.naleo netwow elements providea to competitors 
PriC.ng flexibi.ty and ratepayer benefits The ratepayer oenects include 
SWBells ool.gation to pay $30 nto an education nformatlon technolOgl fund as 
wed as waiver of the 0d.anoma dniversal access fund surcharge for five years. 
SWBell's current fLna surcharge IS approximate y $2 annual y and SWBell wid oav 
the CLrrent assessment into the fdno eren though it has waived collection of 
this amodnt from CLSlOmerS Tne OCC a ternative regulation rule has been 
submttw to the Okahoma leg SlatLre lor approval n lne session that oegins .n 
Febrbav 2000 If me rL e is no1 aDorovea into law SWBell wII not be , ~ ~~ ~.~ . .  
ooligated to comp.ete Ine nfrastrJcLre depoymenr and, at that time W~II 
determine if imp ementation wit c0ntin.e 

In Indiana. the Indiana Court of Appeals (Indiana Court) issued a decision in 
October 1999 reversing a portion of the 1997 Indiana Utility Regulatory 
Commission (IURC) Opportunity Indiana (01) order, which had directed Ameritech 
to reduce rates for basic residential and business services and remanded the 
rate issue to the IURC. In addition. the Indiana Court affirmed the IURCS ordei 
requiring Ameritech to comply with the infrastructure investment wmmlments 
made in 01. Ameritech has sought rehearing of this portion of the Indiana 
Coufls decision. Ameritech will continue to operate under the dher provisions 
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SBC's wireline subsidiaries expect increased comptiiive pressure in Zoo0 and 
beyond from multiple providers in various markets, including facilities-based 
CLECs, interexchange carriers and resellers. At this time, management is unable 
to assess the effect of competition on the industry as a whole, or financially 
on SBC, but expects both losses of market share in local service and gains 
resulting from new business Initiatives, vertical services and new service 
areas. Competition also continues to intensify in SBC's intralATA long distance 
markets. For example, it is estimated that providers other than PacBell n w  
serve more than half of the business intralATA long distance customers in 
PacBell's service areas. In addition, intralATA toll dialing parity, implemented 
throughout SBCs 13-state area, will continue to increase competition In 
intralATA long distance markets. 

Wireless 

SBC's wireless subsidiaries currently provide analog and digital wireless 
products and services to approximately 11.2 million Customers across the nation, 
making SBC one of the three largest wireless providers in the United States. SBC 
offers service in 23 of the 35 largest United States' metropolitan areas. 

Companies that were granted licenses in areas where SBC also provides wireless 
service include subsidiaries and affiliates of AT&T, Sprint Corporation and 
other RHCs. Significant competition from PCS providers exists in SBC's major 
markets. Competition has been based upon both price and service packaging, such 
as unlimited calling plans, and has contributed to SBC'S decline in average 
subscriber revenue per wireless customer. 

Under the Telecom Act of 1996, SBC may offer interlATA long distance over its 
wireless network both inside and outside the regulated operating areas. SBC has 
entered the wireless long distance markets, and offers wireless long distance 
service in all of its wireless sewice areas. 

SBC also has state-approved interconnection agreements to receive reciprocal 
compensation from interexchange carriers and other local service providers 
accessing Rs wireless networks in all states where it provides wireless 
services. 

Information and Entertainment 

SBC's directory subsidiaries face competition from over 1W publishers of 
printed directories in their operating areas. Direct and indirect competiion 
also exists from other advertising media, including newspapers, radio, 
television and direct mail providers, as well as from directories offered over 
the Internet. 

SBC's caole subsiaiary offers cab e le ev sion service n more than 80 
commLnt es n the Miowesf ano faces competition from other caole televis on 
providers in lnose areas 

SBC s SecJr.tyLin< compeles Yliln otnei companies across Nom Amenca as a 
provider of secLrity systems 

International 

Te mex was granted a concession n 1990, wh.cn expireo in AugLst 1996 as the 
sole proviaer of long aistance services n Mex co Several large competiiors 
nave rece vea c.enSes to compete w In Te mex and have begun operations AS of 
December 31 1999, Temex naa approx.mate y 84% of tne long d stance market in 
Mex co Telmexs snare of .nlernatlonal long distance traffic is expected to 
decline sign flcant y when me propon'ona return mechanlsm, WhlCn gJarantees 
Telmex me same percentage of ncom ng traffc as wtgwng traffu. explres 
Mexican regulators postponed the e m  nat on of me proportional return 
mechansm wh.ch ha0 been schedLled for year-ena 1999 The mecnanism may expire 
in 2000, bLt regulalors nabe not yet prowed a deRn1:ve time frame for the 
expiration Aggress ve .oca compel I on IS expected in 2000, primarily in the 
business segment 

SBC has an investment in the Hungarian telecommunications company, MATAV. MATAV 
provides domestic and international long distance telephone Service throughout 
Hungary and local telephone sewice in certain designated areas of Hungary. 
MATAV has a concession agreement that provides for exclusivity until December 
2001. There are discussions taking place with the Hungarian government to 
shorten the exclusivity period; this would require MATAVs approval. Once the 
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exclusivity period expires, MATAV will experience aggressive competition. 
especially in the domestic and international long distance markets. 

Other Business Matters 

New Accounting Standards In June 1998. the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
issued Statement No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 

es" (FAS 133). which will require all derivatives to be recorded on the 
balance sheet at fair value, and will require changes in the fair n l u e  of the 
derivatives to be recorded in net income or comprehensive income. FAS 133 must 
be adopted for years beginning afler June 15. MM).  with earlier adoption 
permitted. SBC currently is evaluating the impact of the change in accounting 
required by FAS 133, but is not able to quantify the effect at this time (see 
Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the 
new accounting standard on software costs). 

Acquisitions During 1999, SBC and Telmex each acquired a 59% interest in 
Cellular Communications. The total transaction was valued at $827. including 
assumption of approximately $370 in debt. 

In November 1999. SBC announced it has agreed to acquire Radiofone, Inc. 
(Radiofone) for approximately 8 million shares of SBC common stock. The 
transaction is expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2000, pending 
regulatory approvals. Radiofone serves more than 200,000 wireless customers in 
Louisiana and Michigan and approximately 300,000 paging customers in 11 stales. 

In January 2000, SBC and Telmex acquired a stake in Brazilian Wireless provider 
ATL - Algar Telecom Leste S.A. (ATL). which serves Customers in the Brazilian 
states of Rio de Janeiro and Espirito SantO. As part of the transaction. 
Williams Communications Group inc. will reduce its stake to a 50% economic 
interest in ATL. SBC and Teimex will have the opportunity to subsequently 
increase their investment to a 50% stake in ATL, but cannot do so until 2004. 
Until then. Algar Telecom retains an investment in ATL. as well as voting and 
board control of ATL. in accordance with Brazilian regulations. 

See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of 
the Comcast and Bell Canada acquisitions. 

SBC's Year 2000 Project SBC performed a four-step methodology to address the 
Year 2000 issue consisting of inventory and assessment. hardware and somare 
fixes, testing and deployment. All phases of the Year 2000 project were 
completed by December 31, 1999. SBC's network and operating systems successfully 
passed through the Year 2000 date change. Employees monitored the network and 
supporting systems and experienced no Year 2000-related problems. SBC spent 
approximately $475 on the entire project, with approximately $227 spent in 1999. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

SBC had $495 of cash and cash equivalents available at December 31,1999. 
Commercial paper borrowings as of December 31, 1999 totaled $2.623 out of $6 
billion authorized. SBC has entered into agreements with several banks for 
commnted lines of credit totaling $2.880, all of which may be used to support 
commercial paper borrowings (see Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements). SBC had no borrowings outstanding under these lines of credh as of 
December 31, 1999. 

Cash From Operating Activities During 1999. as in 1998 and 1997, SBC's primary 
source of funds continued to be cash generated from operations. as shown in the 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Net cash provided by operating activities 
exceeded SBC'S construction and capital expenditures during 1999, 1998 and 1997; 
this excess is referred to as free cash flow, a supplemental measure of 
liquidity. SBC generated free cash flow of $6.274. W,O99 and $2,723 in 1999, 
1998and 1997. 

In addiiion, SBC will incur additional expenses totaling approximately $2 
billion in 2000 related to the FCC merger condhions, the merger initiatives, 
including Project Pronto and obtaining approval to begin offering long distance. 

Cash From Investing Activities To provide highquality wrnmunications sewices 
to its customers, SBC. particularly its wireline and wireless operations, must 
make significant investments in property, plant and equipment. The amount of 
capital investment is influenced by demand for services and products, continued 
growth and regulatory commitments. 

SBC's capital expenditures totaled $10,304, $8.882 and $8.856 for 1999. 1998 and 
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1997. Capdal expenolLres in the w re !ne segment increased by 17 296 ,n 1999 
compared w in 1998 oLe primari y to DSL oigita and broadoana network uwrades 
capitaliea software accoLnl ng rd e cnanges and regalatory commnments. The 
wireline segment's capital expenoitLres were relatively bnchangw in 1998 Tne 
wireless segment's capital expenaitLres were relatively Lnchanged in 1999 and 
decreasea in 1998 dJe pr mar y to comp etion of the 1997 lnnial bu.ld-out of 
tne PCS networn and conversion of SBC's largest ce lular markets to dignal 
ouring 1997 

See hole 15 of Notes 10 Conso oateo Financ.al Statements for a d scussion of 
the acqJ sitions an0 d spos 1 ons 

In 2000, management expects tola cap tal spend ng to be between $1 3 billion and 
$14 bil ion. Capita expend lJres .n 2000 WI I be used to continde the evOlLtion 
of the wire .ne subsidiar es' networks. incluaing amounts estimated for Project 
Pronto. SBC's broadbano n tiat de. ana con1.nJeo bJ la-out of SBCs wireless 
markets 

Cash From Financmg Acl < t.es D vioenas declared by ine Board of D rectors of 
SBC were 50 975 per snare n 1999, $0 935 per share in 1998. and $0 895 per 
share in 1997 These per snare amodnts do not inc ude oiviaends declared and 
paid by Ameritech ShET an0 PAC pr or to tneir respective mergers. The total 
div,denospad~ySBC.Amer.:ech. ShETor PACwere$3312in 1999. D 1 7 7 i n  
1998 and $3,015 n 1997 SBC 5 dtbidend po.icy considers 00th the expectattons 
ana req. rements of ShareOhnerS internal reqLiremen1s and long-term growth 
opportLn ties 

In DecemDer 1999 SBC ca led approximately $31 of dew that was schedule0 to 
mature in Decemwr 2004 DJrlng 1999 subsequent to the wmp.etion of the 
acqustions of Comcast ano Cel Jlar CommLnications SBC retired $1,415 of 
Corncast's ano CellAar CommJntcat ons' long-term oebt wRh no effect on net 
income In May 1999. SBC issreo $750 of 6 25% Lnsecured Eurodollar ndes, due 
May 2009, with proceeds s e d  to fma its nvestment In Bel Canada. 

Dunng 1998. SBC reoeemeo $2 789 of long-term debt. includ ng mortgage Conds. 
Also in 1998 SBC .ssuea $2 150 of notes and aeoentures In February 1998, SBC 
also SSLW $750 of 5 88% JnsecJred Eurodo ar notes, due February 2203. wtn 
proceeds used pr marl y to fano its nvestment in Tee Danmar6 

Total deDt ncreaseo dJr ng 1997 dLe pi  marly to the IsSLance of medium-term 
notes ana deben1Jres ana de01 redeemaole enher in cash or Te mex L snares 

In April 1998, an SBC sLbsid ary issded. IhroLgh priwate placement, 3,250 snares 
of stated rate abction Preferred slock (STRAPS) (n f o ~ r  separate Benes. Net 
proceeds from these issLances tolaleo $322 

In Jane 1997 and December 1999, one of SBC's wnolly wnea smsidianes iss~ed 
$250 an0 $100 of preferred sloc6 in private placements. In January 2200, SBCs 
Board of D.rectors aJthorl2ed the repurchzse of LP lo 100 In ~llon shares of 
SBC s common stocn 

SBC expects Io fma  ongoing captal expend.tures, the repdrchase of stock and 
merger initial.ve expenses w tn cash provided oy operations ana incremental 
wrromngs 

Other SBC s Iota capita cons~sls of deb1 (long-term debt and debt maturing 
witnin m e  year), TrJSt Originate0 Preferred Securkes and shareormeis' equlty. 
Tota. captal ncreasea $3,453 in 1999 and $3.292 in 1998 Tne increase in 1999 
was due to 1999 earnmgs, pan ally offset by lower debt levels The mcrease in 
1998 was primarily oJe to 1998 earnings, partially offset by lower debt leve s 

SBC'Soebtrat.owas429%.473~and549%atDecember31.1999.1998and1997 
Tne debt ratio IS affected by tne same factors that affect tota. capital. 

Market R Sk 

SBC 4s exposed to market rsns pr'mari.y from changes in interest rates. foreign 
currency excnange rates an0 cenain eqLily stock pnces. In managing exposure 
to these IlLCtLatiOns SBC may engage in VarioJs hedging transactions that nave 
been aJthorized according lo OOCLmenlea pol cies and procedures. SBC does not 
d s e  derivatives for lraoing pdrposes. to generate ncome or to engage in 
speculative activity SBCs cap la1 costs are airectly linkea to financial and 
bus ness r sks SBC seeks 10 manage lne potential negative effects from markel 
volat.iity and market rls& Tne ma,ority of SBC's financial instruments are 
medium- and long-term fixed rate notes an0 debentures FlJctuations in market 
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inlerffil rales can ead lo signifcan1 f JcILatIons in the fa r value of these 
notes and oebentures I1 s the PO cy of SBC Io manage ns oebt structure and 
foreign excnange exposue in oroer to manage caplal costs. conlrol fnancia, 
rtsks and mainta n f nancial flex 0 lily over the ong term Where appropnale 
SBC w,I lade actons Io limit !ne negat “e effect of inlerest and foreign 
exchange rates IiqLioity an0 CoJnIerparty risks on shareowner V a u  

Quanlnative nformat on AboJl Marfiel Ris6 

Foreign Exchange Risk Sensitivity Analysis 

U S Dollar Value Net Underlying 
of Net Foreign Foreign Currency 

Exchange Transaction 
December 31 1999 contracts Exwsures 

Total Exposure - Japanese Yen $142 $142 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Note: There is no net exposed longlshort currency position and no foreign 
exchange loss from a 10% depreciation of the US. dollar. 

The preceding table describes the effects of a change in the value of the 
Japanese yen given a hypothetical 10% depreciation of the US. dollar. Since the 
identified exposure is fully covered with forward contracts, changes in the 
value of the U.S. dollar which affect the value ofthe underlying foreign 
currency commRment are fully offset by changes in the value of the foreign 
currency contract. If the underlying currency transaction expasure changed, the 
resulting mismatch would expose the company to currency risk of the foreign 
exchange contract. For this reason, all contracts are related to firm 
commitments and matched by maturity and currency. 

Interest Rate Sensitivity The principal amount by expected maturity. average 
interest rate and fair value of SBC‘s liabilities that are exposed to interest 
rate nsk are described in Notes 8 and 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. Following are SBC‘s interest rate derivatives subject to interest 
rate risk: 
<TABLE> 

Maturity 

Fair 
ARer Value 

2000 2001 2002 Mo3 2004 2 W  Total 12/31/99 

Interest Rate Derivatives 

interest Rate Swaps: 

<s> cc> <c> CC, <c> CCZ cc> <c> <c> 
Receive Fixed/Pay Variable 
Notional Amount - - $130 $315 $200 $150 $795 $(ZO) 

Variable Rate Payable 1 6.3% 6.9% 7.0% 7.1% 7.1% 7.2% 
Weighted Average Fixed 

Rate Receivable 6.1% 6.1% 6.1% 6.1% 6.0% 6.0% 

Receive VariableiPay Fixed 

Fixed Rate Payable 6.5% 6.5% 6.5% 6.5% 6.5% 6.5% 
Weighted Average Variable 

Rate Receivable 2 6.4% 7.0% 7.1% 7.1% 7.2% 7.3% 

- 

- 

Notional Amount $10 $120 $5 - - $250 $385 $6 

Lease Obligations: 

Variable Rate Leases 3 - $42 - - $81 - $123 $123 
Average Interest Rate3 6.7% 7.1% 7.2% 7.3% 7.3% - 
cFNz 

1 Interest payable based on Three Month London interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) 

2 Interest receivable based on Three Month Commercial Paper Index published by 
plus or minus a spread. 
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Federal Reserve. 
3 Average interest rate based on current and implied forward rates for One 
Month LiEOR plus 30 basis points. The lease obligations require interest 
payments only until maturity. 

4FNs 
.=ABLE> 

in 1999, a $50 interest rate swap contract, linked to the variable rate debt, 
matured and interest rate swap contracts of $1 3 linked to variable rate lease 
obligations were exited with minimal effect on net income. 

There has been no material change in the updated market risks since December 31, 
1998. 

Qualitative information About Market Risk 

Foreign Exchange Risk From time to time SBC makes investments in businesses in 
foreign countries, is paid dividends, receives proceeds from Sales or borrows 
funds in foreign currency. Before making an investment, or in anticipation of a 
foreign currency receipt, SEC often will enter into forward foreign exchange 
contracts. The contracts are used to provide currency at a fixed rate. SBCs 
poiicy is to measure the risk of adverse currency fluctuations by calculating 
the potential dollar losses resulting from changes in exchange rates that have a 
reasonable probability of occurring. SBC covers the exposure that results from 
changes that exceed acceptable amounts. SBC does not speculate in foreign 
exchange markets. 

Equhy Risk SBC has equity price risk exposure from certain outstanding employee 
stock options linked to Vodafone AirTouch ADRs which are not significant (see 
Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Interest Rate Risk SBC issues debt in fixed and floating rate instruments. 
Interest rate swaps are used for the purpose of controlling interest e w n s e  by 
managing the mix of fixed and floating rate debt. SEC does not seek to make a 
proffi from changes in interest rates. SEC manages interest rate sensitivity by 
measuring potential increases in interest expense that would resun from a 
probahle change in interest rates. When the potential increase in interest 
expense exceeds an acceptable amount, SEC reduces risk through the issuance of 
fixed rate instruments and purchasing derivatives. 

Cautionary Language Concerning Forward-Looking Statements 

information set forth in this report contains forward-looking statements that 
are subject to risks and uncertainties. SEC claims the protection of the safe 
harbor for forward-looking statements provided by the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. 

The following factors could cause SBC's future results to differ materially from 
those expressed in the forward-looking statements: 

o Adverse economic changes in the markets served by SBC, or countries in which 
SBC has significant investments. 

0 Changes in available technology. 
o The final outcome of FCC rulemakings and judicial review if any, of such 

rulemakings, including issues relating to jurisdiction. 
o The final outcome of state regulatory proceedings in SBC's Isstate area, 

and judicial review, if any, of such proceedings. including proceedings 
relating to interconnection terms, access charges, universa service, 
unbundled network elements and resale rates, and reciprocal compensation 

0 Enactment of additional state, Federal andlor foreign regulatory laws and 
regulations pertaining to SECs subsidiaries and foreign investments. 

o The timing of entry and the extent of competition in the local and intralATA 
toll markets in SEC's 13-state area and SECS entry into the in-region long 
distance market. 

0 The impact of the Ameritech transaction, including performance with respect 
to regulatory requirements and merger integration efforts. 

o The timing and cost of deployment of SBCs broadband initiative also known 
as Project Pronto, Its effect on the carrying value of the existing wireline 
network and the level of consumer demand for offered services. 

Readers are cautioned that other factors discussed in this report, although not 
enumerated here, also could materially impact SBCs future earnings. 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
SBC Communications Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Income 
Dollars in millions except per share amounts 
. 

1999 1998 1997 

SS, 
Operating Revenues 
Landline local service 
Wireless subscriber 
Network access 
Long distance Service 
Directory advertising 
Other 

Total operating revenues 49,489 46.207 43,106 

Operating Expenses 
Operations and support 29,338 27,143 27,727 
Depreciation and amortization 8.553 7.841 7.777 

Total operating expenses 37,891 34,984 35,504 

Operating Income 11.598 11,223 7,602 

Other Income (Expense) 
Interest expense (1.430) (1.605) (1,550) 
Equity in net income of affiliates 912 613 437 
Other income (expense) - net (227) 1,884 49 

Total other income (expense) (745) 892 (1,064) 

Income Before Income Taxes, Extraordinary Items and 
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 10.853 12,115 6.538 

. 

Income taxes 4,280 4.380 2,451 

Income Before Extraordinary Items and Cumulative 
Effect of Accounting Change 6,573 7.735 4,087 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

15 
Extraordinary items, net of tax 1,379 (@J) 
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 207 

Net Income $ 8,159 $ 7,690 $ 4,087 

Earnings Per Common Share: 
income Before Extraordinary items and Cumulative 

Net Income (6 2.39 $ 2.26 $ 1.21 

Earnings Per Common Share-Assuming Dilution: 
Income Before Extraordinary Items and Cumulative 

Net Income $ 2.36 $ 2.23 $ 1.20 

cFN> 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial 
statements. 
4FN> 
</TABLE, 

Effect of Accounting Change $ 1.93 $ 2.27 $ 1.21 

Effect of Accounting Change $ 1.90 $ 2.24 $ 1.20 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
SBC Communications Inc. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Dollars in millions except per share amounts 
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December 31, 

1999 1998 

<S> <C> SC, 
Assets 
Current Assets 

Accounts receivable - net of allowances for uncollectibles of 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 495 $ 599 

$1,099 and $810 9.378 9.783 
Prepaid expenses 651 843 
Deferred income taxes 767 685 
Other current assets 639 787 

Total current assets 11,930 12,697 

Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 46,571 44,194 

.... 

. _. . 

Intangible Assets - Net of Accumulated Amortization of 
$1,325 and $1 ,I 11 6,796 5,161 

Investments in Equity Affiliates 10,648 7,412 

Other Assets 7,270 5,532 

Total Assets $ 83,215 $ 74,966 

. 

. ................... 

Liabilities and Shareowners' Equity 
Current Liabilities 
Debt matunng within one year 
Accounts payable and accrued liabillties 
Dividends payable 

$ 3,374 $ 4.178 

836 809 
15,103 13,253 

Total current liabilities 19,313 18,240 

Long-Term Debt 17,475 17.170 

Deferred Credits and Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 4,821 2,846 
Postemployment benefit obligation 9,612 9,193 
Unamoilized investment tax credits 389 474 
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,879 3,269 

Total deferred credits and other noncurrent liabilities 18.701 15,782 

Corporation-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred 
............. 

Securities Of Subsidiary Trusts# 1,000 1,ow 

Shareowners' Equity 
Preferred shares ($1 par value, 10,000,OW authorized none issued) 
Common shares ($1 par value, 7.WO.000,WO authorized: issued 

Capital in excess of par value 12,453 12,459 
3.433.1 24,836 at December 31, 1999 and 3,433,762,063 at December 31,1998) 3,433 3,434 

Retained earnings 13,798 8.948 
Guaranteed obligations of employee stock ownership plans (ESOP) (106) (261) 
Deferred compensation - leveraged ESOP (LESOP) (73) (82) 
Treasury shares (37,752,621 at December 31,1999 and 
28,217.018 at December 31, 1998, at cost) (1.717) (882) 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (1,062) (822) 

Total shareowners' equity 26,726 22,774 

Total Liabilities and Shareowners' Equity $ 83.215 $ 74,966 

<FNs 
#The trusts contain assets of $1,030 in principal amount of the Subordinated Debentures of Pacific Telesis 
Group. 
The accompanying notes are an integral pail of the consolidated financial statements. 
</FN, 
</TABLE> 

................ 

. .. 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
SBC Communications Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Dollarr in millions, increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

1999 1998 1997 

<s> CCZ <c> SC, 
Operating Activities 
Net inwme $ 8,159 $ 7,690 .$ 4.087 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 8,553 7,841 7717 
Undistributed earnings from investments in equity affiliates (471) 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 1.136 896 
Amortization of investment tax credits (85) (96) 
Deferred income tax expense 1,061 e40 
Gain on sale of Telecom Corporation of New Zealand shares 
Extraordinary items, net of tax (1,379) w 
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 1207) 
Changes in oDeratina assets and liabilities: 

(15) - 
Accounts receivabie (731) (2,257) (1.281) 
Other current assets 335 310 (661) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,054 1,175 1,994 

Other - net (1.847) (1,664) (1.541) 

Total adjustments 8.419 5,291 7,492 
............................ 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 16,578 12,981 11,579 

(10,304) (8.882) (8,856) 
51 177) 129) 

Investing Activities 
Construction and capital expenditures 
Investments in affiliates 
Purchase of short-term investments (k) ' (42) ' (916) 
Proceeds from short-term investments 31 355 1,029 
Dispositions 4,867 2,727 1,000 
Acquisitions (5.198) (3,261) (2,190) 
Other 2 11 13 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (10,577) (9,169) (9,949) 
....... 

Financing Activities 
Net change in short-term borrowings with original 
maturnies of three months or less (787) (589) (761) 
Issuance of other short-term borrowings - 2 1,079 
Repayment of other short-term borrowings - (8) (805) 
Issuance of long-term debt 738 2.890 2,246 
Repayment of long-term debt (2,301) (2.860) (999) 
Early extinguishment of debt and related call premiums (31) (765) (6) 
Purchase of fractional shares - (15) 
Issuance of common shares 313 4&1 308 
Issuance of preferred shares 103 322 250 
Purchase of treasury shares 11.169) 1498) 1871 
Issuance of treasury shares 
Dividends paid 
Other 

................. 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (6,105) (3,862) (1.60) . 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (104) (50) 180 

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 599 649 469 
. 

~~~~~ 

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year $ 495 $ 599 $ 649 

<FN> 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial 
statements. 
4FN> 
</TABLE> 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
SBC Communications inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Shareowners' Equity 
Dollars and shares in millions except per share amounts - 

1999 1998 1997 

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Balance at end of year $13,798 $ 8,948 $ 4,429 

Guaranteed Obligations of ESOP 
Balance at beginning of year $ (261) $ (409) $ (535) 
Reduction of debt associated with ESOP 155 148 126 

............................................................................................................ 

Balance at end of year (38) $ (1 71  7) (28) $ (882) (30) $ (730) 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, 
net of tax 

Foreign currency translation adjustment, 
net of taxes of $290, $37 and $(38) 
Reclassification adjustment to net income for 
cumulative translation adjustment on securities sold 
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 
Less reclassification adjustment for gains 
included in net income 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 

Balance at end of year $ (1,062) $ (822) $ (1,111) ............................................................................................................ 
Total Comprehensive Income 

............................................................................................................ 

Balance at beginning of year $ (822) $(1,111) $ (821) 

(336) 224 (287) 

56 
69 (3) 113 

(17) (60) . - --- 
(240) 289 (290) - - 
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Net income $ 8.159 5 7.690 
Other comprehensive income (loss) per above (240) 

$ 4,087 
289 (290) 

<PAGE> 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Dollars in millions except per share amounts 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation -The consolidated financial statements include the 
acwunts of SBC Communications Inc. and its major i tymed subsidiaries 
(SBC). The statements reflect mergers of SBc's subsidiaries with Pacific 
Telesis Group (PAC), Southern New England Telecommunications Corporation 
(SNET) and Ameritech Corporation (Ameritech) as pwlings of interests (see 
Note 2). SBC's subsidiaries and affiliates operate in the communications 
services industry. providing wireline and wireless teiecommunications 
services and equipment, directory advertising, electronic security SeMces 
and cable television services both domestically and worldwide. 

All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated in the 
consolidation process. investments in partnerships, joint ventures and less 
than majority-owned subsidiaries are principally accounted for under the 
equity method. Earnings from certain foreign investments accounted for using 
the equity method are included for periods ended within three months of 
SBC's year end. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U n M  States' 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Actual resulis could differ from those 
estimates. Certain amounts in prior period financial statements have been 
reclassified to conform to the current yeah  presentation. 

income Tares - Deferred income taxes are provided for tempwsry differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purpases. 

Investment tax credits earned prior to their repeal by the Tax Reform Act of 
1986 are amortized as reductions in income tax expense over the lives of the 
assets which gave rise to the credits. 

Cash Equivalents ~ Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less and the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value. 

Deferred Charges - Directory advertising costs are deferred Until the 
directory is published and advertising revenues related to these wsts are 
recognized 

Revenue RecognitionICumulative Effect of Accounting Change - SBC recognizes 
revenues as earned. Certain revenues derived from local telephone and 
wireless services are billed monthly in advance and are recognized the 
following month when services are provided. Revenues derived from other 
telecommunications services, principally network access, long distance and 
wireless airtime usage, are recognized monthly as services are provided. 

Ameriiechs directory publishing subsidiary, prior to January 1, 1999. and 
SNET prior to January 1, 1998, recognized revenues and expenses related to 
publishing directories using the "amortization" method, under which revenues 
and expenses were recognized over the lives of the directories, generally 
one year. Effective January 1, 1999. for Ameritech and January 1,1998, for 
SNET the accounting was changed to the "issue basis" method of accounting. 
which recognizes the revenues and expenses at the time the related directory 
is published. The change in methodology was made because the issue basis 
method is generally followed in the publishing industry, including by SBC's 
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other directory subsidiaries and better reflects the operating a c t i i  of 
the business. The cumulative after-tax effect of applying the changes in 
method to prior years was recognized as of January 1, 1999 and 1998 as 
one-time, non-cash gains of $207, or $0.06 per share and $15. or $0.01 per 
share, net of deferred taxes of $1 25 and $1 1. Had the current method been 
applied during prior periods, income before extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of accounting change would not have been materialiy 
affected 

<PAGE> 

Notes to Conso oated F.nancia. Statements continued 
Dollars in m .lions except per snare amomts 

Propeny Plant ano EqJipment . Propeny plant ana equipmem 8s stated at 
cost Tne cost of adailions ana substant al mprovements to proprly plant 
and eqLiprnent is capitalizeo Tne cost of ma ntenance ana repairs of 
propeny pant ana eqd pment is charged to operat ng expenses Property 
pant and eqL pment .s oeprec ated LS ng stra ght-line metnws over their 
est mated economic ives. genera y ranging from 3 to 50 years Certain 
shbsia aries fo ow compos le groLp depreciation methodology accordingly, 
when a port on of their deprec ab e property. pant and equipment is retlrm 
in tne orainary course of D.S ness the gross book MILe IS charged to 
accdmLlatm deprec.at.on. no gain or loss s recognued on the disposition 
of tn s plant 

lntangiole Assets - lntang ole assets cons st pr manly of wireless cellular 
ana Personal Commun.cations Services (PCS) icenses, customer I rts and the 
excess of cons deration pad OJer net assets aCqLired in business 
como nations These assels are w.ng amortized llsing the straight-line 
melhod we1 per ods genera.19 rang ng from 5 to 40 years A1 December 31, 
1999 and 1998 amodnls inc udea n net intangible assets for licenses were 
$3.71 3 and 52 660 Management per oaicaly rev e m  the carrying valLe ann 
Iwes of a I intang o e assets based on expectea fLture casn flows. 

Advertising Costs - Costs for amen sing products ana services or corporate 
mage are expensed as mCrrreo 

Foreign Currency Translat on - .oca, cmencies generady are considered the 
functional cJrrency for SEC's snare of foreign investments. except in 
countries considered hign y nflat onary SEC translates its share of 
foreign assets and abi l.es at cdrrent exchange rates Revenues and 
expenses are translate0 using average rates for the year. The resuiiing 
foreign cdrrency transtation ao.Lstments are recorded as a separate 
compOnen1 of accLmJlalea other comprenensive income Other transaction gains 
ana losses resalt ng from excnange rate cnanges on transactions aenominated 
in a currency other man the local cLrrency are inc udea in earnings as 
incurrea. 

Derivat.ve F nanc.a InslrLrnenlS - SEC does not invest In derivatives for 
trading purposes From 1 me to I me as part of its risk management 
strategy SEC &.es aerivat /e Rnancia instruments. including interest rate 
sviap, to nedge exposbres to nlerest rate risk on debt 001 gallons, and 
fore8gn cbrrency forwaro excnange contracts to hedge exposures to changes In 
foreign currency rates tor Iransactms relate0 to ds foreign investments 
Derivat.ve contracts are enlereo nto for hedging of Rrrn commtments only. 
SEC cLrrently does no1 recognize tne 1a.r vaibes of tnese aerivative 
financial investments or tneir changes in far value n .Is f nancial 
statements. merest rate Snap senlements are recognized as adjustments to 
interest expense n !ne consol datea statements of ncome wnen pala or 
receivm. Foreign cLrrency forwaro excnange contracts are sef JP to coincide 
with Rrrn comrn trnents Ga ns an0 osses are deferred until tne unaerlying 
transaction be'ng heogeo OccLrs. ano tnen are recognhed as part of that 
transaction (see Note 9) 

Note 2 Comp etlon of Mergers 

In October 1999 SEC ana Amer lecn completea the merger of an SEC subsiaiary 
with Amernech In a transact on in wn ch each snare of Amerirech common 
stock was excnangeo for 1 316 snares of SBC common stock (equwalent to 
approximately 1 446 m .ion shares). Amerdech became a wholly owned 
SJbsidiary of SEC effective with tne merger ana tne transact on has been 
accounted for as a poo ng of interests and a tax-free reorganaation 
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Financial statements for prior periods have been restated to include the 
accounts of Ameritech. Transaction costs related to the merger were $77 ($48 
net of tax). Of this total $25 ($1 6 net of tax) is included in expenses in 
1999 and $52 ($32 net of tax) in 1998. 

Operating revenues, income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect 
of accounting change and net income of the separate companies on a 
pre-merger basis for the last three periods are presented below: 

<TABLE> 

Nine Months 

September 30, Year Ended December 31, 
Ended 

..................... 
1999 1998 1997 

CSS <C> <c> CC> 
Operating revenues: 

SBC $ 22,477 $ 28,777 $ 26,681 
Ameritech 13,912 17,154 15,998 
Adjustments 203 276 427 

$ 3,569 $ 4,023 (6 1,674 
1,645 3,606 2,296 

(161) 61 117 

Combined $ 36,592 $ 46,207 $ 43,106 

Income before extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of accounting change: 

_______________-----____________________--------------------------------------------------- ........................................................................................... 

SBC $ 3,569 $ 4,068 $ 1,674 
Ameritech 1,438 3,606 2.296 
Adjustments (161) 61 117 

Combined $ 4,846 $ 7,735 5 4.087 

Net income: 
SBC 
Ameritech 
Adjustments 

________________________________________--------------------------------------------------- ________________________________________--------------------------------------------------- 

..-...... 
Combined $ 5,053 $ 7,690 $ 4,087 _______________-----____________________--------------------------~------------------------ ........................................................................................... 

<TTABLE> 

Combined results include the effect of retroactively conforming accounting 
methodologies between SBC and Ameritech. Among other Rems, non-cash 
adjustments were made to conform accounting for pension and postretirement 
benefits between the companies and to immediately expense certain items 
routinely deferred and amortized by Ameritech. including sales commissions 
and leased customer security and paging equipment. The pension and 
postretirement adjustments include the effects of conforming the adoption 
date for postretirement accounting, methods of recognizing actuarial gains 
and conforming the estimate methods used related to the current yeah 
benefit plans 

In October 1998. SBC and SNET completed the merger of an SBC subsidiary with 
SNET in a transaction in which each share of SNET common stockwas exchanged 
for 1.7568 shares of SBC common stock (equivalent to approximately 120 
million shares). SNET became a wholiy owned subsidiary of SBC effective with 
the merger, and the transaction was accounted for as a pooling of interests 
and a tax-free reorganization. 

In April 1997, SBC and PAC completed the merger of an SBC subsidiary with 
PAC in a transaction in which each outstanding share of PAC common stock was 
exchanged for 1 .4629 shares of SBC common Stock (equivalent to approximately 
626 million shares). With the merger, PAC became a wholly owned subsidiary 
of SBC. The transaction was accounted for as a poling of interests and a 
tax-free reorganization 

Post-Merger initiatives 

Upon completion of each merger, SBC performed an evaluation and review of 
operations throughout the merged company. These reviews included the 
formation of teams that performed comprehensive evaluations of companywide 
operations (review teams). Based on these merger integration reviews, 
certain strategic decisions were made and significant integration of 
operations and consolidation of some administrative and support functions 
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occurred resulting in one-time charges. The follwving table summarizes the 
charges incurred for each merger related to these reviews and decisions: 

<TABLE> 

._ . ... __-__ ._ .. 
Pre-tax charges Ameritech SNET PAC 

-=s> SC> ccs <c> 
Reorganization $ 582 $ 82 $ 839 
Impairmentstasset valuation 690 321 965 
Wireless conversion 220 
Regulatory and legal 164 - 165 
Merger approval costs 31 - 281 
Other items and estimates of other 

Pacific and Southwestern video 
obligations 79 

curtailmenVpurchase Commitments - 698 

Total one-time charges $ 1,766 $ 403 $ 2.948 

After-tax charges Arneritech SNET PAC 

Reorganization $ 379 $ 50 $ 517 
Impairmentstasset valuation 472 199 667 
Wireless conversion 143 

Merger approval costs 19 - 176 
Other items and estimates of other 

Pacific and Southwestern video 

=== =5========= === ========= == ========= 

............................. ... .. 

Regulatory and legal 102 - 101 

obligations 342 

curtailmentipurchase commitments - 4 3 2  

Total one-time charges $ 1,457 5 249 $ 1.899 _________________________________________----_______________-- -----___E=========ii= ________________________________________-----____--------___---------- 
</TABLE> 

One-time charges incurred in the third and fourth quarter of 1999 totaled 
$1,766 ($1.457 net of tax). These charges included costs related to MriOUS 
regulatory and legal issues, merger approval wsts and other related casts 
of $274 ($174 net of tax). In addition, these charges included costs related 
to strategic decisions reached by the review teams of $1,492 ($1,283 net of 
tax) in 1999. Charges in the fourth quarter of 1998 for the SNET merger and 
the second quarter of 1997 for the PAC merger of $403 ($249 net of tax) and 
$2 billion ($1.3 billion net of tax) also related to the strategic decisions 
reached by the review teams. At December 31,1999, 1998 and 1997, remaining 
accruals for anticipated cash expenditures related to the PAC and SNET 
decisions were approximately $52, $323 and $432. Anticipated cash 
expenditures related to the decisions for the Ameritech merger totaled $703 
at December31, 1999 

Reorganization - SBC is centralizing several key functions that will support 
the wireline operations including network planning, strategic marketing and 
procurement. It also is consolidating a number of carporatevide support 
activities, including research and development, information technology, 
financial transaction processing and real estate management. These 
initiatives continue to result in the creation of some jobs and the 
elimination and realignment of others, with many of the affected employees 
changing job responsibilities and In some cases assuming p i t i o n s  in other 
locations. 

SBC recognized net charges of approximately $582 ($379 net of tax) during 
the fourth quarter of 1999, $82 ($50 net of tax) during the fourth quarter 
of 1998 and $839 ($517 net of tax) during 1997 in Connection with these 
initiatives. The charges were comprised mainly of postemployment benefits, 
primarily related to severance, and costs associated with closing duplicate 
operations. primarily contract cancellations. Other charges arising out of 
the mergers related to relocation, retraining and other effects of 
Consolidating cerlain operations are being recognized in the periods those 
charges are incurred. The fourth quarter 1999 charge is net of $45 [$29 net 
of tax) of reversals of accruals made in connection with the SNET and PAC 
mergers that were related to plans now superseded by the current 
reorganization plans. 

ImpairmentdAsset Valuation - A s  a result of SBC’s merger integration plans, 
strategic review of domestic operations and organizational alignments, SBC 
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reviewed the carrying values of the long-lived assets in the third and 
fourth quarter of 1999, the fourth quarter of 1998 and the second quarter of 
1997. The reviews were conducted companywide. although the 1998 review 
focused primarily on SNET and the 1999 review focused primarily on 
Ameritech. These reviews included estimating remaining useful lives and cash 
flows and identifying assets to be abandoned. Where this review indicated 
impairment, fair market values, including, in some cases, discounted cash 
flows as an estimate of fair value, related to those assets were analyzed to 
determine the amount of the impairment. As a result of these reviem. SBC 
wrote off certain assets and recognized impairments to the value of other 
assets with a combined charge of $690 ($472 net of tax) in the third and 
fourth quarter of 1999, $321 ($1 99 net of tax) in the fourth quarter of 1998 
and $965 ($667 net of tax) in the second quarter of 1997. 

The 1999 adjustments include an impairment of $300 ($224 net of tax) related 
to Ameritech's security business. This impairment adjustment. taken as a 
reduction in goodwill of $300, reflects a reduction of the investment to 
fair market value based upon the value of comparable businesses. In 
connection with this adjustment, SBC shortened the estimated life of the 
remaining goodwill on the security business from 40 to 15 years. As a result 
of these adjustments, SBC estimates amortization expense will increase by 
$10 to $15 annually for the remaining life of the goodwill. Also in 1999, 
SBC performed a review of the allowance for doubtful accounts at the 
Ameritech subsidiaries and recognized a charge of $212 ($135 after tax) 
This charge resulted from adjusting Ameritechs estimation methods to the 
method utilized by SBC. Other 1999 adjustments consist prirnarity of 
valuation adjustments on certain analog switching equipment at Ameritech and 
certain cost investments. 

The 1998 impairments and writeoffs primarily related to recognltion of an 
impairment of the assets supporting SNET's video and telephony operations. 
and also included charges for required changes in wireless equipment, 
inventory and sites. The 1997 impairments and writeoffs related primarily to 
the wireless digital television operations in southern California. certain 
analog switching equipment in California, certain rural and other 
telecommunications equipment in Nevada, selected wireless equipment, 
duplicate or obsolete equipment, cable within commercial buildings in 
California, certain nonoperating plant and other assets. 

Wireless Conversion - In December 1999. Ameritech notified its wireless 
customers that the current wireless network platform (Code Division Multiple 
Access or CDMA) would be converted to the network platform utilized by SBC 
(Time Division Multiple Access or TDMA). As part of the conversion, SBC sold 
the COMA network assets and is leasing it back over the wnversion period. A 
charge of $220 ($143 net of tax) was recognized in the fourth quarter to 
recognize the loss on the sale and leaseback and to replace the customers' 
CDMA handsets. 

Other Items and Estimates of Other Obligations - SBC performed reviews of 
Ameritech's and PAC's accounting operations and applied wnsistent 
accounting techniques between the merging companies. As a result. SBC 
recognized charges in 1999 and 1997 related to the impact of several 
regulatory and legal rulings of $164 ($102 net of tax) and $165 ($101 net of 
tax). Also in 1997, SBC recognized a charge of $281 ($176 net of tax) for 
PAC merger approval costs. In 1999 SBC incurred a charge of $31 ($19 net of 
tax) for Ameritech merger approval costs. In 1999 charges for deferred taxes 
on Ameritech's international investments of $289, net charges related to the 
routine deferral of certain costs and revenues by Ameritech of $62 ($40 
aftertax) and other miscellaneous items of $17 ($13 net of tax) were 
recognized. 

Pacific and Southwestern Vldeo CurtailmenVPurchase Commitments - SBC also 
announced in 1997 that it was scaling back its limited direct investment in 
video services in the areas also served by Pacific Bell Telephone Company 
(PacBeil) and Southwestern Bell Telephone Company (SWBell). As a result of 
this curtailment, SBC halted construction on the Advanced Communications 
Network (ACN) in California. AS part of an agreement wlth the ACN vendor, 
SBC paid the liabilities of the ACN trust that Owned and financed ACN 
construction, incurred costs to shut down all construction previously 
conducted under the trust and received certain consideration from the 
vendor. In the second quarter of 1997, SBC recognized net expense of $553 
($346 net of tax) associated with these activities. During the third quarter 
of 1997, SBC recorded the corresponding short-term debt of$610 previousb 
incurred by the ACN trust on its balance sheet. 
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AddKona1.y. SBC c,naileo ceria n otner v'dec-related activ.ties lncluding 
discontintmg its oroaooano nework VIOW trials In Ricnardson, Texas. and 
San Jose Californta SLoslantially sca Ing oack .Is involvement in the 
lele-TV .om1 ventdre ana w rnaraw ng ns operations in terntory seNed by 
SWBell from me Amer cast *entbre Dur.ng 1999, SBC negdiated a settlement 
wtn Is Amercast partners re are0 to rne witndrawat Tne seUlement did 
n d  nave a mater'a. impacl an SBC's financ.al condtion or resuns of 
operat ons Tne co ecl vo ,mpact of these decslons and actms by SBC 
resulted n a charge of $145,592 net of lax) in the second qdarier of 1997 

Note 3 SJbsidlary F nancia Informat.on 

SBC has not prov oeo separate fnanc al statements and other aisclosures for 
PAC as management nas oerermined that such information IS not malenal to 
the ho ders of the Trdsl Or ginatw Preferred Secunties (TOPrS) (see Note 
9). whicn have been gLaran1eeo by SBC See Note 7 for a discussion of 
conform.ng items on the segments and sdbsiolaries This information is 
provided as a supplement on y The follow.ng table presents sdmmanred 
financia nformal on for PAC at December 31 or for lne year then endm 

<TALE> 

PAC 1999 1998 1997 

CS, <c> CC, <c> 
Balance Sheets 
Current assets $ 3,022 $ 3,037 $ 2.835 
Noncurrent assets 15,334 15.428 14.150 
Current liabilities 4,944 5.278 4,513 
Noncurrent liabilities 10,284 10.482 10,413 
____---__-_-_-__________________________---------------------------.---------------- 
Income Statements 
Operating revenues $ 11,747 $ 11,305 $10,101 
Operating income (loss) 2,866 2,612 (166) 
Income (loss) before extraordinary loss and 
cumulative effect of accounting changes 1,521 1,240 (546) 
Net income (loss) 1,303 1,180 (224) ..................................................................................... 

<ITABLE> 

SBC has not provided separate financial statements and other disclosures for 
SWBell or PacBell as management has determined that such information is not 
material to the holders of cettain SWBell and PacBell outstanding debt 
securities, which have been guaranteed by SBC. See Note 7 for a discussion 
of conforming items on the segments and subsidiaries. This information is 
provided as a supplement only. The following tables present summariied 
financial information for SWBell and PacBell: 

<TABLE, 

SWBell 1999 1998 1997 

CS> cc>  <c> <c> 
Balance Sheets 
Current assets $ 2,453 $ 2.538 $ 2,452 
Noncurrent assets 13.978 13,241 12,562 
Current liabilities 5,127 4,679 3,686 
Noncurrent liabilities 8,403 7.838 8.310 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ _ _ ~ _ ~ ~ ~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  

lnwme Statements 
Operating revenues $ 11,173 $ 10,752 $10,116 
Operating income 2.815 2,794 2.192 
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 1,540 1,527 1,187 
Net income 1,267 1.527 1.187 ............................................................................................ 
.......... 
PacBeli 1999 1998 1997 
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Note 4. Earnings Per Share 

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of basic earnings per 
share and diluted earnings per share for income before extraordinary terns 
and cumulative effect of accounting change for the years ended December 31, 
1999.1998 and 1997 are shown in the table below: 

<TABLE> 

Year Ended December 31, 1999 1998 1997 .................. 
<S, CC> <C> <C> 

Numerators 
Numerator for basic earnings per share: 
income before extraordinary items and 
Cumulative effect of accounting change $ 6,573 $ 7,735 $ 4.087 
Diiutive potential common shares: 
Other stock-based compensation 4 4 3 
.. 
Numerator for diluted earnings per share $ 6,577 $ 7,739 $ 4,090 

Denominators 
Denominator for basic earnings per share: 
Weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding (000,000) 3,409 3,406 3,391 
Dilutive potential common shares 
(000.0w): 
Stock options 42 38 25 
Other stock-based compensation 7 6 4 

_ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ _ ~ ~ ~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  

Net income $ 2.39 $ 2.26 5 1.21 

Diluted earnings per share 
........................................................................................... 

income before extraordinary items and 
Cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.90 $ 2.24 $ 1.20 
Extraordinary items 0.40 (0.02) 
Cumulative effect of accounting change 0.06 0.01 

Net income $ 2.36 $ 2.23 $ 1.20 ........................................................................................... 
<KABLE> 

Note 5. Properly. Plant and Equipment 

<TABLE> 
Property, plant and equipment IS summarized as foiiows at December 31 : 

1999 1998 

~ --- ""I 

Buildings 10,284 10,269 
Central office equipment 43,335 40,874 
Cable, wiring and conduit 48.785 46.499 
Other equipment 
Under construction 

, ~~ 

11,241 9,626 
2,098 1,920 
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116,332 109,778 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 69,761 65.584 . 
Property, plant and equipment-net $ 46,571 $ 44,194 
_ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ _ _ _ _ _ ~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ .  

cfTABLE, 

SBC's depreciation expense as a percentage of average depreciable plant was 
7.4%. 7.2% and 7.4% for 1999, 1998 and 1997. 

Certain facilities and equipment used in operations are leased under 
operating or capital leases. Rental expenses under operating leases for 
1999.1998 and 1997 were $707, $683 and $606. At December 31,1999, the 
future minimum rental payments under noncancelable operating leases for the 
years 2000 through 2004 were $366, $304, $220, $160 and $165 and $623 
thereafter. Capital leases are not significant. 

In October 1999 as the first post-Amentech merger initiative. SBC launched 
an initiative to provide advanced broadband services to many of its Uniied 
States wireline customers (Project Pronto) over the next three years. Since 
the launch of Project Pronto, SBC has incurred $20 ($13 net of tax) related 
to network placement costs. The launch of Project Pronto and the Federal 
Communications Commission's recent rulings on data services and unbundled 
network element pricing led SBC to review and evaluate the carryhg value of 
its network plant in its traditional wireline operations in the fourth 
quarter of 1999 and determine that an impairment did not exist. Project 
Pronto will result in the migration of certain customers to new network 
services. As this migration occurs, SBC Will monitor, review and assess both 
the carrying value and economic useful lives of the currently emsting 
network facilities. This assessment may result in an impairment of the 
future carrying value of the existing facilities or the shortening of some 
of hs economic lives. Should that occur, material charges to future 
operations in the wireline segment may be required, 

Note 6. Equity Investments 

Investments in equity affiliates are accounted for under the equity method 
and include the June 1999 purchase of a 20% interest of Bell Canada, the 
largest supplier of telecommunications services in Canada, and the 1998 
acquisition of a 41 6% equity interest of Tele Danmark A/S (Tele Danmark). 
the national communications provider in Denmark (see Note 15). SBC currently 
is able to elect six of twelve members of the Tele Danmark Board of 
Directors, including the Chairman, who would cast any tie-breaidng vote. 

investments in equity affiliates also includes SBC's investment in Telefonos 
de Mexico. S.A. de C.V. (Telmex), Mexico's national telecommunications 
company. SBC is a member of a consortium that holds all of the AA shares of 
Telmex stock, representing voting control of the company. Another member of 
the consortium, Carso Global Telecom, S.A. de C.V., has the right to appoint 
a majority of the directors of Telmex. SBC also owns L shares which have 
limited voting rights. Throughout 1999, 1998 and 1997, SBC sold portions of 
its L shares mainly in response to open market share repurchases by Telmex. 
so that its total equity investment remained below 10% of Telmefs tdal 
equity capitalization. At December 31, 1999 and 1998 SBC held an approximate 
8.9% and 9.8% equity interest in Telmex. 

Other major equity investments held by SBC include a 17.5% interest in 
Belgacom S.A. (Belgacom), the national communications provider in Belgium. 
an 18% interest in Telkom SA Limited (Telkom). the state-owned 
telecommunications company of South Africa, a 29.8% interest in MATAV. the 
national communications provider in Hungary, a 15% interest in Cegetel, a 
joint venture providing a broad range of telecommunications offerings in 
France and minority ownership of several domestic wireless properties. 

The following table is a reconciliation of SBC's investments in equity 
affiliates: 
-=TABLE> 
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1999 1998 1997 

CS, SC> <C> <C> 
....... .- 

Beginning of year $ 7,412 $ 4,453 $ 4,226 
Additional investments 3,702 3,159 1,076 
Equity in net income 91 2 61 3 437 

6/12/00 4:15 PM 



Edgar Filing 

L 

http:ilwww.shareholder.comNisitor~~ga~ ~0-000018&CompanyID=SBC&header=A&foote~A 

W 

The currency translation adjustment for 1999 primarily reflects the effect 
of exchange rate fluctuations on SBC's investment in Tele Danmark and 
Belgacom. Other adjustments for 1999 refled the sale of Telmex L shares and 
the sale of SBCs investment in Chile. 

The currency translation adjustment for 1998 primarily reflects the effect 
of exchange rate fluctuations on SBC's investment in Teie Danmark partially 
offset by exchange rate fluctuations on SBC's investment in Telkom. Other 
adiustments for 1998 reflect the sale of Telecom Corwration of New Zealand 
Limbed (TCNZ) shares, a write-down of an international investment and the 
sale of Telmex L shares. 

Currency translation adjustments for 1997 primarily reflect the effect of 
the exchange rate fluctuations on SBC's investments in Telkom, Belgacom and 
MATAV. Other adjustments for 1997 reflect the Sale of Teimex L. TCNZ and 
MATAV shares. and the chanoe to the cost method of accountina for SBC's 1995 
investment in MOO e Te ephon-e heworks (MTN) wnuh was soli dur ng the 
thtrd quarter of 1998 (see hote 15) 

Undistributed earnings from equity affiliates were $1,788 and $1,317 at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

The following table presents summarized financial information of significant 
investments accounted for using the equity method taking into account all 
adjustments necessary to conform to United Slates' generally accepted 
accounting principles, but excluding SBC's purchase adjustments including 
goodwill, at December 31, or for the year then ended: 

<TABLE> 

1999 1998 1997 

At December 31, 1999, SBC had goodwill, net of accumulated amortiration. of 
approximately 55.9 billion related lo investments in equity affiliates. 
Based on the December 31,1999 quoted market price, the aggregate market 
value of SBCs investment in Tele Danmarh was approximately $6.8 billion and 
MATAV was approximately $2.2 billion. SBC's investment in Telmex MnSiStS of 
both publicly traded and nonpublicly traded securities and therefore does 
n d  have a quoted market price. SBC's weighted average share of operating 
revenues shown above was 19% in 1999 and 1998 and 17% in 1997. 

Note 7. Segment Information 

SBCs segments are strategic business units that offer different products 
and services and are managed accordingly. SBC evaluates performance based on 
income before income taxes adjusted for normalizing (Le. one-time) items. 
Transactions between segments are reported at fair value and the accounting 
policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1 

As a result of the merger with Ameritech and to better reflect the broadened 
scope of its operations, SBC adjusted its segment reporting structure in 
1999. SBC now has four reportable segments that reflect the current 
management of its business: wireline, wireless, information and 

112 of 144 6/12/00 4:15 PM 



Edgar Filing hnp://www.shareholder.comNisitors/edgar “0-000018&CompanylD=SBC&header=A6tfaotcr=A 

V 

entertainment, and international. The wireline segment provides landiine 
telecommunications services, including IoMI, network access and long 
distance services. messaging and internet services and sells customer 
premise and private business exchange equipment. The wireless segment 
provides wireless telecommunications services, including local and long 
distance Services, and sells wireless equipment. The information and 
entertainment segment expands on what was previously the directory segment, 
and includes all directory operations of the combined company including 
advertising, yellow pages, white pages and electronic publishing and 
Ameritech’s electronic security and cable television operations. All 
international investment operations have been removed from the other segment 
and are shown separately in the international segment. The misceilaneaus 
items that formerly were included in the other segment are immaterial and 
have been moved to corporate, adjustments and eliminations. 

Normalized results in 1999 include the following adjustments: 

0 After-tax charges totaling $1.5 billion including, among other items, 
recognition of impairment of long-lived assets. adjustments to the 
estimate of allowance for doubtful accounts, estimation of deferred 
taxes on international investments, wireless conversion costs and othei 
items as discussed in Note 2. 

Elimination of income of $1 19 from the incremental impacts of 
overlapping wireless properties sold in October 1999. 

After-tax pension settlement gains of $368 asmiated with lump sum 
pension payments that exceeded the projected Service and interest costs. 

After-tax gains of $77 recognized from the Sale of property by an 
international equity affiliate. 

An after-tax reduction of $27 of a portion of a first quarter 1998 
charge to cover the cost of consolidating security monitoring centers 
and company-owned wireless retail stores 

o 

o 

0 

0 

For 1998, normalizing items included the foilowing items: 

After-tax gain of $1.012 for the sale of TCNZ shares. 

After-tax charges of $268 related to strategic initiatives resuiiing 
from the merger integration process with SNET. 

After-tax gains of $21 9 from the Sale of certain noncore businesses. 
principally the required disposition of SBC‘s investment In MTN, a 
cellular company in South Africa, 

o 

0 

0 

o Elimination of Income of $1 23 from the incremental impacts of 
overlapping wireless properties sold in October 1999. 

After-tax gain of $102 from the sale of certain telephone and 
directory assets. 

After-tax charge of $64 to cover the cost of consolidating security 
monitoring centers and company-owned wireless retail stores. 

o 

0 

Normalizing items in 1997 included the following adjustments: 

After-tax charges of $1.6 billion related to strategic initiatives 
resulting from the merger integration process with PAC. 

0 

0 After-tax charge of $87 for SBC‘s share of the costs of a work force 
restructuring at Belgacom. 

0 After-tax charges of $304 for ongoing merger integration costs (see 
Note 2). 

After-tax first quarter settlement gains of $90 at PAC associated 
with lump sum pension payments that exceeded the projected service and 
interest costs for 1996 retirements. 

Elimination of income of $88 from the incremental impacts of 
Overlapping wireless properties soid in October 1999. 

After-tax gain of $58 from the sale of SBC‘s interests in Bell 

o 

0 

0 
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Communications Research, Inc. 

Corporate. adjustments and eliminations include corporate activities. the 
elimination of intersegment transactions and other adjustments. Included in 
other adjustments are differences in accounting between subsidiaries and 
consolidated financial statements for pension and postretirement kneffis 
and the treatment of conforming accounting adjustments arising out of the 
pooling of interests transactions with Ameritech. SNET and PAC that were 
required to be treated as cumulative effect of accounting changes by the 
subsidiaries. 

<PAGE> 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
Segment resblts inc .d ng a reconc .la1 on to SEC consolioatea resd 1s. for 
1999,1998ano 1957areasfolom 

. 
Information Corporate. 

At December 31, 1999 or for and Adjustments Normalizing 
the year ended Wireline Wireless Enteiiainment International & Eliminations Adjustments Total 

<S> <c> <c> <c> CCS <C> <c> <c> 
Revenues from external 

Intersegment revenues 322 5 91 10 (428) 
customers $37,2545 6,7595 4,686 $ 137 $ 124 $ 529 $49,489 

....... 
Information Corporate. 

At December 31, 1998 or for and Adjustments Normalizing 
the year ended Wireline Wireless Entertainment International & Eliminations Adjustments Total 

~~ ........................ 

Information Corporate, 
At December 31, 1997 or for and Adjustments Normalizing 
the year ended Wireline Wireless Entertainment International & Eliminations Adjustments Total 
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Revenues from external 
customers $33,282$ 5,022$ 3,728 $ 103 $ 298 $ 673 $43,106 

lntersegment revenues 374 1 91 19 (485) 

amortization 6,158 607 149 18 145 7 w  7,777 

affiliates (4) 9 - 528 (9) (87) 437 

Depreciation and 

Equty in net income of 
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Interest expense 1,198 165 54 104 (16) 45 1,550 
lnwme before income taxes 6.558 372 1,350 51 2 375 (2,629) 6.538 
Expenditures for additions 
to long-lived assets 7,314 1,066 238 2 236 - 8.856 __________________--____________________-------------------------------------------------------------------- ............................................................................................................ 

</TABLE> 

Geographic Information 

SBC's investments outside of the United States are primarily accounted for 
under the equity method of accounting and do n d  rewrd in operating 
revenues and expenses the revenues and expenses of the individual companies 
in which SBC invests. SpeciRcally, less than 1% of total operating revenues 
for all years presented are from outside the United States. Long-lived 
assets outside the United States consist primarily of the book value of 
these investments: 

December 31, 1999 1998 

United States $ 48.924 $ 45,493 
Canada 3,770 
Denmark 3,019 3,401 
Mexico 906 836 
Belgium 831 892 
South Africa 708 694 
Hungary 532 534 
France 459 557 
Other foreign countries 129 199 

Tdal $ 59,278 $ 52,606 ________________________________________----------------- ________________________________________--------------~-- 
Note8. Debt 

Long-term debt of SBC and its subsidiaries, including interest rates and 
maturities, is Summarized as follows at December 31 : 

<TABLE> 

1999 1998 

<S> CCS CC> 
Notes and debentures 

4.37%-6.00% 1999-2007 1 $ 3,056 $ 3,366 
6.03%-7.85% 1999.2048 2 13,990 13.568 
8.00%-10.50% 1999-2031 577 646 

17,623 17,580 
Unamortized discount-net of premium 236 (101) 

Total notes and debentures 17.859 17.479 

Guaranteed obligations of ESOP 3 
8.10%-9.40% 2000 88 164 

Capitalized leases 258 268 

Total long-term debt. including current maturities 18,205 17.91 1 
Current maturities (750) (741) 

Total long-term debt $ 17,475 $ 17,170 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
sFN> 

1 Includes $250 of 5.9% debentures maturing in 2038 with a put option by holder in 2W5. 
2 Includes $1 25 of 6.35% debentures maturing in 2026 with a put option by holder in 2w6. 
3 See Note 12. 

4FN> 
<ITABLE> 

At December 31, 1999, the aggregate principal amounts of long-term debt and 
weighted average interest rate scheduled for repayment for the years 2oM) 
through 2004 were $730 (6.4%), $1,466 (6.7%), 51,107 (6.6%), $1,722 (6.0%). 
$1,154 (6.5%) with $1 1,790 (6.9%) due thereafter. As of December 31, 1999, 
SBC was in compliance with all covenants and conditions of instruments 
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governing its debt. Substantially all of SBCs outstanding long-term debt is 
unsecured. 

in January M O O ,  SBC guaranteed existing publicly issued debt securities 
issued by Ameritech Capital Funding Corporation. Illinois Bell Telephone 
Company, Indiana Bell Telephone Company, Inc., Michigan Bell Telephone 
Company, The Ohio Bell Telephone Company, PacBeil, Southern New England 
Telecommunications Corporation, The Southern New England Telephone Company, 
SWBell and Wisconsin Bell, inc. Each guarantee will apply as long as the 
individual company remains a wholly owned subsidiary of SBC. 

Financing Activities - In December 1999, SBC called approximately $31 of 
debt that was scheduled to mature in December 2004. The net income effect of 
retiring this debt did not materially impact SBCs financial statements. 
During 1999, subsequent to the completion of the acquisitions of Comcast 
Cellular Corporation (Comcast) and Cellular Communications of Puerto Rico, 
Inc. (Cellular Communications), SBC retired $1,415 of Comcast's and Cellular 
Communications' long-term debt with no effect on net income. In May 1999. 
SBC issued 5750 of 6.25% unsecured Eurodollar notes. due May 2009. 

In 1598. SBC issued approximately 52,150 in notes and debentures. The notes 
and debentures bear interest rates ranging from 5.65% to 6.88% and mature 
between M 0 1  and 2048 Also. in 1998. SBC issued 5750 of 5.88% unsecured 
Eurodollar notes, due February 2003. SBC used prcceeds from these borrowings 
primarily to fund its investment in Tele Danmark 

Debt maturing within one year consists of the following at December 31 : 

..................... 
1999 1998 

. 
Commercial paper 5 2,623 5 3,412 
Current maturities of long-term debt 730 741 
Other short-term debt 21 25 

Total 5 3,374 $ 4,178 ............................................................................ ________________________________________------------------------------------ 
The weighted average interest rate on commercial paper debt at December 31, 
1999 and 1998 was 5.72% and 5.43%. SBC has entered into agreements with 
several banks for committed lines of credn totaling $2,880 a11 of which may 
be used to support commercial paper borrowings. SBC had no borrowings 
outstanding under these lines of credit as of December 31, 1999 or 1998. 

Note 9. Financial Instruments 

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of SBC's long-term debt. 
including current maturities, and other financial instruments. are 
summarized as follows at December 31: 

<TABLE> 

1999 1998 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

<S> cc> <c> SC, <C> 
Notes and debentures $ 17,859 5 17,086 $ 17,479 5 18,656 
TOPrS 1.000 924 1,000 1,029 
Preferred stock of subsidiaries 820 820 717 717 
Guaranteed obligations of ESOP1 88 94 164 169 

1 See Note 12. 

_______________-----____________________----------------------------------------------------- ............................................................................................. 
cFN> 

c/FN> 
4 A B L E >  

The fair values of SBc's notes and debentures, including ESOP obligations, 
were estimated based on quoted market prices, where available, or on the net 
present value method of expected future cash flows using current interest 
rates. The fair value of the TOPrS was estimated based on quoted market 
prices. The carryng amounts of preferred stock of subsidiaries and 
commercial paper debt approximate fair values. SBCs short-term investments 
and customer deposits are recorded at amortized cost and the cav ing 
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amounts approximate fair values. 

Preferred Stock 1ssLances by SJOS 0 ares - In April 1998 an SBC subsidiary 
issue0 tnrougn pr vale placemenr 3 250 shares of stated rate auction 
preferred stock (STRAPS he1 procews from these ssuances totaled 5322 
Dividends accrde on rne STRAPS at varying rares. wt? cn are ad.ustw 
perimically througn separa!e axlions on eacn series. Dividends are 
cbmd alive from the oale of !ssLance The oividend rales for each series 
rangea from 4 39% 10 5 'WL as of Decemoer 31 1999. 

In .une I997 ana Decemoer 1999 one of SBC's wnolly ownea subsiaiar.es 
issued $250 and 5100 01 preferred slocs n private placements. The holders 
of tne preferred stocs may reqL re SBC's subsidiary to redeem the shares 
after May 20, 2004 h o  oers receive quarterly dividenos baswl on a rollng 
three-month Lonaon nleroans Offer Rate (LIBOR) The dn  oend rae for the 
December 31 1999 pa,rncil was 6 28% 

As of December 31 1999 a fino ly owned subs.aiary had OLtstanaing 585 of 
Sei es A Preferred Stom (7  04% sdblect to mandatoty redemp on in 2001) 
and $60 of Series B Preferreo Stock (variable rate 4.60% as of December 31, 
1999. not S L D , ~  to mavzalory reoemption) 

Tne preferred stock of s..cs o ar es o s c ~ s s w  above IS inclLoed in other 
noncurrent I.abilil e?. on Ine conso dated balance sneel. 

PaciCc Telesis Financing I ano . (tne TrLsts) were formed in 1996 for the 
exc Lsive pdrpo~e of iss..ing preferrea ana common securities representing 
undiv,dea beneficia inleresls n tne TrLsls and investing the proceeds fmm 
the sales of TOPrS in Lnsec-red sLbordlnated deot securlties of PAC Under 
cenain clrcdmstances. L' i dends on TOPrS COLI0 be deferred for up to a 
period of five years As of Decemoer 31 1999. the TNS~S neld st.borainated 
aebt secdrities of PAC I pi nc pal amoLnts of $516 and $514 mth interest 
rates of 7 56% ana 8 50.h Tne TOPrS are p i  c w  at $25 per share have an 
original 30-year matLr ly lhar may be enendw up to 49 years, are callable 
in 2001 at par and are nc.-oeo on tne ba ance sneel as 
corporal on-oo gated manoatori y redeemaole preferred secbr ties of 
sLbsidiary trdsts Tne pruceeos were Lsed lo retlre snort-term indebtedness. 
primarily commercia p a w  SBC has gdarantew payment of the obhgations of 
lne TOPrS 

Derivatives - SBC enters into foreign currency contracts to hedge exposure 
to adverse exchange risk. SBC also uses interest rate swaps to manage 
interest rate exposure. Related gains and losses are reflected in net 
income. The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of SBC's derivative 
financial instruments are Summarized as follows at December 31 : 

<TABLE> 

1999 1998 

Carving/ Carrying/ 
Notional Fair Notional Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

CSZ CCS sc> <c> <c> 
Foreignexchangecontracts-long $ - $ 142 $ - $ - 
Foreign exchange contracts-short - 765 
Interest rate swaps 1,180 (14) 458 (27) 
Equity swaps 13 26 

<iTABLE> 

Prior to its merger with an SBC subsidiary, PAC issued stock options to its 
employees during a spinoff of certain wireless properties Some of these 
options were stili outstanding when PAC merged with an SBC subsidiary in 
1997 (see Note 13). SBC had used equity swaps to hedge the equity price risk 
related to these spunoff operations employee stock options. However. in 1999 
SBC evaluated the related risk level and exited all of its related equity 
swap contracts, receiving cash for the appreciated value of the contracts 
and recognizing a minimal gain. 

Note I O .  Income Taxes 

Significant components of SBC's deferred tax iiabiliies and assets are as 
follows at December 31: 
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1999 1998 
~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Depreciation and amortization $ 6.865 $ 6.104 
Equity in foreign affiliates 540 457 
Deferred directory expenses 524 383 
Other 1,254 216 

Deferred tax liabilities 9.183 7,160 

Employee benefits 2.418 2.416 
Currency translation adjustments 586 333 
Allowance for uncoliectibles m 168 
Unamortized investment tax credits 147 132 
Other 1.850 1.631 

Deferred tax assets 5,223 4,680 

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance 99 143 

The decrease in the valuation allowance is the result of an evaluation of 
the uncertaintyassociated with the realization of certain deferred tax 
assets. The valuation allowance is maintained in deferred tax assets for 
certain unused federal and state loss carryforwards. 

The components of income tax expense are as follows: 

1999 1998 1997 

Federal: 
Current $ 2,883 $ 3,151 $ 1,781 
Deferred-net 814 671 363 
Amortization of investment tax credits (85) (96) (115) 

3,612 3,726 2,029 

State and local: 
Current 
Deferred.net 

421 485 232 
247 169 190 

668 654 422 

A reconciliation of income tax expense and the amount computed by applying 
the statutory federal income tax rate (35%) to income before income taxes, 
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accountina chanae is as 
follows: 

<TABLE> 

1999 1998 1997 

CS> <C> CCS SCS 

Taxes computed at federal statutory rate $ 3.798 $ 4,240 $2.288 
Increases (decreases) in income taxes resuming from: 
Amortization of investment tax credits over the life of 

State and local income taXes.net of federal inwme tax benefit 440 424 274 
Giher-net 97 (222) (36) 

Total $ 4,280 $ 4,380 $2,451 

the plant that gave rise to the credits (55) (62) (75) 

........ 

<TTABLE> 

Note 11. Employee Benefits 

Pensions - Substantially all employees of SBC are covered by one of various 
noncontributory pension and death benefit plans. Management employees 
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participate in either cash balance or defined lump sum pension plans. The 
pension benefh formula for most nonmanagement employees is based on a flat 
dollar amount per year according to job classification. Most employees can 
elect to receive their pension benefits in either lump sum or annuity. 

SBC's objective in funding the plans, in combination with the standards of 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (as amended), is to 
accumulate funds sufficient to meet its benefit obligations to employees 
upon their retirement. Contributions to the plans are made to a trust for 
the benefit of plan participants. Plan assets consist primarily of stocks, 
U.S. government and domestic corporate bonds, index Funds and real estate 

Effective with the Ameritech merger, SBC performed a midyear valudion for 
all pension plans. The amounts that follow reflect the impacts and 
assumptions of the midyear valuation. 

The following table presents the change in the pension plan benefit 
obligation for the years ended December 31 : 

1999 1998 
............... 
Benefh obligation at beginning of the year $ 27.528 $ 26,235 
Service cost - benefits earned during the 

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 1,831 1.813 
Amendments 460 224 
Actuarial (gain)/loss (1,121) 1,170 
Special termination benefits 32 53 
Benefits paid (3,629) (2.515) 

period 584 548 

Benefh obligation at end of year $ 25.685 $ 27.528 
___________________-____________________--------------------------.--------- 

The following table presents the change in pension plan assets for the years 
ended December 31 and the pension plans' funded status at December 31 : 

1999 1998 

Fair value of pian assets at beginning of the 
year $ 41,794 $ 38,703 

Actual return on plan assets 8,065 5,593 
Benefits paid (3,901) (2,502) 

The following table presents amounts recognized in SBC's 
Balance Sheets at December 31: 

Consolidated 

1999 1998 

Prepaid pansion cost $ 3,539 $ 2.512 
Accrued pension liability (330) (432) 

Net amount recognized $ 3,209 $ 2,080 

Net pension cost IS composed of the following: 
<TABLE> 
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Signifcant weighteo-arrrdge assdmpr ons s e d  in developing pension 
informal on mcldoe 

<TABLE> 

. 
1999 1998 1997 

<S> CCZ <c> <C> 
Discount rate for determining projected benefit obligation 7.75% 7.0% 7.2% 
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.50% 8.5% 8.5% 
Composite rate of compensation increase 4.25% 4.2% 4.2% ________________________________________------------------------------------------------------ ________________________________________------------------------------------------------------ 

</TABLE> 

The projected benefit obligation is the actuarial present value of all 
benefits attributed by the pension benefit formula to previously rendered 
employee setvice. It is measured based on assumptions wncerning future 
interest rates and employee cornpensation levels. Should actual experience 
differ from the actuarial assumptions, the benefd obligation will be 
affected. 

In April 1997, management amended the SBC Pension Beneffi Plan to a cash 
balance pension plan effective June 1, 1997. Under the new plan, 
participants accrue benefits based on a percentage of pay plus interest. In 
addition, a transition benefit is phased in over five years The new plan 
also requires computation of a grandfathered benefd using the old formula 
for five years. Participants receive the greater of the cash balance benefd 
or the grandfathered benefit. The new cash balance plan allom lump sum 
benefit payments in addition to annuities. This change did not have a 
significant impact on SBCs net income for 1997. 

During 1997, a significant amount of lump sum pension payments resulted in a 
partial settlement of PAC's pension plans. Therefore, net Jenlement gains 
in the amount of $299 were recognized in 1997. Of this amount, $ 1 5 2 ~ ~  
rewgnued in the first quarter of 1997 and related primarily to managers 
who terminated employment in 1996. These gains are not included in the net 
pension cost shown in the table above, 

in addition to the net periodic benefit costs reported in the above tables. 
SBC recognized $566 in net settlement gains in the fourth quarter of 1999. 
These settlement gains resulted from a significant amount of lump sum 
pension payments that caused a partial settlement of Amentech's pension 
plans. SBC is currently evaluating whether additional lump sum payments will 
require the recognition of additional settlement gains in 2000. 

In December 1999. under the provisions of Section 420 of the Internal 
Revenue Code, SBC transferred $280 in pension assets to a health care 
benefit account for the reimbursement of retiree health care benehs paid 
by SBC. 

Supplemental Retirement Plans - SBC also provides senior and middle 
management employees with nonquaiified, unfunded supplemental retirement and 
savings plans. These plans include supplemental defined pension benefds as 
well as compensation deferral plans, some of which include a corresponding 
match by SBC based on a percentage of the compensation deferral. Expenses 
related to these plans were $146. $1 14 and $97 in 1999.1998 and 1997. 
Liabilities of $1,287 and $1,022 related to these plans have been included 
in other noncurrent liabilities in SBC's Consolidated Balance Sheets at 
December 31,1999 and 1998. 

Postretirement Benefits - SBC provides certain medical, dental and life 
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insurance benefits to substantially all retired employees under various 
plans and accrues actuarially determined postretirement benefit costs as 
active employees earn these benefits. SBC's postretirement benefit cost in 
1998 and 1997 for certain plans refiects an estimate of potential future 
cost sharing by retirees. SBC maintains Voluntary Employee Beneficiary 
Association trusts to fund postretirement benefits. Assets consist 
principally of stocks and U.S. government and corporate bonds. 

The following table sets forth the change in the benefit obligation for the 
years ended December 31: 
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1999 1998 

Benefit obligation at beginning of the year $ 15,489 $ 12.978 
Service cost - benefits earned during the period 260 193 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 1,050 904 
Amendments (2) 2,008 
Actuarial (gain)/loss (515) 109 
Benefts paid (771) (703) 

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 15,511 $ 15,489 ________________________________________------------------------------------ ............................................................................ 
The following table sets forth the change in plan assets for the years ended 
December 31 and the plans' funded status at December 31 : 

1999 1998 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the 

Actual return on plan assets 1,199 1,114 
year $ 6,869 $ 5,583 

Employer contribution 93 442 
Benefits paid (290) (270) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 1 $ 7,871 $ 6,869 

Funded status $ (7,640) 0 (8,620) 
Unrecognized prior service cost 960 1,119 
Unrecognized net gain (2,460) (1.245) 

Accrued postretirement benefit obligation $ (9,140) $ (8,746) 

1 Plan assets include SBC common stock of $IO at December 31,1999 and 1998. 

Postretirement benefit cost is composed of the following: 
<TABLE> 

1999 1998 1997 

SS> <C> <c> <c> 
Service cost-benefits earned during the period $ 260 $ 193 $ 187 
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement 
beneft obligation (APBO) 1,050 904 876 
Expected return on assets (504) (419) (351) 
Amortization of prior service cost 157 (260) (280) 
Recognized actuarial gain (13) (12) (27) 

Postretirement benefit cost $ 950 $ 406 $ 405 

</TABLE> 

The fair value of pian assets restricted to the payment of life insurance 
benefits was $1,277 and $1,323 at December 31,1999 and 1998. At December 
31, 1999 and 1998, the accrued life insurance benefts included in the APBO 
benefit obligation were $540 and $322. 

The assumed medical cost trend rate in 2000 is 8.0%, decreasing linearly to 
5.0% in 2006, prior to adjustment for cost-sharing provisions of the medical 
and dental plans for active and certain recently retired employees. The 
assumed dental cost trend rate in 2000 is 5.5%, reducing to 5.0% in 2002. A 
one percentage-point change in the assumed health care cast trend rate w u l d  
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have the following effects. 

One Percentage- One Percentage- 
Point Increase Point Decrease 

Effect on total of service and 
interest cost components $ 186 5 148 

benefit obligation 1,632 1,402 
Effect on postretirement 

Significant assumptions for the discount rate, long-term rate of return on 
plan assets and composite rate of compensation increase used in developing 
the APBO and related postretirement benefit costs were the Same as those 
used in developing the pension information. Due to the Ameritech merger, a 
midyear vduation also was performed for ail postretirement benefit plans. 

Note 12. Other Employee Benefits 

Employee Stock Ownership Plans - SBC maintains contributory savings plans 
that wver substantially all employees. Under the savings plans, SBC matches 
a stated percentage of eligible employee contributions, subject to a 
specified ceiling. 

SBC has six leveraged ESOPs as part of the existing savings plans. Two of 
the ESOPs were funded with notes issued by the savings plans to nrious 
lenders, the proceeds of which were used to purchase shares of SBC's common 
stock in the open market. These notes are unconditionally guaranteed by SBC 
and therefore presented as a reduction to shareowners' equity and an 
increase in lono-term debt. Thev will be reoaid with SBC contributions to - 
the savings plans, 0 Y oenos pad on S8C snares and interest earned on funds 
hea oythe ESOPs 

One ESOP purchased PAC treasury shares in exchange for a promissory note 
from the plan to PAC. Since PAC is the lender, this note is not reflected as 
a liabilii and the remaining cost of unallocated trust shares is carried as 
a reduction of shareowners' equity. Principal and interest on the note are 
paid from employer contributions and dividends received by the trust. All 
PAC shares were exchanged for SBC shares effective with the merger April 1, 
1997. The provisions of the ESOP were Unaffected by this exchange. Another 
ESOP acquired SNET shares with the proceeds of notes issued by the savings 
plans, which SNET guaranteed, through a third party. The SNET common stock 
was acquired through open market purchases in exchange for a promissory note 
from the pian to SNET. SNET periodically makes cash payments to the ESOP 
that, together with dividends received on shares held by the ESOP, are used 
to make interest and principal payments on both loans. All SNET shares were 
exchanged for SBC shares effective with the merger October 26. 1998. The 
provisions of the ESOP were unaffected by this exchange. 

Two ESOPs were funded with notes issued by the savings plans which Ameritech 
guaranteed, the proceeds of which were used to purchase, at fair market 
value, shares of Ameritech common stock held in treasury. As a result of 
Ameritech's unconditional guarantee, the notes are presented as a reduction 
to shareowners' equity and an increase in long-term debt Amerltech 
periodically made cash payments that, together with dividends received on 
shares held by the ESOPs, were used to make interest and principal payments 
on the loan. Ail Ameritech shares were exchanged for SBC shares effective 
with the merger on October 8, 1999. The provisions of the ESOP were 
unaffected by this exchange. 

SBC's match of employee contributions to the savings plans is fulfilled with 
shares of stock allocated from the ESOPs and with purchases of SBC's stock 
in the open market. Shares held by the ESOPs are released for allocation to 
the accounts of employees as employer-matching contributions are earned 
Benefit ws t  is based on a combination of the contributions to the savings 
plans and the cost of shares allocated to participating employees' accounts. 
Both benefit cost and interest expense on the notes are reduced by dividends 
on SBC's shares heid by the ESOPs and interest earned on the ESOPs' funds 

Information related to the ESOPs and the savings plans is summarked below: 
<TABLE> 

1999 1998 1597 
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<S> SCS <c> <c> 
Eenem expense-net of dividends and interest income $ 90 $ 77 $ 73 
Interest expense-net of dividends and interest income 10 25 36 

W 

1999 1998 

<S> <C> CC> 
Unallocated 16,030,695 24,501,561 
Allocated to participants 101,257,366 95,069,009 

Total 117,288,061 119,570,570 

Note 13. Stock-Eased Compensation 

Under various SBC plans, senior and other management employees and 
non-employee directors have received stock options, stock appreciation 
rights (SARs), performance stock units and nonvested stock units. Stock 
options issued through December 31,1999 carry exercise prices equal to the 
market price of the stock at the date of grant and have mavimum terms 
ranging from five to ten years Beginning in 1994 and ending in 1999, 
certain Ameritech employees were awarded grants of nonqualified stock 
options with dividend equivalents. Depending upon the grant, vesting of 
stock options may occur up to four years from the date of grant. Performance 
stock units are granted to key employees based upon the common stock price 
at date of grant and are awarded in the form of common stock and cash at the 
end of a two- or three-year period, subject to the achievement of certain 
performance goals. Nonvested stock units are valued at market price of the 
stock at date of grant and vest over a three- to five-year period. Up to 31 0 
million shares may be issued under these plans. 

SEC measures compensation cost for these plans using the intrinsic 
value-based method of accounting as allowed in Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 123. "Accounting for Stock-Eased Compensation" (FAS 
123). Accordingly, no compensation cost for SEC's stock option plans has 
been recognized. Had compensation cost for stock option plans been 
recognized using the fair value-based method of accounting at the date of 
grant for awards in 1999.1998 and 1997 as defined by FAS 123 SEC's net 
income would have been $7,969, $7,537 and $3,962, and basic net income per 
share would have been $2.34, $2.21 and $1.17. The compendion cost that has 
been charged against income for SEC's other stock-based compensation plans 
totaled $36, $83 and $65 for 1999, 1998 and 1997. 

For purposes of these pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the 
options granted is amortized to expense over the options' vesting period. 
The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant, using a 
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average 
assumptions used for grants in 1999. 1998 and 1997: risk-free interest rate 
of 5.31 %. 5.69% and 6.47%; dividend yield of 1.65%, 2.38% and 2.98%; 
expected volatility factor of 15%. 18% and 19%; and expected option life of 
4.5, 5.0 and 4.9 years. 

As of December 31,1998,29,390 shares of nonperformance-based restricted 
Stock issued to Ameritech employees were outstanding under the A m e r k h  
plans. Shareowners' equity reflects deferred compensation for the unvested 
stock awarded. This amount was reduced and charged against operations 
(together with any change in market price) as the employees vested in the 
stock. All restricted stock under Ameritech plans vested as a result of the 
Ameritech merger with an SEC subsidiary in 1999. 

Information related to options and SARs is Summarized below: 
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<TABLE> 

Weighted- 
Average Exercise 

Number Price 
~~~~~~~~ 

CS> CC> <C> 
Outstanding at January 1,1997 126,464,343 520.03 
Granted 56.229.919 25.52 
Exercised 
ForfeitedlExpired 

(27.891.733) 18.49 
(10,567,550) 22.85 

Outstanding at December 31, 1997 

Granted 34,516,726 39.46 
Exercised (25,767,038) 20.61 
ForfeitedIExpired (6,747,545) 29.64 

Outstanding at December 31, 1998 

Granted 26,139,492 48.70 
Exercised (19,095,315) 23.13 
ForfehedIExpired (4.1 18.769) 39.06 

(60,656,487 exercisable at weighted-average price of 519.36) 14,234,979 22.27 

(73,187,564 exercisable at weighted-average price of $20.85) 146,237,122 26.26 

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 
(1 16,276.298 exercisable at weighted-average price of $26.91) 149,162,530 $30.24 ................................................................................................ ................................................................................................ 

</TABLE> 

Information related to options and SARs outstanding at December 31, 1599: 
<TABLE> 

Exercise Price Range 510.90-517.39 $17.40-$29.99 $30.00-535.49 535.50-559.00 

<S> CC> <C> sc> <c> 
Number of options and SARs: 

Weighted-average exercise price: 

Outstanding 13,145,846 82,990,276 9,845.528 43,180,880 
Exercisable 13,145,846 74,948,465 9,845,528 18,336,459 

Outstanding $15.07 523.93 534.16 546.10 
Exercisable $15.07 $23.53 $34.16 545.30 

Weighted-average remaining contractual life 3.93 years 6.29 years 8.30 years 8.83 years 
________________________________________---_-_____________________.____------____________________ ________________-_--____________________---________-______________.______________-_______________ 

cmABLEs 

The weighted-average, grant-date fair value of each option granted during 
1999, 1998and 1997was$9.31,58.71 and55.36. 

As of December 31, additional shares available under Stock options with 
dividend equivalents were 1,526,514 in 1999, 1,505,625 in 1998 and 1,325,201 
in 1997. 

Options and SARs heid by the continuing employees of PAC at the time of the 
AirTouch Communications, Inc. (AirTouch) spinoff were supplemented with an 
equal number of options and SARs for common shares of spunoff operations. 
The exercise prices for outstanding options and SARs held by continuing 
employees of PAC were adjusted downward to reflect the value of the 
Supplemental spunoff operations' options and SARs. The balance sheet 
reflects a related liability equal to the difference between the current 
market price of spunoff operations stock and the exercise prices of the 
supplemental options outstanding. The spunoff operations options and SARs 
have been adjusted for Vodafone's acquisition of AirTouch and for Vodafone's 
Rve-for-one stock split in 1999. As of December 31, 1999, 404,825 
Supplemental spunoff operations options and SARs were outstanding with 
expiration dates ranging from 2000 to 2003. Outstanding options and SARs 
that were held by employees of the wireless operations at the spinoff date 
were replaced by options and SARs for common shares of spunoff operations 
The spunoff operations assumed liability for these replacement options and 
SARs. 

Note 14. Shareowners' Equity 

From time to time, SBC repurchases shares of common stock for distribution 
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or to offset shares distributed through hs employee benefit plans or in 
certain acquisitions. In 1999, the Board of Directors approved the 
repurchase of approximately 23 million shares of SEC's common stock. which 
has been completed 

In January 2000, SBC's Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 
100 million shares of S W s  common stock. 

Note 15. Acquisitions and Dispositions 

Acquisitions - In July 1999, SEC completed the acquisition of Comcast, the 
wireless subsidiary of Comcast Corporation, in a transaction valued at 
approximately $1.8 billion, including assumption of $1.4 billion in debt. 
With the acquisition, SEC added approximately 862.000 wireless subscribers 
in Pennsylvania, Delaware. New Jersey and Illinois. 

In June 1999, SBC acqdired 20% of Bel Canada, a suosldlanl of BCE Inc. 
(ECE). a pJbl,cly traded Canao an commJnica11ons company, for approximaely 
93 4 bil on As pan of tne inveslmenl SEC has the option 10 sell its 
shares to ECE at far market va "e p i ~ s  25% in 2002 and 2004 ECE has the 
option to repJrchase the snares on the same terms. SEC a so has the right to 
sell ns snares at a prem "m to ECE ' f a  cnange in control of ECE wcurs 
before JJne 2004 After Jdne 2004 the sa es price WOJ a w the n gner of 
fair marlcet va1t.e or the imp led va Le in the transamon that gave rise 10 
the change in control at ECE S m' arly. BCE may repurchase me snares at 
fair marfiel vahe any time 'f mere 15 a change in control of SEC The 
investment agreement a so pro, des for rights of first refLsal an0 rignts of 
first offer. 

In January 1998. SEC purcnased a 34% interest in Tele Danmarlc, tne national 
communica1:ons provloer in Denmarlc. from me Kingaom of Denmark for 
approximate y $3 1 oi .ion As pan of the investment agreement Tele 
Danmark repdrchased ana ret reo al remaining shares ownec by the Danish 
government. effective y ncreasmg SECS equny ownership to 41 6% of Tele 
Danmark 

In May 1997 a consortidm maoe LP of SEC and Te.elcom Malaysia Berhad. 60% 
Ownw oy SEC. completed tne pdrchase of 30% of Telfiom SBC invested 
approximate y $760 approximate y $600 of WhlCn remained .n Tellcom 

During 1997 SEC ais0 acqd red assets of several companies engaged in 
electronic secdr.ty sew ces for approx mately $1 bii Ion in cash and stwk. 

These above acqd sit ons were accomted for under tne purchase method of 
accodnting The p-rcnase prices n excess of tne undenyng fair value of 
oentif able ne1 assels acqL.reo are be ng amonzed over periws not 
exceed ng 40 years Resuits of operations of lne acquis.tions have been 
inciudeo .n the consoiiaateo f.nanc a statements from the r respective 
dates of acqdaKon 

The above deve.opments oia not have a slgn flcant impact on consolidated 
resuks of operat ons for 1999 1998 or 1997, nor WoJld they, nad they 
OccJrred on .ant.ary 1 of tne respective periws 

Dispostions - In October 1999 SEC completed the requ.rw aisposition. as a 
cnndnion of the Amer lecn merger, of 20 M dwestern cellular properties 
nclJding tne competing ce.iLIar I censes in Severa marlcm incluaing. bbt 
not limneo to. Chicago I .In0 s and St -0Uis. MssoJri SEC recorded an 
extraordinary gain of $1.379. or SO 40 per share on i n  s sale net of taxes 
of $960 ResLlts of operat ons for 1999 JP to the date of disposnton, I 998 
and 1997 nclLoe revendes of 5705 $891 and $861, net income of $1 19 $123 
and $88 an0 d "le0 earn ngs per share of SO 03 $0.04 and SO 03 re ated to 
tnese CellLlar propert es 

DLring the th i d  qJaner of 1998 SBC sod Is interest in MTN to tne 
remaining shareholaers of MTh for $337 The sale fJlfllled SEC's obligat.on 
10 oivest MTN as a reqL.remen1 of tne acquisition of Telkom The effect on 
other income (expense) - net and net 'ncome from tne sale of MTN was $250 
and $162 

In April 1998, SEC sold substantially all of its remaining interest in TCNZ 
in a global stock offering. Net proceeds received in two installment 
payments in April 1998 and March 1999 were approximately $2.1 billion 
resulting in an after-tax gain of approximately 51 billion in 1998. 
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Pending Transaction - In November 1999. SBC and Prodigy Communications 
Corporation (Prodigy) announced an agreement to form a partnership that will 
join their consumer and smali business Internet operations. Under the terms 
of the agreement, which is expected to close in the second quarter of 2w0, 
SBC will make Prodigy its exclusive retail consumer and small business 
Internet access service for customers in SBC's service area. Prodigy will 
assume management of approximately 650,000 SBC subscribers of dial-up, ISDN 
and basic DSL Internet access services, increasing Prodigys total managed 
subscriber base to more than 2 million. Subject to specific exceptions, SBC 
will exclusively market Prodigy service through hs extensive marketing 
channels with a commitment to deliver a minimum of 1.2 million new customers 
over the next three years to the Prodigy member base. The agreement provides 
SBC with a 43% ownership stake in the partnership and a similar voting 
interest in Prodigy. Under certain circumstances, this may translate into a 
direct ownership interest in Prodigy. Required approvals for the transaction 
have been received from certain Federal regulatoly agencies that had 
jurisdiction to consider the transaction. The agreement is subject to 
approval at a meeting of the shareholders of Prodigy, which is anticipated 
in early 2000. 

Note 16. Software Costs 

The American institute of Cerlified Public Accountants issued a Statement of 
Position (SOP) that requires capitalization of certain computer software 
expenditures beginning in 1999. The SOP, which prescribed prospectwe 
application, requires the capitalization of certain costs incurred in 
wnnection with developing or obtaining internal use software beginning in 
1999. Capitalized software costs are being amortized over three years. Prior 
to the adoption of the SOP, the costs of computer softviare purchased or 
developed for internal use were generally expensed as incurred. However, 
initial operating system software costs were, and continue to be. 
capitalized. 

With comparable levels of software expendfiures. the SOP would tend to 
increase net income when compared with SBC's former method of accounting for 
software costs. However, the increases would be largest in the year of 
adoption with diminishing levels of increases compared with current 
accounting throughout the amortization period. Consequently, given otherwise 
cornparable income levels excluding software, and otherwise comparable 
softviare expenditures, the effect of the SOP would be to increase income in 
the first year and decrease income in each subsequent year until the number 
of years affected by the SOP equals the amortization period. The effect of 
adopting the SOP was to increase net income by approximately $274, or $0.08 
per share, assuming dilution, for the year ended December 31, 1999. 

Note 17. Additional Financial Information 
<TABLE> 

Balance Sheets 

<s> <C> 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued taxes 
Advance billing and customer deposits 
Compensated future absences 
Accrued interest 
Accrued payroll 
Other 

<C> <CS 

$ 4,834 $ 4.726 
3,386 2,611 

1.431 1,255 
71 1 677 

427 432 
800 536 

3,464 3,016 

Total $ 15,103 $ 13,253 

Statements of Income 1999 1998 1997 
~~~~~~~~~~ 

Advertising expense $ 812 $ 814 $ 844 

Interest expense incurred $ 1,511 $ 1,691 $ 1.7W 
Capitalized interest (81) (86) (1%) 

Total interest expense $ 1,430 $ 1,605 $ 1,550 
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No customer accounted for more than 10% of consolidated revenues in 1999, 
1998 or 1997. 

Approximately two-thirds of SBC employees are represented by collective 
bargaining agreements with varying dates of Bxpiration in the years 2W1 
through 2002. 

Note 18. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 
<TABLE> 

Total Stock Price 

Diluted 
Calendar Operating Operating Net Earnings 
Quarter Revenues Income Income PerShare High Low Close 

csz CCS <c> <c> CCZ <c> <c> scs 
1599 
First $ 11.802 $ 3,051 $ 1,980 $ 0.579 59.938$46.063 $ 47.188 
Second 12,256 3,227 1,938 0.56 58 .W 4 8 . W  58.000 
Third 12,534 2,462 1,135 0.33 59.875 45.375 51.063 
Fourth 12,897 2.858 3,106 0.90 55.500 44.063 48.750 

Annual $ 49.489 $ 11,598 $ 8,159 $ 2.36 
~~ 

1598 

First $ 11,038 $ 2.685 $ 1,483 $ 0.431 46.5639 35.375 $ 43.375 
Second 11,398 3,017 2,750 0.80 44.938 37.125 4o.W 
Third 11,606 2,994 1.926 0.56 44.875 35.W 44.375 
Fourth 12,165 2,527 1,531 0.44 54.875 41.125 53.625 

Annual $ 46.207 $ 11,223 $ 7.690 $ 2.23 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

<,TABLE> 

The first quarter of 1999 includes a cumulative effect of accounting change 
of $207, or $0.06 per share from a change in accounting for directory 
operations at Ameritech. The fourth quarter of 1999 includes an 
extraordinary gain of $1,379. or $0.40 per share on the sale of the 
overlapping wireless properties. The first quarter of 1998 includes a 
cumulative effect of accounting change of $1 5. or $0.01 per share from a 
change in accounting for directory operations at SNET. The Fourth quarter of 
1998 includes an extraordinary loss on retirement of debt of $60, or $0.02 
per share 

There were also normalizing (i.e. one-time) items which are included in the 
information above, but are excluded from the information that management 
uses to evaluate the performance of each segment of the business (see Note 
7). The after-tax impact of the 1999 normalizing items was as follows: 

An expense reduction of $27 in the first quarter related to a first 
quarter 1998 charge to cover the cost of consolidating security 
monitoring centers and company-owned cellular retail stores. 
Charges of $883 in the third quarter and $574 in the fourth quarter 
related to strategic initiatives resulting from the merger integration 
process with Ameritech (see Note 2). 
Gains of $368 in the fourth quarter related to lump sum pension 
settlement gains for 1999 retirements. 
Gains of $77 in the fourth quarter related lo sales by an international 
equity affiliate. 
Incremental impacts of overlapping wireless properties required to be 

sold in October 1999 of $39 in the first quarter, $28 in the Second 

0 

0 

0 

o 

o 
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quarter. 541 in the third quarter and $5 in the fourth quarter. 

The after-tax impact of the 1998 normalizing items was as follows: 

o 

o 
o 

Charges of $64 in the first quarter to cover the cost of conxliidating 
security monitoring centers and company-owned cellular retail stores. 
Gain of $1,012 in the second quarter on the sale of TCNZ shares. 
Gains of 5219 in the third quarter on sales of certain noncore 
businesses, principally the required disposition of MTN. due to SBCs 
investment in Telkom. 
Charges of $268 in the fourth quarter related to strategic initiatives 
resulting from the merger integration process with SNET. 
Gain of 51 02 in the fourth quarter from the sale of certain telephone 
and directory assets. 
Incremental impacts of overlapping wireless properties required to be 
sold in October 1999 of $1 9 in the first quarter, $XI in the sewnd 
quarter, $28 in the third quarter and $46 in the fourth quarter. 

o 

o 

o 

<PAGE, 

Report of Independent Auditors 

The Board of Directors and Shareowners 
SBC Communications Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SBC 
Communications Inc. (the Company) as of December 31,1959 and 1998, and the 
related consolidated Statements of income, shareowners' equity, and cash flows 
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,1999. These 
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companvs 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audns. We did not audn the 1998 and 1997 
financial statements of Ameritech Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary. which 
statements reflect total assets constiuting approximately 40% of the Compenvs 
related 1998 consolidated financial Statement total and which reflect total 
operating revenues constituting approximately 37% of the Company's related 
consolidated financial statement totals for the years ended December 31, 1998 
and 1997. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been 
furnished to us. Our opinion, insofar as it reiates to the 1998 and 1997 data 
included for Ameritech Corporation, is based solely on the report of the other 
auditors. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audi 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

in our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the 
consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of SBC Communications 
Inc. at December 31, 1999 and 1998. and the consolidated results of its 
ocerations and its cash flows for each of the three Mars in the Deriod ended 
December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting.principles generally accepted 
in the United States. 

San Antonio, Texas 

February 11,2000 

<PAGE> 

Report of Management 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with 
United States' generally accepted accounting principles. The integrity and 
objectivity of the data in these financial statements, including estimates and 
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JJdgments re atlng 10 maners not concldded by year end. are the responsbilty 
of management. as IS al other nformation incluoed in the Annual Report. unless 
othenn se and cated 

Tne financial Statements of SEC CommJn car ons Inc. (SBC) have been audited by 
Ernst 8 Young .LP. ndependent aLdtors Management has made available to Ernst 
8 Young LLP a.l of SEC's f nanc a recoras and related data. as well as the 
minutes of Shareowners an0 directors' meet#ngs FJlthermore, management 
believes mal all represental ons made to Ernst 8 Young LLP during ts audlt 
were valid and appropriale. 

Management nas estab isned and ma nlains a system of internal accounting 
contra s that prov des reasonao e assurance as to the integrity and reliabilty 
of the financia statements the protection of assets from unaLthorized use or 
d SwSn on ana tne prevention an0 detect on of fraLoulent fnanclal reporting, 
Tne concept of reasonable assuance recognizes that tne costs of an internal 
accoLn1 ng conlro s system shod d not exceea. In managemenrs juogment. the 
beneMs 10 be oer vea 

Management also seee  10 ensdie tne oblectivity and integrty of Ls fnancial 
data by me carefdl se ection of its managers, by organizational arrangements 
that provide an appropr ate d v soon of responsio ity and by communication 
programs almeo at ens,, ng that is pol cies stanoards and manageria 
author ties are Lnoerslood thro.gno.1 the organ zat on Management continua ly 
montors the system of internal accomting contra s for compliance. SBC 
mainta ns an internal amting program that inaepenaently assesses the 
effect veness of tne nterna. acco-nt ng controls ana recommends improvements 
tnereto 

Tne A~0.1 Committee of the Eoara of Dlrectors wn ch consists of I 1  dlrenors 
who are not employees. meets perioa;cal y w th management. the internal aLoitors 
and the independent auditors Io rev ew tne manner in wnch they are perform ng 
their respective respons 0 ,ties and lo discuss aJdn ng. ntemal accounting 
controls ana financ al report ng maners Both the internal audtors ana the 
indepenoent auoltors per.oaica .y meet a one with the AJdn Comm.ttee and have 
access to the Audit Comm nee at any 1 me 

Edward E. Whitacre Jr. 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Donald E. Kiernan 
Senior Executive Vice President, 
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 

<PAGE> 

Stock Trading information 

SEC is listed on the New York, Chicago and Pacific stock exchanges and 
The Swiss Exchange. SEC is traded on the London Stock Exchange through 
the SEAQ International Markets facility. 

Ticker symbol (NYSE): SEC 

Newspaper stock listing: SEC or SEC Comm 
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AS OF DECEMBER 31.1999 

State of Conducts 
Name Incorporation Business Under 

Ameritech Corporation Delaware Same 

Pacific Telesis Group Nevada Same 

SBC International. Inc. Delaware Same 

Southern New England Connecticut Same 
Telecommunications 
Corporation 

Southwestern Beii Ouaiiy incorporated in Same 
Mobile Systems, Inc. 

Southwestern Bell Missouri Same 
Telephone Company 

Southwestern Bell Missouri Same 
Yellow Pages, Inc. 

Delaware and Virginia 

<IDOCUMEhT> 
<DOC,MENT> 
<TYPE>EX-23 
<SEQUENCE>lI 
<TEXT> 

ExhibR 23-a 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) 
of SBC Communications Inc. (SEC) of our report dated Februaiy 11,2Wo, included 
in the 1999 Annual Report to Shareowners of SBC. 

Our audls also include the financial statement schedules of SBC listed in item 
14(a). These Schedules are the responsibility of SBc's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion based on our audits. We did n d  aUdl 
the 1998 and 1997 financial statements of Ameritech Corporation, a wholly Owned 
subsidiary, which statements reflect total assets Wnstituting apprommately 40% 
of the Company% related 1998 consolidated financial statement total and which 
reflect total operating revenues constituting approximately 37% of the Companfs 
related consolidated financial statement totals for the years ended December 31, 
1998 and 1997. Those statements and schedules were audited by other auditors 
whose report has been furnished to us. In our opinion, b a d  on our audits and 
the report of other auditors. the financial statement schedules referred to 
above, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. present fairly in ail material respects the information set forlh 
therein. 

We also consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements 
(Form 5-8) pertaining to the SEC Savings Plan and the SEC Savings and Security 
Plan and certain other plans (Nos. 333-24295. 333-66105 and 333-88667). the 
Stock Savings Plan (Nos. 33-37451 and 33-54291). the 1992 Stack Opttan Plan (No. 
3349855). the 1995 Management Stock Option Plan (Nos. 33.61715 and 333-49345), 
the 1996 Stock and Incentive Plan (No. 333-30669). and in the Registration 
Statements (Form S-3) pertaining to the SBC Communications Inc. Direct Stock 
Purchase and Reinvestment Plan (Nos. 33S08979.333-44553, and 33342587 
(originally filed on Form S-4). and SBC Communications Capital Corporation and 
SBC Communications inc. (Nos. 33-45490 and 33-56909). and in the Registration 
Statement (Form S-4) pertaining to SEC Communications Inc. (No. 333-45837), and 
in the related Prospectuses. of our report dated February 11, Moo. with respect 
to the consolidated financial statements incorporated herein by reference, and 
our report included in the preceding paragraph with respect to the financial 
statement schedules included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year 
ended December 31,1999. 
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San Antonio, Texas 
March 7,2000 
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<TEXT> 

Exhibit 23-b 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

As independent p u M i  accountants, we hereby consent to the inciusion in this 
Form IO-K of our report dated January 21, 1999 (Exhibit 9 9 4  as included in 
Ameritech Corporation's annual report on Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 
31, 1998. It should be noted that we have not audited any financial statements 
of the company subsequent to December 31, 1998 or performed any audit procedures 
subsequent to the date of our report 

Arthur Andersen LLP 

Chicago, Illinois 
March 7,2000 

</TEXT> 

<DOCUMENT> 
cTYPE>EX-24 

</DOCUMENT> 

<SEQUENCE>13 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT24 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

THAT, WHEREAS, SEC COMMUNICATIONS INC., a Delaware corpnation. hereinafter 
referred to as the "Corporation," proposes to file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, under the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, an annual report on Form 10-K; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned is an officer and a director Of the Corporation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints James D. 
Ellis, Donald E. Kiernan, Liam S. Coonan, Roger W. Wohlert, or any one of them, 
all of the City of San Antonio and State of Texas. his attorneys for him and in 
his name, place and stead, and in each of his offices and capacities in the 
Corporation, to execute and file such annual report. and thereafter to execute 
and file any amendment or amendments thereto, hereby giving and granting to said 
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attorneys full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and 
thing whatsoever requisite and necessary to be done in and concerning the 
premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could 
do if personally present at the doing thereof, hereby ratifying and confirming 
all that said attorneys may or shall lawfully do, or cause to be done, by virtue 
hereof. 

IN WITNESS WhEREOF, me undersgnea executed this Power of Attorney the 
28th day of JanLary 2000 

Is1 Edward E. Whitacre. Jr. 
Edward E. Whitacre. Jr. 
Chairman of the Board, Directoi 
and Chief Executive Officer 

<PAGE> 

EXHIBIT 24 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

THAT, WHEREAS, SBC COMMUNlCATiONS INC., a Delaware corporation, hereinafler 
referred to as the '"Corporation," proposes to file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, under the provisions of the Securiiies Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, an annual report on Form 10-K; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned is an officer and a director of the Corporation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Edward E. 
WhRacre. Jr., James D. Ellis, Donald E. Kiernan, Liam S. Coonan. RogerW. 
Wohlert, or any one of them, all of the City of San Antonio and State of Texas, 
his attorneys for him and in his name, place and stead, and in each of his 
offices and capacities in the Corporation, to execute and flle such annual 
report, and thereafter to execute and file any amendment or amendments thereto 
hereby giving and granting to said attorneys full power and authority to do and 
perform each and every act and thing whatsoever requisite and necessary to be 
done in and concerning the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as the 
undersigned might or could do if personally present at the doing thereof, hereby 
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys may or shall lawfullv do, 01 
cause to be done, by virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned executed this Power of Attorney 
the 28th day of January 2000. 

Is/ Royce S. Caldwell 
Royce S. Caldweil 
Vice Chairman of the Board, Director 
and President-SBC Operations 

<PAGE> 

EXHIBIT24 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
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THAT, WHEREAS, SBC COMMUNiCATlONS INC., a Delaware corporation. hereinafter 
referred to as the "Corporation." proposes to file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, under the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1954, as amended, an annual report on Form 10-K; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned is an officer of the Corporation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Edward E. 
Whitacre. Jr., James D. Ellis, Liam S. Cwnan, Roger W. Wohlert. or any one of 
them. all of the City of San Antonio and State of Texas, his attorneys for him 
and in his name, place and stead. and in each of his offlces and capacities in 
the Corporation, to execute and file such annual report, and thereafter to 
execute and file any amendment or amendments thereto, hereby giving and granting 
to said attorneys full power and authority to do and perform each and every act 
and thing whatsoever requisite and necessary to be done in and concerning the 
premises. as fully to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or wuld 
da if personally present at the doing thereof, hereby ratifying and connrmir\g 
all that said attorneys may or shall lawfully do, or cause to be done, by virtue 
hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned executed this Power of Attorney the 
28th day of January 2000. 

N D. E. Kiernan 

D. E. Kiernan 
Senior Executive Vice President. 
Chief Financial Officer and Treasure1 

- 
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EXHiBlT24 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

THAT, WHEREAS, SEC COMMUNiCATlONS INC.. a Delaware corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as the "Corporation," proposes to file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, under the provisions of the Securnies Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, an annual report on Form 10-K; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned is a director of the Corporation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Edward E, 
Whitacre. Jr.. James D. Ellis, Donald E. Kiernan. Liam S. Cwnan. Roger W. 
Wohlert, or any one of them. all of the City of San Antonio and State of Texas, 
the undersigned's attorneys for the undersigned and in the undersigned's name, 
place and stead, and in the undersigned's office and capacity in the 
Corporation. to execute and file such annual report, and thereafter to execute 
and file any amendment or amendments thereto, hereby giving and granting to said 
attorneys fuii power and authority to do and perform each and every act and 
thing whatsoever requisite and necessary to be done in and concerning the 
premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could 
do if personally present at the doing thereof, hereby ratifying and confirming 
all that said attorneys may or shall lawfully do, or cause to be done, by virtue 
hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned executed this Power of Altorney the 
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/s/ Clarence C. Barksdale 

Clarence C. Barksdale 
Director Director 

Is/ James E. Barnes 

James E. Barnes 
- 

/SI August A. Busch ill 

August A. Busch 111 
Director Director 

is/ Ruben R. Cardenas 

Ruben R. Cardenas 
- 

<PAGE> 
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PAGE 2 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Is/ William P. Clark is/ Martin K. Eby, Jr 

William P. Clark 
Director 

/s! Herman E. Gallegos 

Martin K. Eby. Jr. 
Director 

/s/ Jess T. Hay 

Herman E. Gallegos 
Director 

Id James A. Henderson 

James A. Henderson 
Director 

_ _  

/s/ Charles F. Knight 

Charles F. Knight 
Director 

. 

/s/ John B. McCoy 

John B. McCoy 
Director 

- 

/s/ Toni Rembe 

Toni Rembe 
Director 

- 

/s/ Joyce M. Roche 

Joyce M. Roche 
Director 

- 

N Carlos Slim Helu 

Carlos Slim Helu 
Director 

Jess T. Hay 
Director 

Is! Bobby R. lnrnan 

Bobby R. lnman 
Director 

is/ Lynn M. Martin 

Lynn M. Martin 
Director 

/s/ Mary S. Metz 

Mary S. Metz 
Director 

Is/ S. Donley Ritchey 

S. Donley Rhchey 
Director 

is/ Richard M. Rosenberg 

Richard M. Rosenberg 
Director 

is/ Laura DAndrea Tyson 

Laura DAndrea Tyson 
~ 

Director 

/s/ Patricia P. Upton 

Patricia P. Upton 
- 
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<DOCUMENT> 
cTYPEr EX-27 
cSEQUENCE>14 

</DOCUMENT> 

sDESCRIPTION>EXHIBIT 27-A: FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE, 12/31/99 
<TEXT> 

<TABLE> CSZ cCz 

<ARTICLE> 5 
<LEGEND> 
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM SBC ~~ ~ ._. 
COMMUh CATlOhS NC 'S DECEMBER 31.1999 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IS 
QUAL FlED IN ITS ENITREW BY REFEREhCE TO SUCn FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER, 1,000,000 

. -. . . . - . . . - 
<FISCAL-YEAR-END> DEC-31-1999 
<PERIOD-END> DEC-31-1999 
<CASH> doc 
<SECURITIES> 
<RECEIVABLES> 
<ALLOWANCES> 

_"I 

1 
10,477 

1.099 
<INVENTORY> OcFlr ~ ~~ 

<CURRENT-ASSETS, 11,930 
cPP8Ez 116,332 
<DEPRECIATION> 69,761 
<TOTAL-ASSETS, 83,215 
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 
<BONDS> 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 
<PREFERRED> 
<COMMON> 
<OTHER-SE> 
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EOUlTYz 
<SALES> 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 
cCGS> 
<TOTAL-COSTS, 
<OTHER-EXPENSES, 
<LOSS-PROVISION> -. . . . . . - . . -. -. . 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE, 
<INCOME-PRETAX> 
<INCOME-TAX> 
4NCOME-CONTINUING> 
cDISCONTINUED> 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 
<CHANGES> 
<NET-INCOME> 
<EPS-BASIC> 
<EPS-DILUTED> 
<FN> 
<F1> THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 

19,313 
17,475 

n 
0 

11.048 

1,136 

10,853 

8.553 

1.430 

4.280 
6,573 

0 
1,379 

207 
8.159 

2.39 
2.36 

<FZ> NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PR~DUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUES AND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X, RULE 5-03(B) THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THF "TOTAl RF\IFUI IEC" T A C  

<F33 COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT IN THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL COST TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION S-X, RULE 

4FN> 
543(B). 

135 of 144 6/12/00415PM 



Edgar Filing 

<ARTICLE> 5 
<LEGEND> 
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM SBC 
COMMUNICATIONS INC.'S SEPTEMBER 30,1999 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENITRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER> 

<S> <C> 
<PERIOD-PIPE> 
<FISCAL-YEAR-END> 
<PERIOD-END> 
<CASH> 
<SECURITIES> 
CRECElVABLESr 
<ALLOWANCES> 
<INVENTORY> 
<CURRENT-ASSETS, 
<PP&E> 
<DEPRECIATION> 
<TOTAL-ASSETS> 
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 
<BONDS> 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 
<PREFERRED> 
<COMMON> 
<OTHER-SE> 

1 

1,000,000 

9-MOS 
DEC-31.1999 

SEP-30-I 999 
532 

27 ~ 

9.946 
1.043 
O<F1, 

11,977 
15,375 

69,335 
81 :E46 
20.056 

17.41 8 
0 

0 
3,433 
21,875 

<TOTAL-LIABILIN-AND-EQUITY> 81,846 
-SALES> O<F23 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 36,592 
cCGS> O<F3> 
<TOTAL-COSTSs 7,754 
<OTHER-EXPENSES, 6,378 
<LOSS-PROVISION> 824 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE, 1,069 
<INCOME-PRETAX, 8.1 16 
<INCOME-TAX> 3,270 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 4,846 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
cEXTRAORDINARY> 0 
<CHANGES> 207 
<NET-INCOME, 5.053 
<EPS-BASIC> 1 .a 
<EPS-DILUTED, 1.46 
<FN> 
<F1> THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 
cF22 NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PRODUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUES AND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X, RULE W3(B). THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THE "TOTAL REVENUES TAG, 
<F3> COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT IN THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL COST" TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION S-X, 
RULE 5-03(8). 
</FN> 

</TABLE> 
</TEXT> 
4DOCUMENTs 
<DOCUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-27 
<SEQUENCE>16 
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<DESCRIPTION>EXHIBIT 27-C: RESTATED FINANCIAL DATA SCH. 6/30/99 
<TEXT> 

<ARTICLE> 5 
<LEGEND> 

~ 

TdIS SCHEDULE COhTA NS SUMMARY FINANCIAL IhFORMATiON EXTRACTED FROM SEC 
COMMUh CAT OhS NC 'S JLhE 30,1999 CONSOL.DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IS 
QUAL FIE0 N ITS ENITRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCd FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER> 

<S> CCS 
<PERIOD-NPE> 
<FISCAL-YEAR-END> 
<PERIOD-END> 
<CASH> 
<SECURITIES> 
<RECEIVABLES> 
<ALLOWANCES> 
<INVENTORY> 

6-MOS 
DEC-31-1999 

JUN-30-1999 
1.140 

1 
9,810 

832 
OcFls 

<BONDS> 17,507 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 0 
<PREFERRED> 0 
<COMMON> 3,434 
<OTHER-SE> 21,428 
<TOTAL-LIABILIT(-AND-EQUITY> 78.945 
<SALES> O<F2> 
<TOTAL-REVENUES> 24.058 

O<F3> 
5,076 

3,935 
403 

704 
5,820 

2,117 

0 
3.71 1 

0 
207 
3.918 

1.15 
1.13 

<CGS> 
<TOTAL-COSTS, 
<OTHER-EXPENSES, 
cLOSS-PROVISION> 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE> 
<INCOME-PRETAX, 
<INCOME-TAX> 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 
<DISCONTINUED> 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 
<CHANGES> 
<NET-INCOMEs 
cEPS-BASIC> 
cEPS-DILUTED> 
<FN> 
<FIP THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 
<F2> NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PRODUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUESAND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X, RULE 5-03(B). THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THE "TOTAL REVENUES TAG. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL COST TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION SX,  
RULE 5-03(8). 
</FN> 

cF3, COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONSAND SUPPORT IN THE 

crrABLE> 
</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 

<TYPE>EX-27 
<SEQUENCE217 
<DESCRIPTION>EXHIBIT 27-0: RESTATED FINANCIAL DATA SCH, 3/31/99 
<TEXT> 

<DOCUMENT, 
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<ARTICLE> 5 
<LEGEND> 
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM SBC 
COMMUNICATIONS INC.'S MARCH 31, 1999 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IS 
QUALIFIED IN ITS ENITRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER> 

-=S> CC, 
cPERIOD-TYPE> 
<FISCAL-YEAR-END, 
<PERIOD-END> 
<CASH> 
<SECURITIES> 
<RECEIVABLES> 
<ALLOWANCES> 
<INVENTORY> 
<CURRENT-ASSETS, 
cPP&F> 
<DEPREc ATIONI 
<TOTAL-ASSETS> 
~CJRRENT-LIAE - TIES) 

1 .ooo,wo 

3-MOS 

MAR-31-1 999 
1,214 

DEC-31-1999 

1 
9,837 

839 

17,461 
<BONDS> 16,925 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 0 
<PREFERRED> n . . -. . . . _ _  - 
<COMMON> 3,433 
COTHER-SE, 20,247 
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUlTYz 75.040 
<SALES> OcF2r 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 11,802 
eCGS> OcF3 
<TOTAL-COSTS, 2,567 
<OTHER-EXPENSES, 1,942 
<LOSS-PROVISION> 206 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE, 357 
<INCOME-PRETAX, 2,789 
<INCOME-TAX> 1,016 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 1,773 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0 
<CHANGES> 207 
<NET-INCOME> 1,980 
<EPS-BASIC> 0.58 
<EPS-DILUTED, 0.57 
<FN> 
<FIz THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 
<F2> NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PRODUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUESAND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X, RULE 543(B). THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THE"T0TAL REVENUES TAG. 
cF3> COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT IN THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL COST TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION S X ,  
RULE 5-03(B). 
4FNr  

<ITABLE> 
cITEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-27 
cSEQUENCEsl8 
<DESCRIPTION>EXH 27-E: RESTATED FINANCIAL DATA SCH, 12/31/98 
<TEXT> 

<TABLE> <S> CCS 

<ARTICLE> 
<LEGEND> 

138 of 144 

5 

6/12/004:l5 PM 



Edgar Filing http://www.shareholder.comNisitors/edgar n0-000018&CompanylD=SBC&header=A6Lfwter=A 

v W 

TnlS SCHED-LE COhTA.NS SUMMARY FiNANClAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM SBC 
COMMUh CAT OhS NC 'S DECEMBER 31.1998 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IS 
QUALIFIED IN ITS ENITRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCh FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER> 

CSS C C S  

l,WO,OW 

- 
<PERIOD-TYPE> 12-MOS 
<FISCAL-YEAR-END> DEC-31-1998 
<PERIOD-END> DEC-31-1998 
<CASH> 599 
<SECURITIES> 6 
<RECEIVABLES> 10,593 
<ALLOWANCES> 81 0 
<INVENTORY> OcFI> 
<CURRENT-ASSETS, 12,697 
<PP8E> 109,778 
<DEPRECIATION> 65,584 
<TOTAL-ASSETS> 74,966 
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 18,240 
<BONDS> 17,170 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY. 0 
<PREFERRED> 0 
<COMMON> 3,434 
<OTHER-SE> 19,340 

GALES, O<F2> 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 46,207 
cCGS> ncF3s 

<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUITY> 74,966 

.-COSTS> 
&EXPENSES> 

.. 
10,339 

7.8, 
"e- 

1,605 
<INCOME-PRETAX> 12,115 
<INCOME-TAX, 4.380 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 7,735 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
<EXTRAORDINARY> (60) 
CHANGES, 15 
<NET-INCOME> 7,690 
<EPS-BASICr 2.26 
<EPS-DILUTED> 2.23 
<FN> 
<F1> THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 
<F2> NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PRODUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUES AND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X, RULE 503(B). THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THE "TOTAL REVENUES TAG. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL COST TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION S-X, 
RULE 5-03f61 

<F33 COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONSAND SUPPORT IN THE 

</TABLE> 
</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 

<TYPE>EX-27 
<SEQUENCE>19 
<DESCRIPTION>EXHIBIT 27-F: RESTATED FINANCIAL DATA SCH. 9/30/9E 
<TEXT> 

<TABLE> CSS cC> 

<DOCUMENT> 

<ARTICLE> 5 
<LEGEND> 
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM SBC 
COMMUNICATIONS INC.5 SEPTEMBER XI. 1998 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENITRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER> 

cs> SCS 
cPERIOD-NPE> 
<FISCAL-YEAR-END, 
<PERIOD-END> 
<CASH> -. . 
cSECURIT.ESr 
<RECEIVAB-ES> 
<ALLOWANCES> 
<INVENTORY> 
<CURRENT-ASSETS, 
<PP&E> 
<DEPRECIATION> 
<TOTAL-ASSETS, 
<CURRENT-LIABILlTlESs 
<BONDS> 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 
<PREFERRED> 
<COMMON> 
<OTHER-SE> 

http://www.shareholder.comNisitorsiedga- 00-000018&CornpanyID=SBC&headm=A&fmter=A 

W W 

1 ,wo,wo 

9-MOS 
DEC31-1998 

SEP-30.1998 
1.183 

760 
O<F1> 

12,934 
109,076 

65,242 
74,905 

16,764 
19,371 

0 
0 

3,440 
18783 

<TOTAL-LIABILIPI-AND-EQUIN> 74,905 
<SALES> OcF2> 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 34.042 ----- 
<TOTAL-COSTS, 
COTHER-EXPENSES, 

O<F3> 
7,473 

<LOSS-PROVISION> 629 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE, 1,223 
<INCOME-PRETAX> 9.635 
<lNCOME-TAX> 3,491 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 6,144 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0 
<CHANGES> 15 
<NET-INCOME, 6,159 
<EPS-BASIC> 1.82 
<EPS-DILUTED, 1.79 
<FN> 
<F lz  THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 
<F2> NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PRODUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUESAND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X. RULE 5-03(8). THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THE"T0TAL REVENUES TAG 

5,661 

~ ~~~ 

<F3> COST OF TAhG B.E G6ODS SOLI IS INC-UDED IN OPERATIONSAND SJPPORT IN TdE 
FlNAhClAL STATEMEhTS AND THE "TOTAL COST' TAG P-RSLANT TO REGULATION S-X. 
RULE 5-03(8) 

</TABLE> 
<!TEXT> 

<DESCRIPTIONsEXHIBIT 27-G: RESTATED FINANCIAL DATA SCH, 6/30/98 
<TEXT> 

<TABLE> 4 s  <C> 

<ARTICLE> 5 
<LEGEND> 
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM SBC 
COMMUNICATIONS INC.3 JUNE 30, 1998 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IS 
QUALIFIED IN ITS ENITREN BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER> 1,000,000 

CSZ <C> 
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rPERIOD-TYPE, 
cF,SCAL-YEAR-EhDs 
CPERIOD-END, 

hnp://~.shareholder.comNisitoru'edgar 00000018&CompanyID=SBC&hcade~A&f~ta=A 

W 

6-MOS 
DEC-31-1998 

J U N-30-1998 
<CASH> 907 
<SECURITIES> 91 
<RECEIVABLES> 9,870 
<ALLOWANCES> 753 
<INVENTORY> OcFl5 
CURRENT-ASSETS, 12.678 
<PP&E> 107,610 
<DEPRECIATION> 64,066 
cTOTAL-ASSETS> 74,177 
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 17,134 
<BONDS> 19,706 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 0 
<PREFERRED> 0 
<COMMON> 3,437 
<OTHER-SE> 17,338 
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EC?UITY> 74,177 
<SALES> OcF2> 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 22,436 
cCGS> OcF3> 
<TOTAL-COSTS, 4,910 
<OTHER-EXPENSES, 3,745 
cLOSS-PROVISION> 415 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE, 840 
<INCOME-PRETAX> 6,598 
clNCOME-TAX> 2.380 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 4,218 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0 
<CHANGES> 15 
<NET-INCOME, 4,233 
cEPS-BASIC, 1.25 
<EPS-DILUTED> 1.23 
cFNz 
<F1> THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 
<F2> NET SALES OF TAhGlB-E PROD-CTS IS NOT MORE TnAh 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVEh-ES AND THEREFORE rlAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMEhTS PLRSUANT TO REG-A-TION S-X, RJLE 5-03@1. THIS AMOUNT IS INCLbDED N . .  
THE"T0TAL REVENUES TAG. 
CF3> COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT IN THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL COST TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION SX,  
RULE 5-0316). 

< A B L E >  
cfTEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
cNPE>EX-27 
<SEQUENCE>21 
<DESCRIPTION>EXHIBIT 27-H: RESTATED FINANCIAL DATA SCH, 3/31/98 
<TEXT> 

<TABLE> cS> <C> 

<ARTICLE> 5 
<LEGEND> 
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM SBC 
COMMUNICATIONS INC.'S MARCH 31, 1998 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IS 
QUALIFIED IN ITS ENITREN BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER> 

<FISCAL-YEAR-END> 
<PERIOD-END2 
<CASH> 

1,000,000 

J-MOS 
DEC-31-1998 

MAR-31-1998 
836 
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<SECURITIES> 
<RECEIVABLES> 
<ALLOWANCES> 
clNVENTORY, 

176 
8.847 

792 
OcFI> 

<CURRENT-ASSETS, 11,362 
<PP&Er 105,991 
<DEPRECIATION> 62,974 
<TOTAL-ASSETS, 72,534 
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 17,845 
<BONDS> 19,924 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 0 
<PREFERRED> 0 
<COMMON> 3.434 
COTHER-SE> 15.288 
<TOTAL-LIABILIPI-AND-EOUlPI> 
<SALES> 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 
C G S >  
<TOTAL-COSTS, 
<OTHER-EXPENSES, 
<LOSS-PROVISION> 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE, 
<INCOME-PRETAX, 

72,534 
OcF2, 

11,038 
OcF3> 

2,434 
1.851 
21 6 

431 
2.323 

http://www.shareholder.comNisitorsiedgar ~0-000018&CornpanyID=SBC&header=ABrfoota=A 
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<lNCOME-TAX> 855 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 1,468 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0 
<CHANGES> 15 
<NET-INCOME, 1.483 
cEPS-BASIC, 0.44 
cEPS-DILUTED, 0.43 
<FN> 
<Fl> THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERIAL 
<F2> NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PRODUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUES AND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X, RULE 5-03(8). THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THE "TOTAL REVENUES" TAG. 
<F3> COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT IN THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL cosr  TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION s-x, 
RULE 5-03(8). 
</FN> 

<TTABLE> 
</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT, 
<DOCUMENT> 
CTYPEsEX-27 
<SEQUENCE>22 
cDESCRIPTION>EXH. 27-1: RESTATED FINANCIAL DATA SCH, 1201/97 
<TEXT> 

<ARTICLE> 5 
4 FGFNlb _ _  - - . .- 
THIS SCHEDJLE CONTAlhS S-MMARV FINANCIA- INFORMATlOh EXTRACTED FROM SBC 
COMMUN CATIONS hC 'S DECEMBER 31 1997 CONSOL.DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IS 
QLAL FlED N ITS EhlTREW BY REFERENCE TO SUCh FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

</LEGEND> 
<MULTIPLIER, 

<SS CC, 
<PERIOD-TYPE2 
<FISCAL-YEAR-END, 
cPERIOD-ENDs 
<CASH> 
<SECURITIES> 
<RECEIVABLES> 
<ALLOWANCES> 
<INVENTORY> 

1.ow.wo 

12-MOS 
DEC-31-1997 

DEC31-1997 
649 

320 
9,159 

737 
O<Fls 
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u 
<CURRENT-ASSETS, 12,096 
<PP&E> 104,596 
<DEPRECIATION> 61,665 
<TOTAL-ASSETS> 69,917 
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 18,268 
<BONDS> 17.787 
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY, 0 
<PREFERRED> 0 
<COMMON> 3,428 
COTHER-SE, 14,435 
~TOTAL-LIABILIP(-AND-EQUIPI> 69,917 
<SALES> O<F2> 
<TOTAL-REVENUES, 43,106 
<CGS> O<F3> 
<TOTAL-COSTS, 10,245 
<OTHER-€XPENSES> 7,777 
<LOSS-PROVISION> 938 
<iNTEREST-EXPENSE> 1,550 
-=INCOME-PRETAX> 6,538 
<INCOME-TAX> 2,451 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 4,087 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0 
<CHANGES> 0 
cNET-INCOME> 4,087 
<EPS-BASIC> 1.21 
<EPS-DILUTED> 1 .a 
<FN> 
<F1> THIS AMOUNT IS IMMATERiAL 
<F2> NET SALES OF TANGIBLE PRODUCTS IS NOT MORE THAN 10% OF TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUES AND THEREFORE HAS NOT BEEN STATED SEPARATELY IN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO REGUALTION S-X. RULE 5-03(8). THIS AMOUNT IS INCLUDED IN 
THE "TOTAL REVENUES TAG. 
cF3> COST OF TANGIBLE GOODS SOLD IS INCLUDED IN OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT IN THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE "TOTAL COST TAG, PURSUANT TO REGULATION S-X, 
RULE 5-03(8). 
4FN> 

</TABLE> 
</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-99 
<SEQUENCE>23 
cDESCRIPTION>EXHIBIT 99-A REPORT OF INDEPENDANT ACCOUNTANTS 

Exhibit 9 9 a  

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Directors, Ameritech Corporation 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Ameritech Corporation (a 
Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1998, and the related 
wnsolidated statements of income, shareowners equRy and cash flows for each 
of the two years in the period ended December 31,1998. as included in 
Ameritech's annual report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31,1998. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the wmpanvs management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation 
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We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion 

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Amelltech 
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1998, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended 
December 31, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. The financial statement schedule included 
in Item 14(a)(2) of Ameritech's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 
is the responsibility of Ameritechs management and is presented for purposes of 
complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and Is not part of 
the basic financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the audling 
procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion, fairly states in all material respects the financial data required to 
be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole 

Arthur Andersen LLP 
Chicago, Illinois 
January 21.1999 

</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
clSEC-DOCUMENT> 

v' 
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